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APF I Purpose and Scope
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LEGISLATION
Reference Title
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‘Australian Accounting Standards’ means accounting standards issued by the Australian Accounting Standards
Board and any of the following standards: AAS 25, AAS 29 and AAS 31 and associated amendments to transitional
provisions (AAS 29A, AAS 31A) which are in force in relation to the reporting period to which the financial report
relates.






VOLUMES 1, 11, III, IVAND V
REFERENCES TO MATTERS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Issues of importance which are included in this Part of the Report include matters which arose during the
course of audit which have been referred to senior agency management, and other matters which are of
public interest.

Those matters which are regarded as being more significant are listed below, together with a reference to the
appropriate page number. This list is not exhaustive, as many other issues are reported in Volumes I, II, III,
IV and V of Part B of this Report.

Reference should also be made to Part A — Audit Overview and Part C — State Finances and Related Matters
which also contain comments on specific matters of importance and interest.
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DEPARTMENT OF TRADE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY AND STRUCTURE
Establishment

The Department of Trade and Economic Development (the Department) is an Administrative Unit established
under the PSMAct.

Functions

The function of the Department is to promote economic development in the State by working with business
and the community to create and retain jobs, maintain a competitive business climate, increase investment,
facilitate major projects, encourage innovation and entrepreneurship, promote trade and ensure the
development of a highly skilled work force to meet the needs of business. It also supports the role of the
Economic Development Board (EDB).

Structure

The structure of the Department at 30 June 2007 is illustrated in the following organisation chart.

Deputy Premier
Minister for Industry and Trade

Minister for Regional Development

Premier L )
- . Minister for Small Business
Minister for Economic L . - .
Minister Assisting the Minister in
Development

Industry and Trade

. Chief Executive Olympic Dam
Defence Unit (CE) Taskforce

777777 Office of the EDB
Office of the CE
777777 Strategy Unit

Commercial Population and Econ(_)mlc Manufacftunng Corporate ) Office of Small Office of
L Lo Analysis and and Business . Office of Trade N : .
Division Migration . N Services Business Regional Affairs
Policy Services

AUDIT MANDATE AND COVERAGE
Audit Authority
Audit of the Financial Report

Subsection 31(1)(b) of the PFAA provides for the Auditor-General to audit the accounts of the Department for
each financial year.

Assessment of Controls

Subsection 36(1)(a)(iii) of the PFAA provides for the Auditor-General to assess the controls exercised by the
Department in relation to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of
property and the incurring of liabilities.

This assessment also considers whether those controls are consistent with the prescribed elements of the FMF
as required by TI 2.
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Trade and Economic Development
Scope of Audit

The audit program covered major financial systems and was directed primarily to obtaining sufficient evidence
to enable an opinion to be formed with respect to the financial statements and internal controls.

During 2006 07, specific areas of audit attention included:

cash at bank
revenue collection
expenditure

grants and subsidies

payroll and related payments

fixed assets

financial accounting

Financial Management Framework review.

AUDIT FINDINGS AND COMMENTS

Auditor’s Report on the Financial Report

In my opinion, the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Department of Trade and Economic Development as at 30 June 2007, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Treasurer’'s Instructions promulgated under the
provisions of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 and Australian Accounting Standards (including the
Australian Accounting Interpretations).

Assessment of Controls

In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Department of Trade and Economic Development in relation to
the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the incurring
of liabilities, are sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that the financial transactions of the Department
of Trade and Economic Development have been conducted properly and in accordance with law.
Communication of Audit Matters

The audit of the Department identified areas in which it was considered control practices and procedures
could be enhanced and the recommendations for improvement were raised with the Chief Executive.

The main areas for improvement in the control environment raised with the Department were:

. the lack of consistency in use of requisitions and purchase orders to document purchasing
transactions before entering commitments to purchase;

. the need to ensure purchases of all goods and services are authorised prior to the committal of
financial resources.

The Department’s responses to the matters raised were considered satisfactory.

INTERPRETATION AND ANALYSIS OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

Highlights of the Financial Report

2007 2006 Percentage
$'million $'million Change
INCOME
Interest revenues 0.1 1.3 n/a
Other 3.0 2.0 50
Total Income 3.1 3.3 (6)
EXPENSES
Employee benefit expenses 17.3 16.1 7
Supplies and services 22.9 22.6 1
Grants and subsidies 22.8 23.3 (2)
Other expenses 0.7 0.3 -
Total Expenses 63.7 62.3 2
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Trade and Economic Development

2007 2006 Percentage

$'million $'million Change
REVENUES FROM (PAYMENTS TO) SA GOVERNMENT
Revenues from SA Government 62.1 46.3 34
Payments to SA Government (2.0) - n/a
Net Result before Restructuring (0.5) (12.7) 96.0
Net Expenses from administrative restructure - (6.2) n/a
Net Result after Restructuring (0.5) (18.9) 97
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3.1 9.6 n/a
ASSETS
Current assets 29.6 28.2 5
Non-current assets 6.9 6.1 13
Total Assets 36.5 34.3 6
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 4.7 2.8 68
Non-current liabilities 24 1.6 50
Total Liabilities 7.1 4.4 61
EQUITY 29.4 29.9 (2)

Income Statement
Revenues from (Payments to) SA Government

The reduction in the net deficit result before restructure from $12.7 million to $530 000 results from the
increased revenue appropriation of $15.8 million from Government for 2006-07.

In addition during 2006-07 the Department was required to pay $2 million to the Treasurer in accordance
with the Cash Alignment Policy.

Net Cost of Providing Services

The following chart shows the operating revenues, operating expenses and net result for the four years to
2007. The expenses for 2005 included the write-off of $101.3 million from the balance of interest free loans.
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Trade and Economic Development
Cash Flow Statement

The following table summarises the net cash flows for the two years to 2007.

2007 2006
$'million $'million

Net Cash Flows
Operations 3.1 (9.6)
Investing 0.6 1.8
Change in Cash 3.7 (7.8)
Cash at 30 June 17.8 14.1

The analysis of cash flows shows that the Department’s cash reserves have increased due mainly to the
increase in receipts from Government.

FURTHER COMMENTARY ON OPERATIONS

Defence SA

A new administrative unit, titled Defence SA, has been established with effect from 1 September 2007,
pursuant to section 7 of the PSMAct.

The new administrative entity will subsume the Defence Unit investment facilitation and marketing activities
of the Department and the existing operations of Port Adelaide Maritime Corporation (PAMC).

Defence SA will be responsible for:

. facilitating the development and growth of a sustainable defence industry in South Australia based on
existing, created and new market opportunities in accordance with South Australia’s Strategic Plan
objectives;

. advising and delivering strategy and policy required to deliver defence industry growth in South
Australia;

. delivering the State Government commitments in support of defence industry growth in South
Australia.

An advisory Board will be established replacing the Defence Industry Advisory Board and the Corporation’s
Board.
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Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2007

2007 2006
Note $'000 $'000
EXPENSES:
Employee benefit expenses 6 17 296 16 112
Supplies and services 7 22 927 22 605
Finance costs 403 -
Depreciation 8 303 287
Grants and subsidies 9 22 754 23 300
Other expenses 10 9 -
Total Expenses 63 692 62 304
INCOME:
Interest revenues 13 90 1264
Net gain (loss) from disposal of assets 14 (121) 6
Recoveries 15 3112 2 040
Total Income 3 081 3 310
NET COST OF PROVIDING SERVICES (60 611) (58 994)
REVENUES FROM (PAYMENTS TO) SA GOVERNMENT:
Revenues from SA Government 16 62 106 46 268
Payments to SA Government 16 (2 025) -
Net Result Before Restructure (530) (12 726)
Net expenses from an administrative restructure 26 - (6 203)
NET RESULT AFTER RESTRUCTURE (530) (18 929)

Net Result after restructure is attributable to the SA Government as owner
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Balance Sheet
as at 30 June 2007

CURRENT ASSETS: Note
Cash 17
Receivables 18
Financial assistance debtors 19
Other assets 20
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 21

Total Current Assets
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Receivables 18
Financial assistance debtors 19
Other assets 20
Property, plant and equipment 22
Total Non-Current Assets
Total Assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Payables 23

Short-term employee benefits 24

Short-term provisions 25
Total Current Liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Payables 23
Long-term employee benefits 24
Long-term provisions 25
Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS
EQUITY:
Retained earnings
Asset revaluation reserve

TOTAL EQUITY

Total Equity is attributable to the SA Government as owner

Commitments for expenditure 27

Contingent assets and liabilities 28

2007 2006
$'000 $'000
17 792 14 073
11 623 12 830
98 143
104 58

29 617 27 104
- 1099

29 617 28 203
5272 4 546
720 791

3 -

849 790

6 844 6127
36 461 34 330
3 006 1357
1 696 1376
34 32
4736 2765
198 138

2 066 1443
94 87

2 358 1 668
7 094 4 433
29 367 29 897
29 367 29 133
- 764

29 367 29 897
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2007

Asset
Revaluation  Retained

Reserve  Earnings Total

$'000 $'000 $'000

Balance at 30 June 2005 - 50 367 50 367

Restated balance at 30 June 2005 - 50 367 50 367

Net income/expense recognised directly in equity for 2005-06 - (12 726) (12 726)

Net expense from an administrative restructure - (6 203) (6 203)

Total Recognised Income and Expense for 2005-06 - (18 929) (18 929)
Increment (decrement) on revaluation of

Non-current assets 764 - 764

Prior period adjustments - (2 305) (2 305)

Balance at 30 June 2006 764 29 133 29 897

Net income/expense recognised directly in equity for 2006-07 - (530) (530)

Total Recognised Income and Expense for 2006-07 - (530) (530)
Increment (decrement) on revaluation of:

Non-current assets (764) 764 -

Balance at 30 June 2007 - 29 367 29 367

All Changes in Equity are attributable to the SA Government as owner
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2007

2007 2006
Inflows Inflows
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: (Outflows) (Outflows)
CASH OUTFLOWS: Note $'000 $'000
Employee benefit payments (16 391) (15998)
Supplies and services (21 126) (22 844)
Grants and subsidies (22 754) (23 110)
Finance costs (403) -
GST payments on purchases (4776) (4 365)
GST remitted to Australian Taxation Office (375) (277)
Cash used in Operations (65 825) (66 594)
CASH INFLOWS:
Interest received 110 1331
GST recovered from Australian Taxation Office 5019 3676
GST receipts on receivables 349 300
Repayment of financial assistance 305 548
Receipts for restructured activities - 197
Other receipts 3 064 4 710
Cash generated from Operations 8 847 10 762
CASH FLOWS FROM SA GOVERNMENT:
Receipts from SA Government 62 106 46 268
Payments to SA Government (2 025) -
Cash generated from SA Government 60 081 46 268
Net Cash provided by (used) in Operating Activities 30 3103 (9 564)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (8 393) (414)
Cash used in Investing Activities (8 393) (414)
CASH INFLOWS:
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 9 009 2183
Cash generated from Investing Activities 9 009 2 183
Net Cash provided by Investing Activities 616 1769
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Repayment of borrowings (8 878) -
Cash used in Financing Activities (8 878) -
CASH INFLOWS:
Proceeds from borrowings 8 878 -
Cash generated from Financing Activities 8 878 -
Net Cash provided by Financing Activities - -
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 3719 (7 795)
CASH AT 1 JULY 14 073 21 868
CASH AT 30 JUNE 17,30 17 792 14 073
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Program Schedule of Expenses and Income
for the year ended 30 June 2007

Program
(refer Note 5) 1 2 3 4 5
EXPENSES: $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Employee benefit expenses 2 297 718 2702 1 684 1 646
Supplies and services 1214 2417 1 896 5 285 2 082
Finance costs - - - - -
Depreciation - - - - -
Grants and subsidies 709 1765 3257 1 565 1607
Other expenses - - - - -
Total Expenses 4 220 4 900 7 855 8 534 5335
INCOME:
Interest revenues - - - 21 -
Net gain (loss) from disposal of assets - - - - (98)
Recoveries 402 1 341 485 884
Total Income 402 1 341 506 786
NET COST OF PROVIDING SERVICES (3 818) (4 899) (7 514) (8 028) (4 549)
2007
Program Program
(refer Note 5) 6 7 8 ] Total
EXPENSES: $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Employee benefit costs 4116 1274 1344 1515 17 296
Supplies and services 5 256 1435 655 2 687 22 927
Finance costs 403 - - - 403
Depreciation 303 - - - 303
Grants and subsidies 9 1410 9971 2461 22 754
Other expenses 9 - - - 9
Total Expenses 10 096 4119 11 970 6 663 63 692
INCOME:
Interest revenues 69 - - - 90
Net gain (loss) from disposal of assets (23) - - - (121)
Recoveries 669 228 39 63 3112
Total Income 715 228 39 63 3 081
NET COST OF PROVIDING SERVICES (9 381) (3891) (11931) (6600) (60611)
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Program Schedule of Expenses and Income
for the year ended 30 June 2006

Program
(refer Note 5) 1 2 3 4 5
EXPENSES: $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Employee benefit expense 2 044 726 2622 1613 1 058
Supplies and services 695 3136 2 265 4 732 887
Finance costs - - - - -
Depreciation - - - - -
Grants and subsidies 2022 2 970 2 706 1931 343
Other expenses - - - - -
Total Expenses 4761 6 832 7 593 8 276 2 288
INCOME:
Interest revenues - - - 10 -
Net gain (loss) from disposal of assets - - - 37 -
Recoveries 151 345 174 75 19
Total Income 151 345 174 122 19
NET COST OF PROVIDING SERVICES (4 610) (6 487) (7 419) (8 154) (2 269)
2006
Program Program
(refer Note 5) 6 7 8 9 Total
EXPENSES: $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Employee benefit expense 4 581 1214 1105 1 149 16 112
Supplies and services 5 309 1 809 540 3232 22 605
Finance costs - - - - -
Depreciation 287 - - - 287
Grants and subsidies 35 2721 8 493 2 079 23 300
Other expenses - - - - -
Total Expenses 10 212 5744 10 138 6 460 62 304
INCOME:
Interest revenues 1254 - - - 1264
Net gain (loss) from disposal of assets (31) - - - 6
Recoveries 1073 115 59 29 2 040
Total Income 2 296 115 59 29 3310
NET COST OF PROVIDING SERVICES (7 916) (5629) (10079) (6431) (58994)
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Objectives of the Department of Trade and Economic Development

The Department of Trade and Economic Development (DTED) will facilitate the long-term sustainable economic
development of South Australia by working in partnership with industry and other stakeholders, and provide
leadership across government on economic development.

DTED's key objectives are:

maintain an internationally competitive business environment;

increase business investment and facilitate major projects;

foster the development of innovative, globally competitive businesses;
increase international trade;

develop a vibrant and entrepreneurial small business sector;

ensure the supply of a highly skilled workforce to meet the needs of business;
build sustainable communities in regional South Australia;

deliver highly valued services and advice to government and industry;

develop an organisational environment that is consistent with our guiding principles and enables them to
do their business in an effective and efficient way.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

(b)

(c)

Basis of Accounting
The financial report is a general purpose financial report. The accounts have been prepared in accordance
with applicable AASs and TIs and APSs promulgated under the provision of the PFAA.

Statement of Compliance
AASs include AIFRS and AAS 29. DTED has early-adopted the amendments to AASB 101. Refer to Note 4.

The preparation of the financial reports requires:

. the use of certain accounting estimates and requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying DTED's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are outlined in the
applicable notes;

. compliance with APSs issued pursuant to section 41 of the PFAA, by authority of Treasurer's
Instruction 19 Financial Reporting . In the interest of public accountability and transparency the
APSs require the following note disclosures, that have been included in this financial report:

(a) revenues, expenses, financial assets and liabilities where the counterparty/transaction is
with an entity within the SA Government as at reporting date, classified according to their
nature. A threshold of $100 000 for separate identification of these items applies;

(b) expenses incurred as a result of engaging consultants (as reported in the Income
Statement);

(o) employee TVSP information;

(d) employees whose normal remuneration is $100 000 or more (within $10 000 bandwidths)
and the aggregate of the remuneration paid or payable or otherwise made available, directly
or indirectly by the entity to those employees;

(e) board/committee member and remuneration information, where a board/committee member
is entitled to receive income from membership other than a direct out-of-pocket
reimbursement.

DTED's Income Statement, Balance Sheet and Statement of Changes in Equity have been prepared on an
accrual basis and are in accordance with historical cost convention.

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared on a cash basis.

The financial report has been prepared based on a 12 month operating cycle and presented in Australian
currency.

Reporting Entity

The entity of DTED operated for the full 12 months ending 30 June 2007 and comprises Departmental
activity, the operations of the South Australian Trade and Investment Corporation (SATIC) and other
overseas representative offices.

DTED's financial statements include the use of assets, income, expenses and liabilities, controlled or
incurred by DTED in its own right.

Transferred Functions

There are no transferred functions during 2006-07. Refer to Note 26 for financial transactions relating to
2005-06.
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(d)

(e)

(7)

(9)

Comparative Information

The presentation and classification of items in the financial report are consistent with prior periods except
where a specific APS or AAS have required a change. Where presentation or classification of items in the
financial report has been amended comparative amounts have been reclassified unless reclassification is
impracticable.

The restated comparative amounts do not replace the original financial report for the proceeding period.

Rounding
All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($'000).

Taxation

DTED is not subject to income tax. DTED is liable for payroll tax, FBT, GST, emergency services levy, land
tax equivalents and local government rate equivalents. Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of
the amount of GST except:

. when the GST incurred on a purchase of goods or services is not recoverable from the Australian
Taxation Office (ATO), in which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the
asset or as part of the expense item applicable; and

. receivables and payables, which are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables or
payables in the Balance Sheet.

Cash flows are included in the Cash Flow Statement on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to the ATO are
classified as part of operating cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to
the ATO. If GST is not payable to, or recoverable from the ATO, the commitments and contingencies are
disclosed on a gross basis.

Income and Expenses
Income and expenses are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the flow of economic benefits to
or from DTED will occur and can be reliably measured.

Income and expenses have been classified according to their nature and have not been offset unless
required or permitted by a specific accounting standard, or where offsetting reflects the substance of the
transaction or other event.

The notes accompanying the financial statements disclose income, expenses, financial assets and financial
liabilities where the counterparty/transaction is with an entity within the SA Government as at the reporting
date, classified according to their nature.

Transactions with SA Government entities below the threshold of $100 000 have been included with the
non-government transactions, classified according to their nature.

The following are specific recognition criteria:

Revenues from (Payments to) SA Government
Appropriations from program funding are recognised as revenues when DTED obtains control over the
funding. Control over appropriations is normally obtained upon receipt.

Payments to the SA Government include the return of surplus cash pursuant to the cash alignment policy.

Contributions Paid

Financial Assistance is provided from State and Commonwealth Funds. Proposals and applications for
funding under various support programs and schemes are subject to specific guidelines and procedures
issued by DTED and the Commonwealth. There several approval delegations dependent upon the level and
nature of assistance provided.

In some cases, the provision of assistance does not involve the direct outlay of funds by DTED. Assistance
packages may involve elements of assistance provided through other government agencies, with DTED
assuming the overall responsibility for the assistance arrangements. Generally, this is through the provision
of purpose built buildings and exemptions or remissions from certain elements of state taxation.

Finance Costs
All finance costs are recognised as expenses. Finance costs were paid to the South Australian Government
Financing Authority for the purchase of land.

Recoveries

DTED recognises other revenues from the partial and full recovery of costs associated with the delivery of
programs.
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(i)

(0)]

(k)

o)

(m)

(n)

Trade and Economic Development

Disposal of Non-Current Assets

Income from the disposal of non-current assets is recognised when the control of the asset has passed to
the buyer and determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. When revalued assets are sold,
the revaluation increments are transferred to retained earnings.

Current and Non-Current Classification

Assets and liabilities are characterised as either current or non-current in nature. Assets and liabilities that
are sold, consumed or realised as part of the normal operating cycle even when they are not expected to be
realised within 12 months after the reporting date have been classified as current assets or current
liabilities. All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

Where asset and liability line items combine amounts expected to be realised within 12 months and more
than 12 months, DTED has separately disclosed the amounts expected to be recovered or settled after
more than 12 months.

Cash
Cash includes cash on hand, cash at bank and deposits held at call that are readily converted to cash and
are used in the cash management function on a day-to-day basis.

Cash is measured at nominal value.

Receivables
Receivables include amounts receivable from trade and other accruals.

Trade receivables arise from the partial or full recovery of costs associated with DTED's delivery of
programs. Trade receivables are generally receivable within 30 days after the issue of an invoice or the
goods/services have been provided under a contractual arrangement.

Collectibility of trade receivables is renewed on an ongoing basis. Debts that are known to be uncollectible
are written off when identified. An allowance for doubtful debts is raised when there is objective evidence
that DTED will not be able to collect the debt.

Financial Assistance Debtors

Amounts outstanding with respect to financial assistance advances by way of loan are brought to account at
their face value. A provision is made where recoverability of amounts is considered doubtful. Conditions
relating to some forms of assistance provide that in certain circumstances, loans can be reduced, forgiven
or converted to grants.

Non-Current Asset Acquisition and Recognition

Assets are initially recorded at cost plus any incidental cost involved with the acquisition. Where assets are
acquired at no value, or minimal value, they are recorded at their fair value in the Balance Sheet. If
however, the assets are acquired at no or nominal value as part of a restructuring of administrative
arrangements then the assets are recorded at the value recorded by the transferor prior to transfer.

Where the payment for an asset is deferred, DTED measures the obligation at the present value of the
future outflow, discounted using the interest rate of a similar length borrowing.

All non-current tangible assets with a value of $2000 or greater are capitalised.

Revaluation of Non-Current Assets

All non-current tangible assets are valued at written down current cost (a proxy for fair value); and
revaluation of non-current assets or a group of assets is only performed when its fair value at the time of
acquisition is greater than $1 million and estimated useful life is greater than three years.

Every three years, DTED revalues its land, buildings and leasehold improvements. However, if at any time
management considers that the carrying amount of an asset materially differs from its fair value then the
asset will be revalued regardless of when the last valuation took place. Non-current tangible assets that are
acquired between revaluations are held at cost until the next valuation, where they are revalued to fair
value.

Impairment

All non-current tangible assets are tested for indication of impairment at each reporting date. Where there
is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated. An amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss.

For revalued assets an impairment loss is offset against the asset revaluation reserve.

Depreciation of Non-Current Assets

All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their useful lives in a
manner that reflects the consumption of their service potential. Depreciation is applied to tangible assets
such as property, plant and equipment.

Assets' residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, on
an annual basis.
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(n)

(o)

(r)

Depreciation of Non-Current Assets (continued)

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are accounted for prospectively by change in the time period or method, as
appropriate, which is a change in the accounting estimate.

The value of leasehold improvements is amortised over the estimated useful life of each improvement, or
the unexpired period of the relevant lease, whichever is shorter.

Land and assets held for sale are not depreciated.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the following

classes of assets as follows
Useful Life

Class of Asset Method (Years)
Leasehold improvements Straight Line Life of lease
Computer equipment Straight Line 3-5
Plant and equipment Straight Line 5-10
Furniture and fittings Straight Line 3-10
Payables

Payables include creditors, accrued expenses and employment on-costs.

Creditors represent the amounts owing for goods and services received prior to the end of the reporting
period that are unpaid at the end of the reporting period. Creditors include all unpaid invoices received
relating to the normal operations of DTED.

Accrued expenses represent goods and services provided by other parties during the period that are unpaid
at the end of the reporting period and where an invoice had not been received prior to the end of the
reporting period.

All payables are measured at their nominal amount, are unsecured non-interest bearing and are normally
settled within 30 days from the date of the invoice or date the invoice is first received.

Employee on-costs include superannuation contributions and payroll tax with respect to outstanding
liabilities for salaries and wages, long service leave and annual leave. Employee on-costs are settled when
respective employee benefits that they relate to are discharged.

DTED makes contributions to several State Government and externally managed superannuation schemes.
These contributions are treated as an expense when they occur. There is no liability for payments to
beneficiaries as they have been assumed by the respective superannuation schemes. The only liability
outstanding at balance date relates to any contributions due but not yet paid to the South Australian
Superannuation Board.

Employee Benefits

These benefits accrue for employees as a result of services provided up to the reporting date that remain
unpaid. Long-term employee benefits are measured at present value and short-term employee benefits are
measured at nominal amounts.

Wages, Salaries, Annual Leave and Sick Leave
Liability for salary and wages are measured as the amount unpaid at the reporting date at remuneration
rates current at reporting date.

The annual leave liability is expected to be payable within 12 months and is measured at the undiscounted
amount expected to be paid. In the unusual event where salary and wages and annual leave are payable
later than 12 months, the liability will be measured at present value.

No provision has been made for sick leave as all sick leave is non-vesting and the average sick leave taken
in future years by employees is estimated to be less than the annual entitlement of sick leave.

Long Service Leave

The liability for long service leave is recognised after an employee has completed six and a half years of
service. An actuarial assessment of long service leave undertaken by the Department of Treasury and
Finance (DTF) based on a significant sample of employees throughout the South Australian public sector
determined that the liability measured using the short-hand method was not materially different from the
liability measured using the present value of expected future payments. This calculation is consistent with
DTED's experience of employee retention and leave taken.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when DTED has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
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Provisions (continued)

When DTED expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision
is presented in the Income Statement net of any reimbursement.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted for the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

(q) Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement. DTED has assessed whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. DTED has entered into an
operating lease in relation to premises for its administrative and operating activities.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Income Statement on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. The straight-line basis is representative of the pattern of benefits derived from the
leased assets.

Financial Risk Management
DTED has non-interest bearing assets (cash on call and receivables) and liabilities (payables). DTED's exposure to
market risk and cash flow interest risk is minimal.

DTED has no significant concentration of credit risk. DTED has policies and procedures in place to ensure that
transactions occur with customers with appropriate credit history.

In relation to liquidity/funding risk, the continued existence of DTED in its present form, and with its present
programs, is dependent on Government policy and on continuing appropriations by Parliament for DTED's
administration and programs.

Changes in Accounting Policies

Except for the amendments to AASB 101, which DTED has early adopted, the AAS and interpretations that have
recently been issued or amended but are not yet effective, have not been adopted by DTED for the reporting
period ending 30 June 2007. DTED has assessed the impact of the new and amended standards and
interpretations and considers there will be no impact on the accounting policies or the financial report of DTED.

Programs of DTED
DTED has identified nine broad programs that reflect the nature of the services delivered to the South Australian
community. These programs and their objectives are:

Program 1: Economic Strategy and Policy Development
The objective of this program is a clear strategic direction for the economic development of South
Australia with a focus on 'workforce' and a business environment that is competitive and supports
development. This will be achieved by promoting partnerships between industry, the community
and other government departments and assessing opportunities and constraints on future
growth. It will also assist in developing industry strategies and economic development policies.

Program 2: Defence Industry Development
The objective of this program is to double defence industry contribution to Gross State Product
and increase defence employment in the State over the coming decade. To achieve these goals
the Defence Unit will focus policy initiatives on detailed plan to help industry take advantage of
defence business opportunities. This plan focuses on the four defence sectors - naval, land force,
aerospace and electronics, as well as identifying strategic workforce development requirements
within the South Australian defence industry.

Program 3: Business Growth
The objective of this program is to promote a competitive and vibrant manufacturing and trade
services sector and work with industry and other stakeholders in addressing issues and
promoting growth. This will be achieved by promoting the development and uptake of new
technologies in partnership with tertiary institutions, facilitating import replacement, and
maximising Australian content in major investment projects and developing and implementing
the strategy for manufacturing.

Program 4: International Market Development
The objective of this program is to maximise export opportunities for South Australian based
companies and to ensure that South Australia's interests are reflected in all trade agreements.
This will be achieved by implementing export strategies, disseminating market intelligence,
providing business matching services, promoting the value of exports to young South Australians
and participating in national trade consultations.

Program 5: Investment Attraction
The objective of this program is to help facilitate major projects and secure new investment in
South Australia. This will be achieved by identifying strategic investment opportunities, working
across South Australian government to reduce impediments to investing in South Australia and
providing high quality services to investors.
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Program 6:

Program 7:

Program 8:

Program 9:

Corporate Leadership, Governance and Support
The objective of this program is to deliver services that are customer focused, timely and
effective and in support of all DTED divisions and offices.

Small Business Growth

The objective of the Small Business program is to ensure that small business issues are
represented at the State Government level and that their interests are taken into account in the
delivery of programs or development of policies. Through partnerships and networks, this
program will deliver advice and training on business management and skills, on the ground
support in emergencies and the promotion of small business in South Australia.

Regional Development

The objective of this program is to improve economic, social and environmental wellbeing in
South Australia's regions. This will be achieved by working in partnership with the three spheres
of government and local communities, in addition to the enhancement of community and
business capacity and the improved coordination of government activities impacting on regions.

Population and Migration

The objective of this program is to work in partnership with the Population Advisory Group and
other government agencies to meet the targets in ‘Prosperity through People - A Population
Policy for South Australia’. This will be achieved by encouraging, promoting and supporting
increased overseas/interstate migration to South Australia, through positive messages about
South Australia's job opportunities, housing affordability, quality education systems, lifestyle and
recreational advantages. The Population Policy Unit will also take a lead role across government
in ‘Prosperity through People - A Population Policy for South Australia’.

6. Employee Benefit Expenses 2007 2006
Note $'000 $'000
Salaries and wages 12 538 10 984
TVSP (refer below) - 568
Long service leave 355 419
Annual leave 989 992
Employment on-costs - Superannuation 1533 1421
Employment on-costs - Other 996 955
Board fees 29 885 773
Total Employee Expenses 17 296 16 112
TVSPs
Amount paid to these employees:
TVSPs - 568
Annual leave and long service leave accrued over the period - 228
- 796
Recovery from DTF - 534
2007 2006
Number of Number of
Employees Employees
Number of employees that were paid TVSPs during the reporting period - 6
Remuneration of Employees
The number of employees whose remuneration received or receivable falls
within the following bands:
$100 000 - $109 999 6 9
$110 000 - $119 999 9 5
$120 000 - $129 999 3 1
$130 000 - $139 999 5 3
$140 000 - $149 999 1 -
$150 000 - $159 999 - 1
$160 000 - $169 999 2 1
$170 000 - $179 999 1 1
$180 000 - $189 999 1 1
$250 000 - $259 999 1 1
$260 000 - $269 999 1 -
Total Number of Employees 30 23

The table includes all employees who received remuneration of $100 000 or more during the year. Remuneration
of employees reflects all costs of employment including salaries and wages, superannuation contributions, FBT and
any other salary sacrifice benefits. The total remuneration received by these employees for the year was

$4.064 million ($2.997 million).
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Supplies and Services 2007 2006
Supplies and Services provided by Entities within the SA Government: Note $’000 $’000
Accommodation and service costs 1402 1452
Accounting and audit fees 11 102 106
Advertising 19 8
Business mentoring and coaching 55 30
Communications and information technology expense 607 646
Contractors 108 5
Consultancies (refer below) 27 114
Property outgoings 364 -
Seminar costs (non-staff) 11 28
Staff related expenses 157 50
Travel and related expenses 431 343
Other office administration expenses 825 1104
Total Supplies and Services - SA Government Entities 4108 3 886
Supplies and Services provided by Entities external to the SA Government:
Accommodation and service costs 672 452
Accounting and audit fees 412 164
Advertising 963 1674
Business mentoring and coaching 779 538
Communications and information technology expense 1 245 963
Contractors 4 809 4911
Consultancies (refer below) 1 369 1 830
Establishment costs of the Centre for Innovation - 243
Overseas trade representation 475 591
Seminar costs (non-staff) 197 422
Staff related expenses 766 681
Travel and related expenses 1622 1333
Other office administration expenses 5510 4917
Total Supplies and Services - Non-SA Government Entities 18 819 18 719
Total Supplies and Services 22927 22 605

The total supplies and services amount disclosed includes GST amounts not recoverable from the ATO due to DTED
not holding a valid tax invoice or payments related to third party arrangements.

The number and dollar amount of consultancies 2007 2006 2007 2006
paid/payable (included in supplies and services expense) Number Number $'000 $'000
that fell within the following bands:

Below $10 000 13 40 54 195
Between $10 000 and $50 000 20 28 481 715
Above $50 000 8 8 861 1034
Total Paid/Payable to the Consultants Engaged 41 76 1 396 1944

Depreciation 2007 2006

$'000 $'000

Plant and equipment 245 236

Buildings and improvements 58 51

Total Depreciation 303 287

Grants and Subsidies
Grants and Subsidies paid/payable to Entities within the SA Government:
Class of assistance:

Industry development 4 945 5218
Regional development boards 60 -
Other 316 197

Total Grants and Subsidies - SA Government Entities 5321 5415

Grants and Subsidies paid/payable to Entities external to the SA Government:
Class of assistance:

Industry development 6 987 9 426
Regional development boards 5180 2 810
Regional infrastructure 4 281 5080
Other 985 569
Total Grants and Subsidies - Non-SA Government Entities 17 433 17 885
Total Grants and Subsidies 22 754 23 300

Other Expenses
Other Expenses paid/payable to Entities external to the SA Government:

Bad and doubtful debts 9 -
Total Other Expenses - Non-SA Government Entities 9 -
Total Other Expenses 9 -
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11. Auditors’ Remuneration 2007 2006
$'000 $'000

Audit fees paid/payable to the Auditor-General’s Department 102 106

Total Audit Fees 102 106

No other services were provided by the Auditor-General’s Department or related practice.

12. Overseas Representative Offices
The following table provides a summary of the financial transactions for the reporting period. The transactions
relating to operating expenses and operating revenues have been included in the financial statements.

2007 2006

SATIC Singapore Dubai Total Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $'000 $’000

Operating expenses 1 058 705 769 2532 2 200

Operating revenues 116 - 92 208 135
Funds advanced to overseas offices

towards operating expenses 863 830 573 2 266 2 390

13. Interest Revenues 2007 2006

$’000 $’000

Interest from entities within SA Government - 1242

Other - Financial assistance debtors 59 2

Other - Overseas offices 31 20

Total Interest Revenues 90 1264

Interest on DTED’s operating account ceased (effective 1 July 2006) as a result of a change to the Government
interest arrangements.

14. Net Gain (Loss) from Disposal of Assets
Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds from disposal 9 009 37
Less: Net book value of assets disposed 9130 31
Total Net (Loss) Gain from Disposal of Assets (121) 6
15. Recoveries
Recoveries received/receivable from Entities within the SA Government:
Recoveries - Shared services 153 149
Recoveries - Other 569 1015
Total Recoveries - SA Government Entities 722 1164

Recoveries received/receivable from Entities external to the SA Government:

Sponsorship revenues 45 76
Recoveries - Rental of property 856 -
Recoveries - Financial assistance grants 138 11
Recoveries - Commonwealth programs 315 192
Recoveries - Seminars 253 158
Recoveries Other 783 439

Total Recoveries - Non-SA Government Entities 2 390 876

Total Recoveries 3112 2 040

16. Revenues from (Payments to) SA Government
Revenues from SA Government:

Appropriations from Consolidated Account pursuant to the Appropriation Act 62 106 46 268

Total Revenues from SA Government 62 106 46 268

Payments to SA Government:
Return of surplus cash pursuant to cash alignment policy 2025 -

Total Payments to SA Government 2025 -

Appropriation received in 2006-07 reflects budgeted cash requirements.

17. Cash
Deposits at call - Westpac 7 856 4 526
Deposits with the Treasurer 7 675 7 444
Deposits at call - Overseas offices 2 255 2 097
Other 6 6
Total Cash 17 792 14 073
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Deposits with the Treasurer
Includes funds held in the Accrual Appropriation Excess Funds Account. The balance of this account is not available
for general use, ie funds can only be used in accordance with the Treasurer's/Under Treasurer's approval.

Interest Rate Risk
Cash on hand is non-interest bearing. Deposits at call and with the Treasurer earn a floating interest rate, based
on daily bank deposit rates. The carrying amount of cash represents fair value.

Receivables 2007 2006
Current: $'000 $'000
Receivables 10 495 11732
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 59 437
GST receivable 1187 1515
Accrued interest on loans and deposits - 20
Total Current Receivables 11 623 12 830
Non-current receivables 5272 4 546
Total Non-Current Receivables 5272 4 546

Total Receivables 16 895 17 376

Government/Non-Government Receivables
Receivables from SA Government Entities:

Receivables 15 593 15 503
Accrued revenues - 20
Total Receivables from SA Government Entities 15 593 15 523
Receivables from Non-SA Government Entities:
Receivables 115 338
GST receivable 1187 1515
Total Receivables from Non-SA Government Entities 1 302 1853
Total Receivables 16 895 17 376

Provision for Doubtful Debts

The provision for doubtful debts (allowance for impairment losses) is recognised when there is objective evidence
that a receivable is impaired. An allowance for impairment loss has been recognised in 'other expenses' in the
Income Statement for specific debtors and debtors assessed on a collective basis for which such evidence exists.

2007 2006

Movements in the provision for Doubtful Debts (Impairment Loss): $'000 $'000
Carrying amount at 1 July (437) (269)
Increase (Decrease) in the provision 369 (168)
Amounts written off 9 -
Carrying Amount at the 30 June (59) (437)

Interest Rate and Credit Risk
Receivables are raised for all goods and services provided for which payment has not been received.

Receivables are normally settled within 30 days. Trade receivables and accrued revenues are non-interest bearing.
It is not anticipated that counterparties will fail to discharge their obligations. The carrying amount of receivables
approximates net fair value due to being receivable on demand. In addition, there is no concentration of credit
risk.

Bad and Doubtful Debts
DTED has recognised a bad and doubtful debt expense of $9000 in the Income Statement.
Financial Assistance Debtors 2007 2006
Current: $'000 $'000
Financial assistance debtors 494 357
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 396 214
Total Current Financial Assistance Debtors 98 143
Non-Current:
Financial assistance debtors 3121 3192
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 2401 2 401
Total Non-Current Financial Assistance Debtors 720 791
Total Financial Assistance Debtors 818 934

Financial assistance is provided to non-SA Government entities only.
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20.

21.

22.

23.

Other Assets 2007 2006
Current: $'000 $'000
Prepayments 104 46
Other - 12
Total Other Current Assets 104 58
Non-Current:
Prepayments 3 -
Total Non-Current Assets 3 -
Total Other Assets 107 58
Non-Current Assets Classified as Held-for-Sale
Current:
Land - 1 099
Total Non-Current Assets Classified as Held-for-Sale - 1 099
Three lots of land at Monarto considered surplus to requirements at 30 June 2006 were sold during 2006-07.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Leasehold Improvements:
Building improvements at fair value 282 256
Accumulated depreciation (109) (51)
Total Leasehold Improvements 173 205
Capital Works in Progress:
Works in progress at cost 205 -
Total Capital Works in Progress 205 -
Plant and Equipment:
Plant and equipment at cost (deemed fair value) 1 200 1212
Accumulated depreciation (729) (627)
Total Plant and Equipment 471 585
Total Property Plant and Equipment 849 790
Impairment
There were no indications of impairment of property, plant and equipment at 30 June 2007.
Reconciliation of Non-Current Assets
The following table shows the movement of Non-Current Assets during 2006-07.
Leasehold Work in Plant and 2007
Land Improvmnts Progress Equipment Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Carrying amount at 1 July - 205 - 585 790
Additions 8 000 26 205 162 8 393
Disposals (8 000) - - (31) (8 031)
Depreciation - (58) - (245) (303)
Carrying Amount at 30 June - 173 205 471 849
Payables 2007 2006
Current: $'000 $'000
Creditors and accrued expenses 2739 962
GST payable - 37
Employee on-costs 267 358
Total Current Payables 3 006 1 357
Non-Current:
Employee on-costs 198 138
Total Non-Current Payables 198 138
Total Payables 3 204 1495
Government/Non-Government Payables
Payables to SA Government Entities:
Creditors and accrued expenses 507 261
Employee on-costs 465 406
Total Payables to other SA Government Entities 972 667
Payables to Non-SA Government Entities:
Creditors and accrued expenses 2 232 701
GST payable - 37
Employee on-costs - 90
Total Payables to Non-SA Government Entities 2 232 828
Total Payables 3 204 1 495
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25.

26.

Employee Benefits
Current:
Accrued salaries and wages
Annual leave
Short-term long service leave
Total Current Employee Benefits
Non-Current:
Long service leave
Total Non-Current Employee Benefits

Total Employee Benefits

Trade and Economic Development

2007 2006
$'000 $'000

241 207
1082 894

373 275
1 696 1376
2 066 1443
2 066 1443
3762 2 819

The total current and non-current employees expense (ie aggregate employee benefit plus related on costs) for

2007 is $1.963 million $2.264 million respectively.

Based on an actuarial assessment performed by the DTF, the benchmark for the measurement of long service

leave liability has been revised from seven years to six and a half years.

Provisions
Current:
Provision for workers compensation

Non-Current:
Provision for workers compensation

Total Provisions

Carrying amount at 1 July
Additional provisions recognised
Payments/other sacrifices of future economic benefits

Carrying Amount at 30 June

2007 2006
$'000 $'000
34 32
94 87
128 119
119 96
61 65
(52) (42)
128 119

A liability has been reported to reflect unsettled workers compensation claims. The workers compensation
provision is based on an actuarial assessment performed by the Public Sector Workforce Wellbeing group within
the Public Sector Workforce Division of the Department of the Premier and Cabinet (DPC). These claims expected

to be settled within the next financial year.

Transferred Functions
Comparative Figures
There were no transferred functions in 2006-07.

A list of assets and liabilities transferred and assumed from other Departments in 2005-06 is detailed herein:

DTF DPC PAMC PIRSA Total

Net Assets assumed (transferred): $'000 $'000 $'000 $’000 $'000
Cash - 197 - - 197
Receivables (5 483) - - - (5 483)
Property, plant and equipment - 4 (688) (6) (690)
Total Assets (5 483) 201 (688) (6) (5 976)
Payables - (30) 6 - (24)
Employee benefits - (236) 41 - (195)
Provisions - (8) - - (8)
Total Liabilities - (274) 47 - (227)
Net Assets (5 483) (73) (641) (6) (6 203)

Summary of Revenue and Expenses

The table below shows the revenue and expenditure from 1 July 2005 to 30 June 2006 relating to functions
transferred for DPC and Department of Primary Industries and Resources (PIRSA).

In relation to transferred functions, transactions have only been recorded in the financial statements for the period

that DTED had control over the transactions.

For the DPC transfer, transactions from 1 October 2005 to 30 June 2006 have been included in the DTED financial
statements. For the PIRSA transfer, transactions from 1 July 2005 to 31 March 2006 have been included in the

DTED financial statements.

DPC DTED DTED PIRSA
01.07.05to 01.10.05to 01.07.05to 01.04.06 to

30.09.05 30.06.06  31.03.06 30.06.06 Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Revenue - (28) (889) (296) (1213)

Expenses 979 4 604 1079 254 6916

Total 979 4576 190 (42) 5 703

1359



Trade and Economic Development

27.

28.

29.

Commitments for Expenditure 2007 2006
Capital Commitments $'000 $'000
Capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as

liabilities in the financial report, are payable as follows:

Within one year 63 52
Later than one year but not longer than five years - 63
Total Capital Commitments 63 115

DTED’s capital commitments are for software development.

Remuneration Commitments

Commitments for the payment of salaries and other remuneration under fixed-term
employment contracts in existence at the reporting date but not recognised as
liabilities are payable as follows:

Within one year 4 374 3842
Later than one year but not longer than five years 4 963 5832
Total Remuneration Commitments 9 337 9674

Amounts disclosed include commitments arising from executive and other service contracts. DTED does not offer
fixed-term remuneration contracts greater than five years.

Operating Lease Commitments
Commitments in relation to operating leases contracted for at the reporting date
but not recognised as liabilities, are payable as follows:

Within one year 1 364 537
Later than one year but not longer than five years 1970 1107
Total Operating Lease Commitments 3334 1 644

Representing:

Cancellable operating leases 378 216
Non-cancellable operating leases 2 956 1428
3 334 1 644

DTED's operating leases are for office accommodation and equipment. Office accommodation is leased from the
Department for Transport, Energy and Infrastructure - Building Management Accommodation Services. The leases
are non-cancellable with terms ranging up to three years with some leases having the right of renewal.

Contingent Assets and Liabilities

Contingent Assets

Where specific conditions relating to a financial assistance grant are not met, DTED may request the amount
granted be repaid by the grantee.

Contingent assets that may arise from these present obligations are unquantifiable at 30 June 2007.

Transfer of Cast Metal Precinct
In previous years, DTED provided funds for the development of land and building Cast Metal Precinct Stage 2.

In the past, the Cast Metal Precinct Stage 2 land was transferred from the Department for Environment and
Heritage to the Land Management Corporation. As at 30 June 2005, DTED recognised a receivable in the balance
sheet of $800 000 with the remaining $190 000 recognised as a contingent asset. As at 30 June 2007 DTED has
recognised a receivable in the balance sheet of $1 026 000 with no contingent asset recognition.

Contingent Liabilities

Guarantees and Indemnities

DTED has provided indemnities at 30 June 2007 relating to various Industry Assistance packages totalling
$11 200 000.

Remuneration of Board and Committee Members

Board and Sitting Fees are paid to some members of the following Boards and Committees:
. Economic Development Board

Defence Industry Advisory Board

Manufacturing Consultative Council

Small Business Development Council

Regional Communities Consultative Council

South Australian Export Council

Board fees are not paid to members of the following Boards and Committees:
. Business and Parliamentary Trust

* In accordance with the Department of the Premier and Cabinet Circular 16, government employees did not
receive any remuneration for board/committee duties during the financial year. These members are indicated
by an asterisk next to their name.
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29. Remuneration of Board and Committee Members (continued)
Members of the Economic Development Board during the financial year were:

David Simmons (Chairman)
Cheryl Bart

Monsignor David Cappo
Wayne Jackson

Michael Hickinbotham

Mike Moore

Fiona Roche

Leanna Read

John Bastian
Grant Belchamber
Bob Hawke
Michael Keating
Justin Milne

Helen Nugent
Kevin Osborn

Members of the Defence Industry Advisory Board during the financial year were:

Peter Cosgrove (Chairman)
Kevin Foley*

David Shackleton

Peter Young

Ian Chessell

Graham Walters

Malcolm Kinnaird

Mike Rann*

Cheryl Bart

Roxley McLennan*

John White (Resigned June 06)
Les Fisher

Andrew Fletcher*

Members of the Manufacturing Consultative Council during the financial year were:

Kevin Foley* (Chairman)
Geoff Blomfield

John Camillo

Lloyd Groves

Stephen Myatt

Meera Verma

Patricia Crook

Karlene Maywald* (Deputy Chairman)
Leon Andrewartha

Chris Field

Luisa Guthrie

Trevor Smith

Chris Stathy

Wayne Hanson

Members of the Small Business Development Council during the financial year were:

Karlene Maywald* (Chairman)
Linda Eldredge

Robert Ferguson

Malcolm Johnson

Susan Lee

Philip Sims

Kym Webber

Liz Davies

Debra Ferguson
Chris Herrmann
Rosemary Kemp
Conor McKenna
Beverley Turner

Members of the Regional Communities Consultative Council during the financial year were:

Peter Blacker (Chairman)
Joy Baluch

Mark Braes

Bill Clifford

Phil Tyler*

Jane Lowe

Jeffrey Mincham
Janet Sawyer
Claire Smith

Ian O'Loan
Jeanette Wormald

Deb Agnew

Bill Boehm

Jeff Burgess
Eugene Hurley
Monica Klein
Bill McIntosh
Heather Moore
Ruth Schubert*
Kym McHugh
Craig Wickham

Members of the South Australian Export Council during the financial year were:

Malcolm May (Chairman)
Anthony Kittel
Gail Fuller

Penny Gale (Business SA representative)

Angelo Kotses

David Williams

Jamie Newlyn (Maritime Union representative)
Paula Nagel

Members of the Business and Parliamentary Trust during the financial year were:

Mike Terlet (Joint Chairman)
Tony Mitchell

Carmel Zollo

Peter Vaughan

Vicki Chapman
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29. Remuneration of Board and Committee Members (continued)
The number of members whose remuneration received or receivable falls within the following bands:

2007 2006

Number Number

$0 - $ 9999 19 21
$10 000 - $19 999 2 5
$20 000 - $29 999 1 2
$30 000 - $39 999 6 -
$40 000 - $49 999 9 11
$60 000 - $69 999 2 1
$80 000 - $89 999 1 -
Total Number of Members 40 40

Remuneration of members reflects all costs of performing board/committee member duties including sitting fees,
superannuation contributions, FBT and any other salary sacrifice arrangements. The total remuneration received or
receivable by members was $929 700 ($823 043).

Amounts paid to a superannuation plan for board/committee members was $44 487 ($50 463).

Unless otherwise disclosed, transactions between members are on conditions no more favourable than those that it
is reasonable to expect the entity would have adopted if dealing with the related party at arm's length in the same
circumstances.

30. Cash Flow Reconciliation
For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash on hand and on deposit includes cash deposits which are used
in the cash management function on a day-to-day basis.

2007 2006
Reconciliation of Cash - Cash at 30 June as per: $'000 $'000
Deposits at call - Westpac 7 856 4 526
Deposits with the Treasurer 7 675 7 444
Deposits at call - Overseas offices 2 255 2 097
Other 6 6
Balance Sheet 17 792 14 073
Reconciliation Net Cash provided by (used in) Operating Activities
to Net Cost of Providing Services:
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 3103 (9 564)
(Loss) Gain from disposals of assets (121) 6
Add (Less): Non-Cash Items:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (303) (287)
Asset write-downs and transfers - (7 284)
Doubtful debts expense (9) -
Conversion of loan to grant - (250)
Prior period adjustments - 976
Changes in Assets/Liabilities (net of restructure transfer):
Decrease in receivables (465) (2 482)
Increase in other assets 48 44
Increase in payables (1773) (95)
Increase in provisions 9) (15)
(Increase) Decrease in employee benefits (1001) 22
Net Cost of Providing Services from Operating Activities (530) (18 929)
31. Events After Balance Date

Pursuant to a proclamation in the Government Gazette dated 23 August 2007, employees of the Defence Unit
within DTED were transferred to Defence SA effective 1 September 2007.
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Disclosure of Administered Items
as at 30 June 2007

2007 2006
$'000 $'000
ADMINISTERED INCOME:

Revenues from SA Government - 395
Total Administered Income - 395

ADMINISTERED EXPENSES:
Employees benefit expenses - 165
Total Administered Expenses - 165
Net Operating Surplus (Deficit) - 230

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE DISCLOSURE OF ADMINISTERED ITEMS

Administered Items of DTED
Administered Items relate to the Minister's salary.

The Government Gazette (dated 23 March 2006) reported the resignation of the previous Minister for Industry and Trade

and the appointment of a new Minister . Due to the change, the former Minister for Industry and Trade's Office budget was
transferred to PIRSA effective from 1 April 2006.
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FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY AND STRUCTURE
Establishment

On 14 January 1999 the TransAdelaide (Corporate Structure) Act 1998 (the Act) was proclaimed. The Act
provides for the continuation of TransAdelaide as a Statutory Corporation to which the provisions of the PCA

apply.

The Act establishes a Board of Directors as the governing body of TransAdelaide.

Functions

TransAdelaide’s primary functions are to provide rail passenger transport services under a rail contract; and

to act as the custodian of the State’s rail passenger transport infrastructure. TransAdelaide’s key objectives
are to:

. ensure efficient, relevant and reliable rail passenger transport services are provided to its customers;
. undertake activities which build customer support and use of the rail passenger transport system;
. maintain infrastructure to a standard that ensures the efficient, safe and reliable delivery of rail

passenger transport services.
Structure

The structure of TransAdelaide is illustrated in the following organisation chart.

Minister for
Transport

TransAdelaide

Board
Audit and Risk Transitolus
Committee P
General
Manager
Corpgrate Infrastructure Organisation Planning and Rail Systems Trams
Services Development Development

Joint Venture

A Joint Venture Agreement has been established between TransAdelaide and Australian Transit Enterprises
Pty Ltd (ATE) to manage a bus contract entered into with the former Passenger Transport Board. The joint
venture is known as the TransAdelaide/ATE joint venture. Commentary on the joint venture relationship is
included later under the heading ‘Further Commentary on Operations’.

Contract to provide Passenger Transport Services
In 2005, TransAdelaide renewed an agreement with the Department for Transport, Energy and Infrastructure

(DTEI) for the provision of rail (ie train and tram) passenger transport services. The term of the agreement is
for a further five years.
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Further commentary on the passenger transport contract is detailed later under the heading ‘Interpretation
and Analysis of the Financial Report’.

Audit and Risk Committee

Section 31 of the PCA, requires a public corporation to establish an Audit Committee which includes members
of the corporation’s Board.

TransAdelaide has established an Audit and Risk Committee comprising three TransAdelaide Board members.
The primary function of the Audit and Risk Committee ‘is to assist the Board in effectively fulfilling
responsibilities for financial reporting, risk management, internal control and achieving good corporate

governance’.

Audit representatives attend Audit and Risk Committee meetings as observers.

AUDIT MANDATE AND COVERAGE
Audit Authority
Audit of the Financial Report

Subsection 31(1)(b) of the PFAA, provides for the Auditor-General to audit the accounts of a public authority.
In addition, subsection 32(4) of the PCA provides for the Auditor-General to audit the accounts of
TransAdelaide in respect of each financial year.

Assessment of Controls

Subsection 36(1)(a)(iii) of the PFAA provides for the Auditor-General to assess the controls exercised by
TransAdelaide in relation to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of
property and the incurring of liabilities.

This assessment also considers whether those controls are consistent with the prescribed elements of the FMF
as required by TI 2.

Scope of Audit

The audit program covered major financial systems to obtain sufficient evidence to form an opinion on the
financial statements and internal controls.

During 2006-07, areas of review included:

salaries and wages
accounts payable
revenue

receipting and banking
non-current assets
inventories.

Audit sought an understanding of internal audit activities to assist in:

. identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial report;

. the design and performance of audit procedures.

AUDIT FINDINGS AND COMMENTS

Auditor’s Report on the Financial Report

In my opinion, the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
TransAdelaide as at 30 June 2007, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the Treasurer’s Instructions promulgated under the provisions of the Public Finance and Audit

Act 1987, the Public Corporations Act 1993, and Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian
Accounting Interpretations).
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Assessment of Controls

In my opinion, the controls exercised by TransAdelaide in relation to the receipt, expenditure and investment
of money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the incurring of liabilities, except for the matters raised
in relation to: Policies and Procedures; Payroll; and Non-Current Assets as outlined under *Communication of
Audit Matters’, are sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that the financial transactions of TransAdelaide
have been conducted properly and in accordance with law.

Communication of Audit Matters

Matters arising during the course of the audit were detailed in a management letter to the General Manager
and Audit and Risk Committee. The response to the management letter was generally considered to be
satisfactory. Major matters raised with TransAdelaide and the related responses are considered herein.
Policies and Procedures

Audit observed a lack of up-to-date documented policies and procedures in the areas of payroll, fixed assets
and expenditure. Although in some cases revised draft procedures had been prepared they had not been
approved. In addition, the corporate governance framework needed to be formalised into a Corporate
Governance Policy.

Payroll

The audit of payroll identified the following issues:

. A lack of independent checking of new and terminated employees on the payroll system resulted in
the risk that invalid employees may be input to the payroll system and be paid.

. There is a lack of independent checking of the validity of all current employees.

. There is no review of payroll data processed to the payroll system which may identify input errors.
Non-Current Assets

The audit of non-current assets identified the following issues:

. A number of system depreciation errors were noted, together with a lack of timely independent review
and correction of depreciation calculations and rates.

. TransAdelaide has not adjusted the Fixed Asset Register to reflect previously capitalised assets that
fall below its revised asset threshold, which is required by both the current and previous Accounting
Standards.

TransAdelaide Response
TransAdelaide responded positively and in detail to all the audit issues raised. The response indicated either

acceptance of issues raised with corrective action implemented or consideration of the matter in the context
of its assessment of risk and resource availability.

INTERPRETATION AND ANALYSIS OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

Highlights of the Financial Report

2007 2006 Percentage
$'million $'million Change

INCOME
Government Funding 2.7 2.4 13
Provision of services 97.2 96.8 -
Other revenue 14.1 34.9 (60)
Total Income 114.0 134.1 (15)
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2007 2006 Percentage

$'million $'million Change
EXPENSES
Employment benefit expenses 42.4 40.1 6
Supplies and services 43.1 40.2 7
Depreciation and amortisation 19.8 21.1 (6)
Other expenses 7.1 16.5 (57)
Total Expenses 1124 117.9 (5)
Profit before Income Tax Equivalents 1.6 16.2 (90)
Income Tax Equivalent Expense 0.5 - -
Net Profit 1.1 16.2 -
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 22.1 51.0 (57)
ASSETS
Current assets 28.0 29.0 (3)
Non-current assets 649.4 651.8 -
Total Assets 677.4 680.8 -
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 21.4 23.3 (8)
Non-current liabilities 105.6 102.9 3
Total Liabilities 127.0 126.2 1
EQUITY 550.4 554.6 (1)

Income Statement
Profit Before Tax Equivalent

The following chart shows the income, expenses and profit/loss before tax for the four years to 2007.
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In 2005 the $18 million loss was due to the recognition of revaluation decrements of $18.4 million following
the implementation of AIFRS and the assessment of revaluation changes for individual non-current as distinct
from a ‘class of assets’.

In 2006, TransAdelaide achieved a $16.2 million profit result before tax. Income increased significantly due
to an amount of $24.6 million in other revenue brought to account (refer to comments under Income) offset
by the change in taxation policy write-off of $10.5 million (refer to comments under ‘Expenses’).
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Income

As TransAdelaide’s primary functions are to provide rail passenger transport services under a contract, its
main operating revenue is Provision of Services with Government funding and other revenue being less
significant.

The previous table, ‘Highlights of the Financial Report’, shows a consistency of operating revenues for the
provision of services due to the minimal increases allowable under the passenger transport contract.

Contract Income - DTEI Contract

The DTEI contract requires TransAdelaide to provide passenger services in the specified service area in return
for contract payments. The contract payments are based on a fixed component plus an incentive component
based on patronage. There are also penalties for late running. All ticket revenue collected by TransAdelaide
is remitted to DTEI.

In addition, under the contract TransAdelaide must maintain public liability insurance, comprehensive motor
vehicle insurance and compulsory third party insurance.

Contract Income - Financial Dependence

Income of $93.6 million ($93.1 million) from DTEI for the provision of passenger services represented
82 percent (69 percent) of TransAdelaide’s income. A high degree of financial dependency relates to
maintaining and securing future contracts of service.

Other Revenue

The decrease in other revenue of $20.8 million for 2007 was due predominately to the write-back of
capitalised grants to revenue of $24.6 million in the 2006 year. This money was received from DTEI for
upgrading the Glenelg Tram Line infrastructure assets. The upgraded infrastructure assets were sold to DTEI
during 2006 and funding that was recorded as a liability in the Balance Sheet was written-back to revenue in
that year.

Expenses

For the four years to 2007, a structural analysis of the main operating expense items for TransAdelaide is
shown in the following chart.

140
120 r
100 r
$63m $57m
.S 80 | $43m $50m
;i 60 r
$21m $21m $21m $20m
40 1
20 $40m $39m $40m $42m
0 1 1 1
2004 2005 2006 2007

O Supplies and services and other expenses
O Depreciation and amortisation
O Employee benefit expenses

The chart indicates the following:
. The consistency of the costs incurred for employment expenses.

. The consistency of the depreciation charge.
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. A decrease of $7 million in supplies and services and other expenses in 2007. In 2006, a
$10.5 million expense was recorded for the net future tax benefit write-off following TransAdelaide’s
change in taxation policy from the Deferred Tax Accounting model in 2005 to the Accounting Profits

model in 2006 in compliance with TI 22.

. Supplies and services and other expenses were significantly higher in 2005 due to the revaluation
decrements of $18.4 million (see previous comments on Profit Before Tax Equivalent).

Balance Sheet

For the four years to 2007, a structural analysis of assets and liabilities is shown in the following chart.

800
$30m
$29m $28m
$20m
600
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S
T 400 ¢
- $601m $699m $652m $649m
200 r $26m $30m $23m $21m
$114m $125m $103m $106m
0
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O Non-current assets O Non-current liabilities
O Current assets E Current liabilities

Assets and Liabilities

The reduction in non-current assets from 2005 to 2006 reflects the transfer of the Glenelg Tram Line
infrastructure assets from TransAdelaide to DTEI.

The increase in non-current assets from 2004 to 2005 reflects the revaluation of those assets.
Cash Flow Statement

The following table summarises the net cash flows for the four years to 2007.

2007 2006 2005 2004
$'million $'million $'million $'million

Net Cash Flows
Operations 22.1 51.0 25.1 17.0
Investing (18.2) (2.5) (14.3) (9.7)
Financing (5.3) (40.9) (7.7) (7.7)
Change in Cash (1.4) 7.6 3.1 (0.4)
Cash at 30 June 20.7 22.1 14.5 11.4

The inflow from operating activity decrease in 2007 of $28.9 million was due to government funding provided
in the previous year (on a cash basis) of $27.5 million mainly for the upgrade of the Glenelg tram line prior to
its disposal in 2006.

The cash flow from operations reflects the fact that a smaller profit result is converted to a larger cash inflow
from operating activities as a result of the add-back of the main non-cash item being depreciation and
amortisation of $20 million. In 2007, cash flow from operating activities of $22.1 million and a reduction in
cash of $1.4 million was used to finance the following:

. Purchases of property, plant and equipment $19.7 million
. Dividend payments of $5.3 million.
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FURTHER COMMENTARY ON OPERATIONS

Joint Venture Relationship

In 1999-2000 TransAdelaide and ATE equally invested capital to form a company called Transitplus Pty Ltd to
bid for passenger service contracts in the Adelaide Hills. Transitplus Pty Ltd was awarded a contract for the
provision of bus passenger transport services in the Hills metroticket area and the Mount Barker country area.
Transitplus Pty Ltd’s operations are governed by the Corporations Act 2001 and a Board comprising two
representatives each from TransAdelaide and ATE. The nature and scope of its activities are defined within
the Transitplus Pty Ltd constitution.

The following diagram illustrates the joint venture relationship:

] ATE 50% Control 50% Control TransAdelaide [
A A
A
TransAdelaide/ATE
Joint Venture
——  50% Profits — —— 50% Profits ——
| A
50% Control ‘ i 50% Control
Direction |
i Distribution of
3 Profits
v 3
a| Transitplus Pty Ltd |

(Manager)

In 2007, TransAdelaide has brought to account $942 000 ($972 000) for its share of net profit from the joint
venture.
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Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2007

TransAdelaide

INCOME:

Note

Revenues from the provision of services
Appropriation from SA Government
Financial income
Net gain (loss) from the disposal of assets
Other revenues
Income from joint venture

Total Income

EXPENSES:

Employee benefit expenses
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Finance costs
Other expenses
Change in taxation policy
Total Expenses

Profit before income tax equivalents
Income tax equivalent expense
NET PROFIT AFTER INCOME TAX EQUIVALENTS

10
11
26

12
15
16
17
18
19

19

2007 2006
$'000 $'000
97 166 96 779
2 669 2 356

1 400 984
376 (891)

11 473 33 846
942 972
114 026 134 046
42 450 40 118
43 123 40 181
19 806 21 123
5411 5956
1621 (20)

- 10 531

112 411 117 889
1615 16 157
(484) -
1131 16 157

Net Profit after Income Tax Equivalents is attributable to the SA Government as owner
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Balance Sheet
as at 30 June 2007

ASSETS:
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Inventories
Total Current Assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Intangible assets

Investment accounted for using the equity method

Total Non-Current Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables
Short-term employee benefits
Short-term provisions
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Long-term borrowings
Long-term employee benefits
Long-term provisions
Government grants
Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS

EQUITY:
Contributed capital
Asset revaluation reserve
Retained earnings
TOTAL EQUITY

Total Equity is attributable to the SA Government as owner

Commitments for expenditure
Contingent assets and liabilities

Note

20
21
22

23
24
25
26

28
30
31
32

29
30
31
33

34

35
36

2007 2006
$'000 $'000
20 670 22 106
2393 2 550

4 886 4 309
27 949 28 965
638 763 640 461
10 322 11 074
156 114

200 200

649 441 651 849
677 390 680 814
10 883 12 404
7 627 7 646

2 655 2 837
271 419

21 436 23 306
75 205 75 205
11 094 10 531
10 520 10 551
8 735 6 656
105 554 102 943
126 990 126 249
550 400 554 565
469 278 474 510
81 122 80 055
550 400 554 565
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2007

TransAdelaide

Balance at 30 June 2005

Error correction

Restated balance at 30 June 2005
Loss on revaluations during 2005-06

Net income (expense) recognised directly in equity for 2005-06

Profit after income tax equivalent for 2005-06

Total Recognised Income and Expenses for 2005-06

Transferred to retained profits amounts realised on disposal
of assets

Dividends to SA Government

Balance at 30 June 2006

Error correction

Restated balance at 30 June 2006

Profit after income tax equivalent for 2006-07

Total Recognised Income and Expenses for 2006-07

Transferred to retained profits amounts realised on disposal
of assets

Dividends to SA Government

Balance at 30 June 2007

Note

18

34

34

18,24

34
8(b)

All Changes in Equity are attributable to the SA Government as owner

Asset

Revaluation Retained
Reserve Earnings Total
$'000 $'000 $'000
482 635 91 397 574 032
- (806) (806)
482 635 90 591 573 226
(61) - (61)
(61) - (61)
- 14 855 14 855
(61) 14 855 14 794
(8 064) 8 064 -
- (34 757) (34 757)
474 510 78 753 553 263
- 1302 1302
474 510 80 055 554 565
- 1131 1131
- 1131 1131
(5 232) 5232 -
- (5 296) (5 296)
469 278 81 122 550 400
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2007

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
CASH INFLOWS:
Receipts from the sale of goods and services
Interest received
Receipts from SA Government
Dividends received
GST input tax credits claimed
Other receipts
Cash generated from Operations
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Employee benefit payments
Supplies and services
Interest paid
Income tax equivalents paid
GST payments on purchases
GST remitted to Australian Taxation Office
Cash used in Operations
Net Cash provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
CASH INFLOWS:
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of investments
Cash generated from Investing Activities
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangibles
Cash used in Investing Activities
Net Cash used in Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
CASH OUTFLOWS:

Dividends paid

Repayment of borrowings

Net Cash used in Financing Activities
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JULY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 30 JUNE

2007 2006
Inflows Inflows
(Outflows) (Outflows)
Note $'000 $'000
97 322 97 852
1383 970

5 454 20 832

999 971

10 700 15772

10 821 16 813
126 679 153 210
(42 489) (41 311)
(41 850) (42 831)
(5 434) (5992)
(694) -

(5 863) (6 756)

(8 303) (5 283)
(104 633) (102 173)
37 22 046 51 037
34 34 388

1 588 -
1622 34 388

(19 667) (36 894)
(141) -

(19 808) (36 894)
(18 186) (2 506)
(5 296) (34 757)

- (6 166)

(5 296) (40 923)
(1436) 7 608

22 106 14 498

20 20 670 22 106
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Objectives of TransAdelaide

TransAdelaide was established as a Public Authority under the TransAdelaide (Corporate Structure) Act 1998 in
January 1999. TransAdelaide also has a 50 percent interest in Transitplus Pty Ltd, a joint venture entity
established for the provision of bus services through the Adelaide Hills.

TransAdelaide is a Body Corporate subject to the provisions of the PCA. The TransAdelaide (Corporate Structure)
Act 1998 provides that TransAdelaide’s principal activity is to operate passenger transport services, an activity that
continued to be the primary focus throughout the year.

Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of Accounting
The financial report is a general purpose financial report. The accounts have been prepared in accordance
with applicable AASs and TIs and APSs promulgated under the provision of the PFAA.

AASs include AIFRS. TransAdelaide has early-adopted the amendments to AASB 101. Refer to Note 4.

TransAdelaide’s Income Statement, Balance Sheet and Statement of Changes in Equity have been prepared
on an accrual basis and are in accordance with historical cost convention, except for certain assets that
were valued in accordance with the valuation policy applicable.

The preparation of the financial report requires:

. the use of certain accounting estimates and requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying TransAdelaide’s accounting policies. The areas involving high degrees of
judgement or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, these
are outlined in the applicable notes;

. compliance with APSs issued pursuant to section 41 of the PFAA, by authority of TI 19. In the
interest of public accountability and transparency the APSs require the following note disclosures,
that have been included in this financial report:

(a) revenues, expenses, financial assets and liabilities where the counterparty/transaction is
with an entity within the SA Government as at reporting date, classified according to
their nature. A threshold of $100 000 for separate identification of these items applies;

(b) expenses incurred as a result of engaging consultants;
(c) employee TVSP information;
(d) employees whose normal remuneration is $100 000 or more (within $10 000

bandwidths) and the aggregate of remuneration paid or payable or otherwise made
available, directly or indirectly by the entity to those employees.

The financial report has been prepared on a 12 month operating cycle and presented in Australian currency.

Comparative Information
The presentation and classification of items in the financial report are consistent with prior periods except
where a specific APS or AAS has required a change.

Where presentation or classification of items in the financial report has been amended, comparative
amounts have been reclassified unless reclassification is impracticable.

The restated comparative amounts do not replace the original financial report for the preceding period.

Rounding
All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($'000).

Taxation

In accordance with TI 22, TransAdelaide is required to pay to the State Government an income tax
equivalent. The income tax liability is based on the State Taxation Equivalent Regime, which applies the
accounting profit method. This requires that the corporate income tax rate be applied to the net profit.
The current income tax liability relates to the income tax outstanding for the current period.

TransAdelaide is liable for payroll tax, FBT, GST, emergency services levy, land tax equivalents and local
government rate equivalents.

Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:
. when the GST incurred on a purchase of goods or services is not recoverable from the Australian

Taxation Office, in which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
or as part of the expense item applicable;

. receivable and payables, which are stated with the amount of GST included.
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(d)

(e)

Taxation (continued)
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Tax Office is included as part of
receivables or payables in the Balance Sheet.

Cash flows are included in the Cash Flow Statement on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows
arising form investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Tax
Office is classified as part of the operating cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to,
the Australian Tax Office. If GST is not payable to, or recoverable from, the Australian Tax Office, the
commitments and contingencies are disclosed on a gross basis.

Income and Expenses
Income and expenses are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the flow of economic benefits to
or from the entity will occur and can be reliably measured.

Income and expenses have been classified according to their nature and have not been offset unless
required or permitted by a specific accounting standard, or where offsetting reflects the substance of the
transaction or other event.

The notes accompanying the financial statements disclose income, expenses, financial assets and financial
liabilities where the counterparty/transaction is with an entity within the SA Government as at the reporting
date, classified according to their nature.

Transactions with SA Government entities below the threshold of $100 000 have been included with the
non-government transactions, classified according to their nature.

Revenues from Fees and Charges and from the Provision of Services

Revenues from fees and charges and the provision of services are derived from goods and services to the
public and other SA government agencies. This revenue is recognised upon delivery of the service to the
clients or by reference to the stage of completion.

Services directly related to the provision of rail services are disclosed under Note 7. Other services provided
on an ad hoc basis are disclosed as ‘Other Income’ under Note 11.

Revenues from Sales
Revenues from sales are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to
the purchaser.

Rental Income
Rental income arising on investment properties is accounted for on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Revenues from the SA Government
Grants from the Government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and TransAdelaide will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to capital expenditure are deferred and recognised in the Income Statement
over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.
Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are recognised as deferred
income and are credited to the Income Statement on a straight line basis over the expected lives of the
related assets.

Where money has been received in the form of a loan, TransAdelaide has recorded a loan receivable.
Where money has been received in the form of an equity contribution, the Treasurer has acquired a
financial interest in the net assets of TransAdelaide and the funding is recorded as contributed equity.

Other Contributions

All contributions from non-government entities are recognised as income when TransAdelaide obtains
control of the contribution or the right to receive the contribution and the income recognition criteria are
met.

All contributions paid by TransAdelaide have been unconditional.

Disposal of Non-Current Assets

Income from the disposal of non-current assets is recognised when control of the asset has passed to the
buyer and is determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. When revalued assets are sold, the
revaluation increments are transferred to retained earnings.

Resources received/provided Free of Charge

Resources received/provided free of charge are recorded as revenue/expenditure in the Income Statement
at their fair value.
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TransAdelaide

Maintenance Expenses

TransAdelaide undertakes major cyclical maintenance on its infrastructure assets. All costs involved with
the major cyclical maintenance are recorded as an expense unless they add to the service potential of the
existing infrastructure asset.

Finance Costs
All finance costs are recognised as an expense.

Current and Non-Current Classification

Assets and liabilities are characterised as either current or non-current in nature. TransAdelaide has a
clearly identifiable operating cycle of 12 months. Assets and liabilities that are sold, consumed or realised
as part of the normal operating cycle even when they are not expected to be realised within 12 months
after the reporting date have been classified as current assets or current liabilities. All other assets and
liabilities are classified as non-current.

Where asset and liability line items combine amounts expected to be realised within 12 months and more
than 12 months, TransAdelaide has separately disclosed the amounts expected to be recovered or settled
after more than 12 months.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet includes cash at bank and on hand and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes of value.

For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above.

Cash is measured at nominal value.

Receivables
Receivables include amounts receivable from trade, prepayments and other accruals.

Trade receivables arise in the normal course of selling goods and services to the public and other agencies.
Trade receivables are generally receivable within 30 days after the issue of an invoice or the goods/services
have been provided under a contractual arrangement.

Collectibility of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts that are known to be uncollectible
are written off when identified. An allowance for doubtful debts is raised when there is objective evidence
that TransAdelaide may not be able to collect the debt.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or their net realisable value. Cost is allocated in accordance
with the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value is determined using the estimated sales
proceeds less costs incurred in marketing, selling and distribution to customers.

The amount of any inventory write-down to net realisable value/replacement cost or inventory losses are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurred. Any write-down reversals are
recognised as an expense reduction.

Inventories include train, tram and infrastructure spare parts.

Non-Current Asset Acquisition and Recognition

Assets are initially recorded at cost or at the value of any liabilities assumed, plus any incidental cost
involved with the acquisition. Where assets are acquired at no value, or minimal value, they are recorded
at their fair value in the Balance Sheet. If, however, the assets are acquired at no or nominal value as part
of a restructuring of administrative arrangements then the assets are recorded at the value recorded by the
transferor prior to transfer.

Where payment for an asset is deferred, TransAdelaide measures the obligation at the present value of the
future outflow, discounted using the interest rate of a similar length borrowing.

All non-current tangible assets with a value of $4000 or above are capitalised.

Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment
All non-current tangible assets are valued at written down cost, and revaluation of non-current assets or
group of assets is only performed when its fair value at the time of acquisition is greater than $1 million and
the estimated useful life is greater than three years.

Every five years, TransAdelaide revalues its land and buildings. However, if at any time management
considers that the carrying amount of an asset materially differs from its fair value, then the asset will be
revalued regardless of when the last valuation took place. Non-current tangible assets that are acquired
between valuations are held at cost until the next valuation, where they are revalued to fair value.

Any revaluation increment is credited to the asset revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses

a revaluation decrement of the same asset class previously recognized in the Income Statement, in which
case the increase is recognised in the Income Statement.
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(k)

Q)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Any revaluation decrease is recognised in the Income Statement, except to the extent that it offsets a
previous revaluation increase for the same asset class, in which case the decrease is debited directly to the
asset revaluation reserve to the extent of the credit balance existing in revaluation reserve for that asset
class.

TransAdelaide uses the gross method of revaluation where the gross asset value and the accumulated
depreciation are both restated to the revalued amounts of the assets.

Upon disposal or derecognition, any revaluation reserve relating to the asset is transferred to retained
earnings.

Impairment

All non-current tangible and intangible assets are tested for indication of impairment at each reporting date.
Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated. An amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss.

For revalued assets an impairment loss is offset against the asset revaluation reserve to the extent of any
revaluation credit for that asset within the reserve.

Depreciation and Amortisation of Non-Current Assets
All non-current assets, having a limited useful life, are systematically depreciated/amortised over their
useful lives in a manner that reflects the consumption of their service potential.

Amortisation is used in relation to intangible assets such as software, while depreciation is applied to
tangible assets such as property, plant and equipment.

Assets’ residual values, useful lives and amortisation methods are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, on
an annual basis.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are accounted for prospectively by changing the time period, or method, as
appropriate, which is a change in accounting estimate.

The value of leasehold improvements is amortised over the estimated useful life of each improvement, or
the unexpired period of the relevant lease, whichever is shorter.

Land and assets held for sale are not depreciated.

Depreciation/amortisation is calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the following
classes of assets as follows:

Class of Assets Depreciation Method Useful Life (Years)
Rollingstock:

Railcars Straight line 20 - 42

Tramcars Straight line 10 - 87
Buildings Straight line 10 - 100
Permanent way Straight line 20 - 242
Machinery, plant and equipment Straight line 3-100
Intangibles Straight line 3

Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. Intangible assets are
measured at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. TransAdelaide only has
intangible assets with finite lives. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible
assets is reviewed on an annual basis.

The acquisition of, or internal development of software is capitalised only when the expenditure meets the
definition criteria (identifiability, control and the existence of future economic benefits) and recognition
criteria (probability of future economic benefits and reliable measurement and when the amount of
expenditure is greater than or equal to $4000).

All research and development costs that do not meet the capitalisation criteria outlined in AASB 138 are
expensed.

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets has not been capitalised. This is because TransAdelaide has
been unable to attribute this expenditure to the intangible asset rather than to TransAdelaide as a whole.

Investment Property

Investment property, principally comprising of freehold land, is held for a long-term yield and is not
occupied by TransAdelaide. Investment property is carried at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded
in the Income Statement as part of other income.
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Payables
Payables include creditors, accrued expenses and employment on-costs.

Creditors represent the amounts owing for goods and services received prior to the end of the reporting
period that are unpaid at the end of the reporting period. Creditors include all unpaid invoices received
relating to the normal operations of TransAdelaide.

Accrued expenses represent goods and services provided by other parties during the period that are unpaid
at the end of the reporting period and where an invoice has not been received.

All payables are measured at their nominal amount and are normally settled within 30 days from the date
of the invoice or date the invoice is first received.

Employment on-costs include superannuation contributions and payroll tax with respect to outstanding
liabilities for salaries and wages, long service leave and annual leave.

TransAdelaide makes contributions to several State Government and externally managed superannuation
schemes. These contributions are treated as an expense when they occur. There is no liability for
payments to beneficiaries as they have been assumed by the respective superannuation schemes. The only
liability outstanding at balance date relates to any contributions due but not yet paid.

Employee Benefits

These benefits accrue for employees as a result of services provided up to the reporting date that remain
unpaid. Long-term employee benefits are measured at present value and short-term employee benefits are
measured at nominal amounts.

Wages, Salaries, Annual Leave and Sick Leave
Liability for salaries and wages are measured as the amount unpaid at the reporting date at remuneration
rates current at reporting date.

The annual leave liability is expected to be payable within 12 months and is measured at the undiscounted
amount expected to be paid. In the unusual event where salary and wages and annual leave are payable
later than 12 months, the liability will be measured at present value.

No provision has been made for sick leave as all sick leave is non-vesting and the average sick leave taken
in future years by employees is estimated to be less than the annual entitlement of sick leave.

Long Service Leave

The liability for long service leave is recognised after an employee has completed six and a half years of
service. An actuarial assessment of long service leave undertaken by the Department of Treasury and
Finance based on a significant sample of employees throughout the South Australian public sector
determined that the liability measured using the short-hand method was not materially different from the
liability measured using the present value of expected future payments. This calculation is consistent with
TransAdelaide’s experience of employee retention and leave taken.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement. TransAdelaide has assessed whether the fulfiiment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. TransAdelaide has
entered into operating leases.

Operating Leases

Operating leases are recognised as an expense in the Income Statement on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. The straight-line basis is representative of the pattern of benefits derived from the leased
assets.

Insurance

TransAdelaide has arranged, through the South Australian Government Financing Authority, SAICORP
Division, to insure all major risks of TransAdelaide, excluding the Adelaide Railway Station Building, which is
insured through Aon Services Pty Ltd (Aon).

The excess payable with Aon varies depending on the aspect of risk insured. There is a standard $1 million
excess on all insurance cover with SAICORP.

Joint Venture

In TransAdelaide’s financial statements the investment in joint venture entity is carried at the lower of cost
or recoverable amount. TransAdelaide’s share of the joint venture entity’s net profit or loss is recognised in
the Income Statement from the date joint control commenced.

The economic entity’s investment in joint venture entity is based upon the equity method of accounting for
investment in associates as per AASB 128.
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3.

Financial Risk Management
TransAdelaide is exposed to a variety of financial risks, market risk (foreign exchange and price), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

Risk management is carried out by the Corporate Services unit and risk management policies and practices are in
accordance with Australian Risk Management Standards and internal written policies approved by the Board.

TransAdelaide has non-interest bearing assets (cash on hand and on call and receivables) and liabilities (payables)
and interest bearing assets (held to maturity investments) and liabilities (borrowings from the SA Government).

TransAdelaide’s exposure to foreign exchange risk and cash flow interest risk is minimal. TransAdelaide is exposed
to price risk for changes in interest rates that relate to long-term debt obligations and investments classified either
as available-for-sale or fair value.

TransAdelaide has no significant concentration of credit risk. TransAdelaide has policies and procedures in place to
ensure that transactions occur with customers with appropriate credit history.

In relation to liquidity/funding risk, the continued existence of TransAdelaide in its present form, and with its
present segments/services, is dependent on SA Government policy and on continuing capital appropriations by
Parliament to maintain TransAdelaide’s asset base/programs.

Changes in Accounting Policies

Except for the amendments to AASB 101, which TransAdelaide has early-adopted, the AASs and Interpretations
that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet effective, have not been adopted by TransAdelaide for
the reporting period ending 30 June 2007. TransAdelaide has assessed the impact of the new and amended
standards and interpretations and considers there will be no impact on the accounting policies or the financial
report of TransAdelaide.

Segment Information
TransAdelaide operations fully relate to the provision of public transportation services in the Adelaide metropolitan
area.

Reclassifications
Reclassification of Income and Expenses
To better reflect the total income and expenses:

. contract penalties previously reported as expenses have been reclassified to show as a reduction to
revenues from the provision of services from entities within SA Government;

. revenue from ad hoc project work previously netted against various expense items have been identified
and shown as other revenue, resulting in an offsetting increase to the underlying employee benefits and
supplies and services expense items.

Reclassification between Income Lines 2006
To better reflect the true nature of the income received: Note $'000
Other Revenues from Entities within SA Government: 11
Other services provided to Department for Transport, Energy 1 655
and Infrastructure (DTEI)
Amortisation of capitalised funding grants 305
Write-off of capitalised grants when asset disposed 24 558

Other services provided to DTEI includes items previously classified as recurrent grants, other income and
provision of other services, the classification has been changed as the income is received for the provision of
services outside of the provision of rail services.

2006
Other Revenues from Entities external to SA Government: $'000
Property rental 514

Advertising revenue previously classified as revenues from the provision of services is now included in Property
rental in Other Revenues.

Reclassification of Costs
The following reclassifications have occurred to reflect the true nature of costs incurred.

2006
Supplies and Services: Note $’000
Other employment costs 12,15 487

These costs now included within Employee Expenses had previously been accounted for within Supplies and
Services.
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7. Revenues from the Provision of Services 2007 2006
Note $'000 $'000
Services received by entities within SA Government 93 555 93 127
Services received by entities external to the SA Government 3611 3 652
Total Revenues from the Provision of Services 6 97 166 96 779

8. Revenues from (Payments to) SA Government

(a) Revenues from SA Government
Included in the Income Statement:
Appropriation from Consolidated Account pursuant to the

Appropriation Act 2 669 2 356
Included in Balance Sheet movements:
Grants for capital expenditure 33 2753 20 060

(b) Payments to SA Government
Dividends paid 5 296 34 757

Dividends paid and payable have been specifically determined and approved in consultation with the
Treasurer and TransAdelaide’s Minister.

Special Dividends paid during 2006-07

$2.3 million relates to an ongoing arrangement, $1.4 million for the tram asset sale and $660 000 for the
sale of land. These special dividends were paid to the SA Government’s Consolidated Account on
29 June 2007.

An ordinary dividend of $971 000 was paid by TransAdelaide for 2006-07.

9. Financial Income 2007 2006
$'000 $'000
Interest received/receivable from entities within SA Government 1400 984
Total Financial Income 1 400 984
10. Net (Loss) Gain from the Disposal of Assets
Rollingstock:
Proceeds from disposal 8 78
Less: Net book value of assets disposed 95 96
Net Loss from Disposal of Rollingstock (87) (18)
Permanent Way:
Proceeds from disposal* - 31485
Less: Net book value of assets disposed 86 32 200
Net Loss from Disposal of Permanent Way (86) (715)
Land and Buildings:
Proceeds from disposal 18 2619
Less: Net book value of assets disposed 48 2 619
Net Loss from Disposal of Land and Buildings (30) -
Other Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds from disposal 8 143
Less: Net book value of assets disposed 7 152
Net Gain (Loss) from Disposal of Other Property,
Plant and Equipment 1 (9)
Investment Properties:
Proceeds from disposal 1 588 -
Less: Net book value of assets disposed 1010 149
Net Gain (Loss) from Disposal of Investment Properties 578 (149)
Total Assets:
Total proceeds from disposal* 1622 34 325
Less: Total value of assets disposed 1 246 35 216
Total Net Gain (Loss) from Disposal of Assets 376 (891)

* On 26 June 2006 the Acting Treasurer approved the sale of tram related infrastructure assets by TransAdelaide
to DTEI for consideration of $32.5 million. These asset sales include Permanent Way, Land and Buildings and
Other Plant and Equipment asset classes.
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11. Other Revenues 2007 2006
Other Revenues from Entities external to the SA Government: Note $'000 $'000
Property rental 4 250 3711

Fair value adjustment to investment properties 258 496

Other revenue 2 290 2 325

Total Revenues from Entities external to the SA Government 6 798 6 532

Other Revenues from Entities within the SA Government:

Other services provided to DTEI 6 3 071 1 655
Property rental 930 796
Amortisation of capitalised funding grants 6 521 305
Write-off of capitalised grants when asset disposed 6 153 24 558
Total Revenues from Entities within the SA Government 4 675 27 314
Total Other Revenue 11 473 33 846

Future minimum payments receivable from non-cancellable operating leases of non-investment properties are:
(i) within one year $2 992 000

(i) between two and five years $8 480 000

(iii) later than five years $24 456 000

Leases include advertising and display sites, mobile telephone transmitters and real estate with tenancies ranging
from monthly to 95 years, whilst providing for regular reviews.

12. Employee Benefit Expenses 2007 2006
Note $'000 $'000
Salaries and wages 31 260 28 573
TVSPs (refer below) - 183
Long service leave 1393 1 688
Annual leave 3 033 2991
Block book off 564 581
Retiring and death gratuity 7 14
Employee on-costs - Superannuation 3526 3411
Employee on-costs - Payroll tax 1796 2 051
Employee on-costs - Other 6 733 487
Board fees 138 139
Total Employee Benefit Expenses 6 42 450 40 118
TVSPs
Amounts paid to these Employees:
TVSPs - 183
Annual leave and long service leave paid during the reporting period - 89
- 272
Recovery from the Department of Treasury and Finance - (183)

Number of Number of
Employees Employees

Number of employees who were paid TVSPs during the reporting period - 1
Remuneration of Employees 2007 2006
$'000 $'000
Total Remuneration for employees greater than $100 000 3954 3188
2007 2006
The number of employees whose remuneration falls Number of Number of
within the following remuneration bands were: Employees Employees
$100 000 - $109 999 16 7
$110 000 - $119 999 4 7
$120 000 - $129 999 3 3
$130 000 - $139 999 4 3
$140 000 - $149 999 1 -
$160 000 - $169 999 1 -
$170 000 - $179 999 2 1
$190 000 - $199 999 - 1
$240 000 - $249 999 - 1
$250 000 - $259 999 -
$280 000 - $289 999 - 1
32 24
This table includes:
o all employees who received remuneration of $100 000 or more during the year. Remuneration of

employees reflects all costs of employment including salaries and wages, superannuation contributions,
FBT and any other salary sacrifice benefits.

. a TVSP payment in 2006 (included in $280 000 - $289 999 band).
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14.
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Key Management Personnel

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Board Members
The following persons held the position of board member during the financial year:

Ms V Hickey Mr K Benger
Ms F Magill Ms L Kosmala
Mr R Jowett

Other Key Management Personnel
The following persons also held authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of TransAdelaide, directly or indirectly during the financial year:

Bill Watson General Manager

Suzanne Ridding Executive Manager - Corporate Services

Vi Nguyen Executive Manager - Infrastructure

Fiona Kidd Executive Manager - Organisation Development
Randall Barry Executive Manager - Planning and Development
Valdis Evele Executive Manager - Rail Systems

James Hall Executive Manager - Trams

Dean Phillips Acting Executive Manager - Rollingstock

Key Management Personnel Compensation
Key management personnel compensation for the years ended 30 June 2006 and 2007 is set out below:

The key management personnel are the board members and the senior management team (including the
General Manager) who have responsibility for the strategic direction and management of TransAdelaide.

2007 2006

$'000 $'000

Short-term employee benefits 1301 1 250
Remuneration of Board Members 2007 2006
The number of board members whose remuneration received or Number of Number of
receivable falls within the following bands: Board Board
Members Members

$20 000 - $29 999 3 3
$30 000 - $39 999 1 1
$40 000 - $49 999 1 1
5 5

The total remuneration received and receivable by those board members was $138 000 ($139 000) which
includes fringe benefits and superannuation contributions.

Amounts paid to a superannuation plan for board members was $44 000 ($31 000)

In accordance with the Department of the Premier and Cabinet Circular 16, government employees did not
receive any remuneration for board duties during the financial year.

Unless otherwise disclosed, transactions between members are on conditions no more favourable than
those that it is reasonable to expect the entity would have adopted if dealing with the related party at arm's
length in the same circumstances.

Remuneration of Committee Members
The following board members were also committee members on the TransAdelaide Audit and Risk
Committee:

Ms V Hickey Mr K Benger
Ms F Magill

No remuneration was received or receivable by board members for being on this committee.
Board members Ms V Hickey and Mr K Benger were also on the board of Transit Plus Pty Ltd in which

TransAdelaide has a 50 percent interest. Board fees relating to these positions are paid to the board
members by TransAdelaide and are included in the remuneration above.

Related Party Disclosures

TransAdelaide is controlled by the SA Government. Transactions and balances between TransAdelaide and related

parties (other SA Government controlled entities) are disclosed in the notes accompanying the financial statements

where applicable.

TransAdelaide has a 50 percent interest in a joint venture entity Transit Plus Pty Ltd. TransAdelaide received an
annual management fee of $126 000 ($126 000) and profit distributions from the joint venture entity of $942 000

($972 000).
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15. Supplies and Services 2007 2006
Supplies and Services provided by Entities external to Note $'000 $’000
the SA Government:
Security 1489 1504
Rollingstock maintenance 9 988 9676
Rollingstock fuel and power 9 453 9 869
Other supplies and services 17 837 13 885
Total Supplies and Services - Non-SA Government Entities 38 767 34 934
Supplies and Services provided by Entities within SA Government:
Accommodation and telecommunication 1 957 2118
Audit fees 165 155
Legal costs 32 40
Accreditation fees 81 62
Vehicle leasing and fuel costs 527 831
Insurance 604 727
Security 409 430
Other supplies and services 6 581 884
Total Supplies and Services - SA Government Entities 4 356 5 247
Total Supplies and Services 6 43 123 40 181
Consultants
The number and dollar amount of consultancies paid/ 2007 2006
payable (included in Supplies and Services expense) Number $'000 Number $'000

that fell within the following bands:

Below $10 000 3 18 5 24
$10 000 - $50 000 1 14 4 103
Above $50 000 1 81 - -
Total paid/payable to the Consultants Engaged 5 113 9 127
Auditor’s Remuneration 2007 2006
$'000 $'000
Audit fees paid/payable to the Auditor-General’s Department 165 155
Total Auditor's Remuneration 165 155
Other Services
No other services were provided by the Auditor-General’s Department.
16. Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
Depreciation:
Rollingstock 8125 9 801
Permanent way 7 578 7 216
Buildings 2673 2672
Other property, plant and equipment 1332 1251
Total Depreciation 19 708 20 940
Amortisation:
Intangible assets 98 183
Total Amortisation 98 183
Total Depreciation and Amortisation 19 806 21123
17. Finance Costs
Interest on borrowings 4922 5381
Treasury guarantee fee 489 575
Finance costs - SA Government 5411 5 956
Total Finance Costs 5411 5956
18. Other Expenses
Other Expenses paid/payable to Entities external to the SA Government:
Net bad and doubtful debts - (20)
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value 37 -
Property, plant and equipment write-offs * 1584 -
Restated Total Other Expenses - Non-SA Government
Entities 1621 (20)
Restated Total Other Expenses 1621 (20)

* A capital work in progress write off adjustment for $1.6 million was made to reflect the discontinuation of a
bi-directional signalling project on the Noarlunga Centre railway line. This project was discontinued following
the approval for a major upgrade of this railway line in future years excluding bi-directional signalling.
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21.
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Correction of Errors

Due to an error in estimation of the amount of income receivable from appropriations for the year ended
30 June 2005, income was overstated by $806 000 in 2004-05. This error had the effect of overstating receivables
as at 30 June 2005 and understating the net cost of providing services by $806 000 in 2004-05 and overstating
retained earnings by $806 000 as at 30 June 2005.

This receivable was then fully provided for in 2005-06. This had the effect of overstating other expenses by
$806 000 and understating the net costs of providing services by $806 000 in 2005-06 and understating retained
earnings by $806 000 as at 30 June 2006.

This error has been corrected by restating each of the affected financial statement line items for the prior year.

Income Tax Equivalent Expense 2007 2006
$'000 $'000

Profit before income tax expense 1615 16 157
Prima facie tax (if profit) thereon at 30 percent (484) (4 457)
Tax exempt revenue items - 4 457
Income Tax Equivalent Expense - SA Government (484) -

Change in Taxation Policy:
Adjustment to deferred tax Balance Sheet items as a result of
policy change - (10 531)
Total Change in Taxation Policy - (10 531)

Policy Change

On 23 August 2005, the Treasurer approved amendments to TI 22. These amendments included the requirement
for TransAdelaide to use the Accounting Profits Model to calculate the income tax equivalent expense from 1 July
2005.

As a result, the tax related assets identified above in the Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2005 were not able to be
realised and were written off in the 2005-06 financial year as part of the income tax equivalent expense
calculation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents 2007 2006
$'000 $'000

Cash at bank 20 634 22 071
Imprest account/cash on hand 36 35
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 20 670 22 106

Interest Rate Risk
Cash on hand is non-interest bearing. Deposits at call and with the Treasurer earn a floating interest rate, based
on daily bank deposit rates. The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents represents fair value.

Receivables 2007 2006
Current: Note $'000 $'000
Gross accrued income 2001 2 664
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 4 182
Tax equivalent refund 210 -
Prepayments 186 68
Total Receivables 18 2 393 2 550

Receivables from SA Government Entities:

Accrued income 537 711
Tax equivalent refund 210 -
Prepayments 34 11

Total Receivables from SA Government Entities 781 722

Receivables from Non-SA Government Entities:

Accrued income 1 464 1953
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 4 182
Prepayments 152 57
GST receivables - -
Total Receivables from Non-SA Government Entities 1612 1 828
Total Receivables 2 393 2 550

The total receivable figure does not include 'non-current receivables' as TransAdelaide does not have any
receivables that meet the definition of non-current. Any 'non-current receivables' would be disclosed in this Note.

Provision for Doubtful Debts

The provision for doubtful debts is recognised when there is objective evidence that a receivable is impaired. An
allowance for impairment loss has been recognised in 'other expenses' in the Income Statement for specific
debtors and debtors assessed on a collective basis for which such evidence exists.
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Provision for Doubtful Debts (continued) 2007 2006
Movements in the provision for doubtful debts: Note $'000 $'000
Carrying amount at 1 July 182 202
Amounts written off (20) (20)
Reduction in provision for amounts recovered (158) -
Carrying Amount at 30 June 18 4 182

Interest Rate and Credit Risk

Receivables are raised for all goods and services provided for which payment has not been received. Receivables
are normally settled within 30 days. Trade receivables, prepayments and accrued revenues are non-interest
bearing. Other than recognised in the provision for doubtful debts, it is not anticipated that counterparties will fail
to discharge their obligations. The carrying amount of receivables approximates fair value due to being receivable
on demand. There is no concentration of credit risk.

Bad and Doubtful Debts
TransAdelaide has recognised a bad and doubtful debt expense of $nil ($20 000) in the Income Statement.

22, Inventories 2007 2006
$'000 $'000
Stores inventories 4 886 4 309
Net Stores Inventories 4 886 4 309
23. Property, Plant and Equipment
ROLLINGSTOCK:
Railcars:
Spare parts and associated equipment at fair value 5184 5229
Less: Accumulated depreciation 2182 2 033
Railcar Equipment at Fair Value 3 002 3196
Railcars at fair value 1970 -
At independent valuation 1 July 2004 402 500 402 500
Less: Accumulated depreciation 214 581 207 029
Railcars at Valuation 189 889 195 471
Total Railcars 192 891 198 667
Tramcars:
Spare parts at fair value 79 79
Less: Accumulated depreciation 33 29
Tramcar Spares at Fair Value 46 50
Tramcars at fair value 243 243
At independent valuation 1 July 2004 17 375 48 525
Less: Accumulated depreciation 14 632 45 314
Tramcars at Valuation 2 986 3454
Total Tramcars 3 032 3504
TOTAL ROLLINGSTOCK 195 923 202 171

LAND AND BUILDINGS:
Freehold Land:

At fair value 1 388 1370
At independent valuation 1 July 2004 131 432 131 450
Total Land 132 820 132 820
Buildings:
At fair value 7 819 2670
At independent valuation 1 July 2004 183 439 183 642
Less: Accumulated depreciation 101 735 99 080
Total Buildings 89 523 87 232
TOTAL LAND AND BUILDINGS 222 343 220 052
PERMANENT WAY:
At fair value 27 621 18 858
At independent valuation 1 July 2004 376 866 383 939
Less: Accumulated depreciation 204 517 202 633
TOTAL PERMANENT WAY 199 970 200 164
OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:
At fair value 19 722 19 831
Less: Accumulated depreciation 11 349 12 937
TOTAL OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 8 373 6 894
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Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 2007 2006
ASSETS UNDER CONSTRUCTION $'000 $’000
Land and buildings 4 885 2 089
Railcars 1857 327
Permanent way 4718 5 365
Other property, plant and equipment 694 3 399

TOTAL ASSETS UNDER CONSTRUCTION 12 154 11 180

TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 638 763 640 461

Carrying amounts of Property, Plant and Equipment that would have been
recognised if these assets were stated at cost:

Rollingstock 91 383 94 827
Land and buildings 70 578 67 817
Permanent way 97 425 94 054
Other property, plant and equipment 8 613 7 204
TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AT COST 267 999 263 902

All major non-current assets are revalued every five years on an existing use, fair value basis in the financial statements
at the revalued amounts.

The most recent independent valuation was undertaken by Valuations Chambers during 2004-05 financial year and
included the major asset classes being trams, trains, land, buildings and permanent way.

In accordance with the Treasurer's APF, TransAdelaide has assessed that assets recorded at cost reflect fair value where
such assets have not been independently revalued.

There were no indications of impairment of property, plant and equipment, infrastructure and intangible assets at 30 June
2007.

Investment Property 2007 2006
$'000 $'000

Opening balance at fair value 11 074 11 074
Less: Disposals 1010 -
Net gain from fair value adjustment 258 -
Restated Closing Balance at Fair Value 10 322 11 074

Valuation Basis

Investment properties are measured at fair value, being the amounts for which the properties could be exchanged
between willing parties in an arms length transaction, based on current prices in an active market for similar property. A
valuation was performed by Valuation Chambers in the 2004-05 financial year. During the year a further revaluation was
conducted on the disused railway corridor land located between Dry Creek and Pooraka resulting in an increment based on
the Valuer-General's valuation. One parcel of land in the corridor was subsequently sold.

Correction of Errors
Vacant land assets with a fair value of $496 000 were omitted from the Investment Property assets in 2005-06. This had
the effect of understating Investment Property and Retained Earnings by this value as at 30 June 2006.

Intangible Assets 2007 2006
Computer Software: $'000 $'000
Internally developed computer software 87 51
Less: Accumulated amortisation 49 23
Other computer software 1185 1084
Less: Accumulated amortisation 1 067 998
Total Intangible Assets 156 114
Investments Accounted for using the Equity Method 2007 2006
Ownership Interest Percent Percent
Joint Venture:
Transitplus Pty Ltd 50 50
2007 2006
Investment in Related Entities: $'000 $’000
Transitplus Pty Ltd 200 200
200 200

Principal Activities:
Transitplus Pty Ltd - Provision of bus services

Investment in Transitplus Pty Ltd:

Carrying amount at 1 July 200 200
Share of net profit 942 972
Less: Distributions received or receivables 942 972

Carrying Amount at 30 June 200 200

For reasons of commercial sensitivity TransAdelaide is unable to provide any further financial information on Transitplus
Pty Ltd.
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27. Reconciliation of Asset Carrying Amounts Assets Total
Land Under Property
Rolling- and Permanent Other Const- Plant and
stock Buildings Way PP&E ruction Equipment
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Carrying amount at 1 July 202 171 220 052 200 164 6 894 11 180 640 461
Transfers - - - - - -
Restatement for error - - - - - -
Change in accounting policy - - - - - -
Restated carrying amount at 1 July 202 171 220 052 200 164 6 894 11 180 640 461
Additions - 18 - 836 19 147 20 001
WIP write-offs - - - - (1 584) (1584)
Disposals (95) (48) (86) (7) - (236)
Transfers 1972 4 994 7 470 1982 (16 558) (140)
Transfers to inventory - - - - (31) (31)
Revaluation increment - - - - - -
Recoverable amount write-downs - - - - - -
Reversals of recoverable amount write-downs - - - - - -
Impairment losses - - - - - -
Depreciation (8 125) (2 673) (7 578) (1332) - (19 708)
Carrying Amount at 30 June 195 923 222 343 199 970 8 373 12 154 638 763
Total
Non-
Investment Intangible Current
Property Assets Assets
$'000 $'000 $'000
Carrying amount at 1 July 10 578 114 651 153
Transfers - - -
Restatement for error 496 - 496
Change in accounting policy - - -
Restated carrying amount at 1 July 11 074 114 651 649
Additions - - 20 001
WIP write-offs - - (1584)
Disposals (1 010) - (1 246)
Transfers - 140 -
Transfers to inventory - - (31)
Revaluation increment 258 - 258
Recoverable amount write-downs - - -
Reversals of recoverable amount write-downs - - -
Impairment losses - - -
Depreciation - (98) (19 806)
Carrying Amount at 30 June 10 322 156 649 241
New assets resulting from completed Assets Under Construction have been treated as transfers.
28. Payables 2007 2006
Current: $'000 $'000
Creditors 4 640 1 949
Accrued expenses 4 587 4 887
Accrued employment on-costs 698 635
GST payable 36 3502
9 961 10 973
Expected to be paid more than 12 months after reporting date:
Employment on-costs 922 1431
Total Current Payables 10 883 12 404
Payables to SA Government Entities:
Creditors 544 529
Accrued expenses 831 906
Employment on-costs 1620 2 066
Total Payables to SA Government Entities 2995 3501
Payables to Non-SA Government Entities:
Creditors 4 096 1420
Accrued expenses 3 756 3981
GST payable 36 3502
Total Payables to Non-SA Government Entities 7 888 8 903
Total Payables 10 883 12 404

Interest Rate and Credit Risk

Creditors and accruals are raised for all amounts billed but unpaid. Sundry creditors are normally settled within
30 days. Employment on-costs are settled when the respective employee benefit that they relate to is discharged.
All payables are non-interest bearing. The carrying amount of payables represents fair value due to the amount
being payable on demand.
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29.

30.

31.

Borrowings
Non-Current:
Borrowings from SA Government

Total Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised at cost and have no maturity date.

The rate was 6.5 percent (7 percent).

Employee Benefits
Current:
Annual leave
Long service leave
Block book off
Retiring and death gratuity
Total Current Employee Benefits Provisions
Accrued wages and salaries

TransAdelaide

2007 2006
$'000 $'000
75 205 75 205
75 205 75 205

The interest rate is determined by the Treasurer.

Expected to be paid more than 12 months after reporting date:

Annual leave
Retiring and death gratuity
Total Short-term Employee Benefits

Non-Current:
Long service leave
Total Long-term Employee Benefits

Total Employee Benefits

Employee benefits as above
Add: Related on-costs included in current payables

Aggregate Employee Benefits plus Related On-Costs

3021 3093
903 976
783 728

19 198

4726 4 995

1213 1132

5939 6 127

1604 1519

84 -
7 627 7 646
11 094 10 531
11 094 10 531
18 721 18 177
18 721 18 177

1620 2 066
20 341 20 243

Based on an actuarial assessment performed by the Department of Treasury and Finance, the benchmark for the
measurement of the long service leave liability has been revised from seven to six and a half years.

Provisions 2007 2006
Current: $'000 $'000
Workers compensation claims 1 399 1470
Third party accident damage 975 996
Railcar maintenance debt 281 371
Total Short-term Provisions 2 655 2 837
Non-Current:
Workers compensation claims 7 785 7 866
Third party accident damage 2735 2 685
Total Long-term Provisions 10 520 10 551
Total:
Workers compensation claims 9 184 9 336
Third party accident damage 3710 3681
Railcar maintenance debt 281 371
Total Provisions 13175 13 388
(a) Reconciliation of Provisions Movements
Workers  Third Party Railcar
Comp Accident Maintnce
Claims Damage Debt Total
$’000 $’000 $'000 $'000
Carrying amount at 1 July 9 336 3 681 371 13 388
Recognised expense in 2006-07 1027 144 - 1171
Less: Net provisions used during the year 1179 115 90 1 384
Movement (152) 29 (90) (213)
Carrying Amount at 30 June 9184 3710 281 13175

Workers Compensation

This liability reflects unsettled workers compensation claims. The workers compensation provision is based
on an actuarial assessment of outstanding claims by Brett & Watson Pty Ltd at 30 June 2007.
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32.

33.

34.

Third Party Accident Damage

This liability reflects TransAdelaide's partial self insurance for this operational risk. The third party accident
damage provision is based on an actuarial assessment of outstanding claims performed by Brett & Watson
Pty Ltd as at 30 June 2007. TransAdelaide has reinsurance for claims exceeding $2.1 million for claims prior
to 1 July 1997 and exceeding $1 million for claims since 1 July 1997.

Railcar Maintenance Debt

This liability relates to work being performed by Bombardier Transportation Ltd on the 2000 and 3000 class
bogies for which, under the Railcar maintenance and service contract, TransAdelaide has agreed to pay a
portion. This work is due to be finalised this year.

Other Liabilities 2007 2006

Current: $'000 $'000
Revenue received for future services:

From entities with SA Government 207 357

From entities external to the SA Government 64 62

Total Current Other Liabilities 271 419

Government Grants
Non-Current:
Capital grants from entities within the SA Government:

Grants received 9 726 6 973
Less: Accumulated amortisation 991 317
Total Government Grants 8 735 6 656

The accounting policies adopted and the description of government grants received by TransAdelaide, including the
conditions attached to the grants, have been disclosed in Note 2.

Movement in Government Grants:

Carrying amount at 1 July 6 656 11 460
Additional capital grants received 2753 20 060
Amortisation (521) (24 864)
Written-back on disposal of asset (153) -

Carrying Amount at 30 June 8 735 6 656

In accordance with AASB 120, government grants received for capital expenditure are amortised over the life of
the resulting asset. During the current financial year TransAdelaide received such grants for work performed on
the Marion Oaklands Transport Interchange projects and various security and safety upgrades.

Reserves 2007 2006
$'000 $'000
Asset revaluation reserve 469 278 474 510

Movements During the Year
Asset Revaluation Reserve:

Balance at 1 July 474 510 464 730
Changes in accounting policy - 17 906
Restated Balance at 1 July 474 510 482 636

Revaluation increment on non-current assets:
Land and buildings -

Infrastructure - (61)
Rollingstock - -
Transferred to retained profits amounts realised on disposal of:
Land and buildings (5) (320)
Infrastructure (485) (6 713)
Rollingstock (4 742) (1032)
Restated Reserves at 30 June 469 278 474 510

Nature and Purpose of Reserves

The asset revaluation reserve includes the net revaluation increments (decrements) arising from the revaluation of
non-current assets in accordance with AASB 116. Asset decrements are expensed where no previous revaluation
reserve increment exists for that asset.

Upon disposal of revalued assets, any related revaluation increment standing to the credit of the asset revaluation
reserve is transferred to retained profits.
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Commitments 2007 2006
Capital Commitments $'000 $'000
Capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as
liabilities in the financial report, are payable as follows:
Within one year 1 056 1953
Later than one year but not longer than five years - -
Later than five years - -

Total Capital Commitments 1 056 1953
Net Capital Expenditure Incurred 20 001 31 263

TransAdelaide’s capital commitments are for the upgrading of railway stations, pedestrian crossings, railway lines
and for the implementation of security improvements throughout the suburban railway network.

Remuneration Commitments
Commitments for the payment of salaries and other remuneration under fixed-term employment contracts in
existence at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities are payable as follows:

2007 2006

$'000 $'000

Within one year 1 699 927
Later than one year but not later than five years 1160 869
Total Remuneration Commitments 2 859 1796

Amounts disclosed include commitments arising from executive and other service contracts. TransAdelaide does
not offer remuneration contracts greater that five years.

Operating Lease Commitments 2007 2006
Commitments in relation to operating leases contracted for at the reporting date $'000 $'000
but not recognised as liabilities are payable as follows:

Not later than one year 501 606
Later than one year but not later than five years 365 477
Later than five years - -
Total Operating Lease Commitments 866 1083
Operating Lease Expenses Paid 1 966 2198

TransAdelaide leases property under operating leases expiring from one month to four years. The leases generally
provide TransAdelaide with a right of renewal at which time all terms are negotiated. Contingent rental payments
are based upon either movements in the Consumer Price Index or operating criteria.

Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities

TransAdelaide has a contingent liability in relation to the warranty of AUSTRICS products sold and provision of
annual support of the same. The life of various elements of the indemnities vary between two and seven years
from when AUSTRICS was sold in 2004-05. As at balance date, this could not be reliably measured.

TransAdelaide has fifty 3000/3100 class railcars subject to a cross border lease which expires in April 2023.
Encumbrances exist within this agreement which give rise to financial consequences in the event of loss or
destruction of these leased railcar assets. The South Australian Government Financing Authority monitor the
majority of foregoing obligations. To balance date, no event has occurred which would give rise to the
encumbrances/consequences.

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents 2007 2006
(a) Reconciliation of Cash $'000 $’000
Cash at 30 June 20 670 22 106

(b) Reconciliation of Net Cash provided by Operating Activities
to Net Profit (Loss) from Ordinary Activities after related
Income Tax Expense

Net profit 1131 16 157
Add (Less): Non-cash Items:
Depreciation 19 708 20 939
Amortisation 98 184
(Gain) Loss on disposal of assets (376) 891
Amortisation of grant funding (521) (305)
Write-back of 30 June 2005 unamortised capital grants
on disposal off underlying assets (153) (9 844)
Write-off of 30 June 2005 income tax related balances - 10 531
Write-off of work in progress project 1584 -
Revaluation (increments) (258) (496)
Net Cash provided by Operating Activities
before Change in Assets and Liabilities 21 213 38 057

1391



TransAdelaide

(b) Reconciliation of Net Cash provided by Operating Activities 2007 2006
to Net Profit (Loss) from Ordinary Activities after related $’000 $'000
Income Tax Expense (continued)

Movements in:

Receivables 157 8 037
Stores inventories (577) 369
Payables (1 656) (254)
Interest payable (23) (37)
Employee benefits provisions 544 1 358
Other provisions (216) (1 599)
Other liabilities 2 604 5106
Net Cash provided by Operating Activities after Related
Income Tax Equivalent Expense 22 046 51 037

The effective interest rate on cash deposits held throughout the year was 6.45 percent.

38. After Balance Date Events
There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item,
transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors of TransAdelaide, to
affect significantly the operations of TransAdelaide, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of
TransAdelaide in future financial years.
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DEPARTMENT FOR TRANSPORT, ENERGY AND INFRASTRUCTURE

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY AND STRUCTURE
Establishment

The Department for Transport, Energy and Infrastructure (the Department) is an Administrative Unit
established pursuant to the PSMAct.

Functions

The Department has diverse responsibilities in relation to transport systems and services, energy policy and
regulation, and infrastructure planning for South Australia. Its functions include:

. providing leadership in the development of transport options by providing policy, planning and
investment advice to assist the Government to achieve its strategic objectives;

. delivering and supporting safe, sustainable and secure transport that underpins the economic and
social growth of South Australia;

. providing improved passenger transport to meet the social inclusion, environmental, efficiency and
safety objectives of the Government by improving mobility and accessibility to enhance the quality of
life of all South Australians;

. providing policy advice on energy issues, and delivering energy programs and regulatory services for
the competitive, safe and reliable supply and use of energy, for the benefit of the South Australian
community, including an efficient transition towards a sustainable energy future;

. identifying strategic infrastructure priorities for the State, coordinate infrastructure planning and
development across government and facilitate timely delivery of key projects that support the
economic and social development of the State;

. providing project risk management, building asset management, procurement and contract services;
. delivering capital building works and major projects;

. providing information technology policy, support and management services;

. providing land valuation, survey and registration.

Structure

An overview of the structure of the Department as at 30 June 2007 is illustrated in the following chart.

Department for Transport, Energy and
Infrastructure
Chief Executive

Audit and Governance

. Executive Officer
Committee

Corporate Services Safety and Regulation Policy and Planning Ofﬁge of Major Public Transport —
Division Division Division Projects and Division Energy Division
Infrastructure
. Across Government Government ICT .
Gc;\:\edrr’lqrzfe(;tmR(e)lf?itézns Chief Information Services Building Management Lands and Service SA Transgo rt S ervices
Officer (and CTO) lvision
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Transport, Energy and Infrastructure
Changes to Functions and Structure

Pursuant to a proclamation on 28 September 2006, the administrative restructure of the former Department
for Administrative and Information Services (DAIS) was initiated with all its functions transferring to a
number of other government departments including the transfer of the following functions to the Department:

Building Management

Government ICT Services

Land Services

Parliamentary Network Support Group
Commercial and Government Services
Service SA.

While the transfer of employees was effective from 1 October 2006, the transfer of functions was effective
from 1 January 2007.

The effects of these transfers have been reported in the Department’s financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2007. Refer to Note 2 and Note 42.

The effects of these transfers on the Department’s administered functions are provided in Notes A2 and A25
of the Department’s administered financial statements.

Audit and Governance Committee

The Department has an Audit and Governance Committee which comprises the Chief Executive, senior
management and one external member. The Committee has a Charter which requires it to assist the Chief
Executive in overseeing the Department’s operations. The Committee is responsible for reviewing the
financial reporting process, the system of internal control and management of financial risks, the audit
process, and the Department’s process for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations and its own code
of business conduct.

AUDIT MANDATE AND COVERAGE
Audit Authority
Audit of the Financial Report

Subsection 31(1)(b) of the PFAA provides for the Auditor-General to audit the accounts of the Department for
each financial year.

Assessment of Controls

Subsection 36(1)(a)(iii) of the PFAA provides for the Auditor-General to assess the controls exercised by the
Department in relation to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of
property and the incurring of liabilities.

This assessment also considers whether those controls are consistent with the prescribed elements of the FMF
as required by TI 2.

Scope of Audit

The audit program covered major financial systems and was directed primarily to obtaining sufficient evidence
to enable an opinion to be formed with respect to the financial statements and internal controls.

During 2006-07, specific areas of audit attention included:

. Expenditure including:
— e-procurement
— accounts payable
— corporate purchase cards
— bus contract payments
— commissions
— office and residential property expenses (lease, maintenance and other accommodation
expenses)
— facilities management payments
— information and telecommunication expenses

1394



Transport, Energy and Infrastructure

. Payroll

. Revenue including:
— registration and licensing fees
— Metroticket sales
— office and residential property rents
— Government Radio Network
— data and phone services
— contract management fees
— facilities management charges
— land regulatory fees and charges

. Fixed Assets including:
— network assets
— land, buildings and facilities
— plant and equipment
— work in progress
— office and residential rental properties
— Government Radio Network
— phone and data communication

. Job costing

. Project and contract management
. Facilities Management Contract

. General ledger.

An understanding of internal audit activities has been obtained in order to identify and assess the risks of
material misstatement of the financial report and to design and perform audit procedures.

AUDIT FINDINGS AND COMMENTS
Auditor’s Report on the Financial Report

The following is an extract from the 2006-07 Independent Auditor’'s Report, which details the qualification to
the Department’s financial report.

Qualification

The Department has recognised grants of $11.19 million received in June 2007 ($100 million
in June 2006) from the Commonwealth Government as liabilities representing revenue
received in advance. The amount is reported as Deferred Income.

In my opinion, the grants meet the recognition criteria of income as specified in AASB 1004
and APF V. The grants represent contributions with unconditional stipulations and as such
should be recognised as income upon receipt.

As a result, the following financial statement lines have been misstated:

. Total Income, Net Result After Restructure and Accumulated Surplus have been
understated by $11.19 million ($100 million for the year ended 30 June 2006);

. Other Current Liabilities have been overstated by $25.4 million ($4.3 million as at
30 June 2006),

. Other Non-Current Liabilities have been overstated by $85.8 million ($95.7 million as

at 30 June 2006).

The Department has disclosed its accounting treatment of the grant in Note 39 '‘Other
Liabilities’.

Qualified Auditor’s Opinion

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matter referred to in the preceding paragraphs, the
financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Department
for Transport, Energy and Infrastructure as at 30 June 2007, and its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Treasurer’s Instructions
promulgated under the provisions of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 and Australian
Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations).
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Assessment of Controls

In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Department for Transport, Energy and Infrastructure in relation
to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the
incurring of liabilities, except for the matters raised in relation to the network assets, Government
Information Communications and Technology Services, Building Management and Service SA, are sufficient to
provide assurance that the financial transactions of the Department for Transport, Energy and Infrastructure
have been conducted properly and in accordance with law.

Communication of Audit Matters

Matters arising during the course of the audit were detailed in management letters to the officers responsible
for the governance of the Department. Responses to the management letters were generally considered to
be satisfactory. The main matters raised with the Department and the related responses are considered
herein.

Network Assets

Audit has previously identified and reported on the adequacy of controls over the recognition and valuation of
network assets particularly road assets.

The Department has responded to the Audit recommendations which in 2006-07 included:

. documenting formal policies and procedures;
. increasing the frequency of key reconciliations;
. improving the capture, analysis and adjustment of exclusion costs within work in progress.

An area that the Department still needs to address to further strengthen the internal control environment
relates to the:

. Timely Capitalisation of Completed Projects.
While this year’s audit review identified that there has been an improvement in the completion and
submission of ‘investing cost management’ (ICM) forms by Project Managers, accounting transactions
to transfer completed assets from work-in-progress to network assets for completed projects were
not processed by Finance in a timely manner. Similar to previous years, the majority of capitalisation
transactions occurred in the latter part of the financial year.

This matter was raised with the Department who advised that from 2007-08 all ICM forms will be
required to be actioned within one month of being received by Financial Operations.

. Reconciliation of the Masterpiece Fixed Asset Register (MPFAR) to AssetCap
Audit has recommended in the past that the ‘Like for Like’ reconciliation of AssetCap and MPFAR be
performed in both directions to provide assurance that the two systems record identical assets. The
Department currently reconciles the AssetCap system to the MPFAR.

The Department has agreed to review this reconciliation process.
Expensing of Exclusions

Last year Audit reviewed the arrangements for identifying project costs incurred by the Department which do
not meet the asset recognition criteria. These costs are referred to as ‘Exclusions’ by the Department. The
audit identified that the Department’s approach to accounting for capital works expenditure resulted in the
recognition of assets (capital works in progress), which include costs that did not meet the asset recognition
criteria and was inconsistent with the requirements of AASs.

Audit recommended that the Department review its accounting policies, procedures and systems for recording
capital works expenditure to ensure the Department complies with the requirements of the AASs.

The Department established a Steering Committee in 2006-07 to review and address the issues raised by
Audit.

As a result of the work of the Steering Committee, the Department developed a policy and implemented an
interim manual process for 2006-07 to identify and expense exclusion costs for projects with a value greater
than $1 million. The value of exclusions identified as part of this process was $41 million of which
$17.3 million has been expensed in 2006-07 and the remaining $23.7 million has been recognised as an
adjustment to equity as it relates to prior period expenditure.
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Further work is being undertaken by the Steering Committee to further improve this process for 2007-08
onwards.

Audit will continue to monitor future developments.
Reconciliations

Past audits of the Department have identified significant delays in the preparation and independent review of
a number of key reconciliations including the bank reconciliation. This impacted on the effectiveness of the
Department’s overall control environment. Audit recommended that the Department implement processes to
ensure that the bank reconciliation and other reconciliations of key financial systems to the General Ledger
are undertaken at the end of each month and in a timely manner.

The Department has put in place certain accountability processes including performance monitoring and
reporting to senior management. These processes have resulted in key reconciliations being performed and
independently reviewed in a timely manner for each month throughout the 2006-07 year.

Rail Contract Management

Schedule 11 of the service contract between TransAdelaide and the Public Transport Division (PTD) provides a
structure for performance assessment for the delivery of the services, including a subset of critical indicators
to be used as Termination Performance Benchmarks.

The Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) are both significant individually and as part of a composite assessment
approach incorporated in the contract which provides for penalties if the contractor does not meet 9 of the 12
KPIs.

Audit reviewed the effectiveness of the Department’s procedures for evaluating contractors’ performance
against the KPIs.

The audit identified gaps in the performance assessment for the TransAdelaide contract in relation to Rail
Vehicle Inspections. Audit found that the PTD does not test this KPI as part of the quarterly audits. For the
quarter ending December 2006 the PTD indicated that TransAdelaide had met this KPI, however, no
assessment was undertaken.

The Department has advised that it will ensure that this KPI is assessed as part of its quarterly audits.
Payroll
Bona Fide Certificates and Leave Return Reports

The Department distributes Bona Fide Certificates (BFCs) and Leave Return reports to all areas of the
Department each fortnight. Established procedures require managers to review and return the reports to
payroll in a timely manner for correction of any errors. The Department relies on this control to provide
assurance that transactions are completely and accurately processed to the payroll system.

Audit has previously identified and reported that the BFCs and Leave Return reports were not being reviewed
in a timely manner and in some instances not returned to payroll at all. Further there was no effective follow
up of outstanding BFCs and Leave Return reports by payroll.

This year’s audit identified that the Department has implemented a number of changes to improve processes
across the Department which have resulted in improvements. The audit established that the majority of
areas were reviewing, confirming and returning the BFCs and Leave Return reports to payroll. However, this
did not occur on a timely basis.

The Department has advised that it will monitor the return process on a more frequent basis (fortnightly
instead of monthly).

Excessive Recreation Leave Balances

In line with the requirements of the PSMAct, the Department’s current policy requires the deferral of
recreation leave to be approved by a Chief Executive delegate for balances in excess of one service year’s
entitlement.
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Review of the Recreation Leave Balances Register at 30 June 2007 identified that some 750 employees had
leave balances in excess of one service year’s entitlement (150 hours) of which 110 employees had balances
in excess of 300 hours. The leave balance for one employee at 30 June 2007 was 780 hours.

For a sample of excessive leave balances Audit could not locate approvals for deferral of leave.

The Department has advised that processes will be put in place to ensure that excessive leave balances are
identified and monitored and deferring leave is appropriately approved.

E-Procurement and Accounts Payable

Audit has, since the implementation of the E-Procurement System in 2003-04, reported on the need for the
Department to ensure that:

. authorised users recorded in the system are reviewed on a regular and timely basis to confirm that
they remained valid in line with the Department’s Delegation Authority;

. exception reports which detailed orders where goods or services were received but not invoiced or not
received are produced or reviewed on a regular basis.

While the Department has implemented procedures to address the issues raised above, Audit found that the
reports that the Department procedures require to be produced and reviewed on a monthly basis are not
always produced and reviewed by all areas.

The Department has advised that processes have been put in place to address the above issues.
Mobile Phone Review

Last year Audit reviewed the policies and procedures for the control of mobile telephones issued to staff,
including approving the issue of phones, their use and checking accounts for payment. The audit identified a
number of issues that were reported to the Department.

This year’s Audit has identified that the Department has made progress in addressing the main issues raised
by Audit including:

. implementing procedures for allocating and approving mobile phones;

. introducing a mobile phone management software system to distribute accounts to staff which will
enable staff to identify personal calls and reimburse the Department.

Government ICT Services
Government Radio Network

During 2007 a Government Radio Network (GRN) infrastructure charge was invoiced for specified agencies
that receive Emergency Services Levy (ESL) funding. Information provided to Audit indicated that this
charge was to cease during 2006 and there was no specific approval for the continuance of the charge.
Consequently, infrastructure charges may be invalidly invoiced. Audit recommended that the charging
arrangements for the GRN be reviewed.

The Department responded that it will seek formal advice from the Department for Treasury and Finance
(DTF) on the continuance of the GRN infrastructure charge.

Telecommunications Billing System

The Telecommunications Billing System (TBS) is used mainly to capture and record charges for the use of the
Government PABX system and State-net infrastructure. TBS replaced a previously used system in November
2006. The audit revealed several control weaknesses including:

procedures for internal controls were not documented;

reconciliations between a subsidiary system and TBS were incomplete;
checks performed on some key reports were not adequately evidenced;
there was no procedure to bill for missed days/events;

some input was not independently checked for completeness and accuracy.
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The Department advised that it would develop a framework for TSB to include controls to ensure the
accuracy and completeness of information processed.

Building Management
Facilities Services

Facilities Services provides maintenance, minor work and other facilities services to government entities. The
audit revealed controls could be improved over the use of financial delegations, compliance with minor works
policies and procedures, and access to the computer system used to process works (MACS).

The Department’s response indicates that action is to be taken to address the matters raised.
Major Projects

Building Management manage major building projects on behalf of other government agencies. Testing of a
sample of major projects revealed examples where approval to extend project funding was not obtained until
the project was complete. Existing government policy requires approval for additional expenditure before
incurring costs.

The response from the Department advised that staff have been reminded to adhere to the Government
policy requirements.

Facilities Management Contract

A new Facilities Management Contract commenced in July 2006. The Cabinet approval for the new contract
included making the Facilities Management Client Board (Board) responsible for supporting the
implementation and successful operation of the new contract. At the time of audit, the Board was in the
process of clarifying how it intends to meet the objectives as approved by Cabinet.

Building Management has documented a Management Plan and associated Management Framework for the
new Facilities Maintenance Contract. At the time of audit processes to monitor and report the completion of
activities prescribed by the Management Plan and associated Management Framework were not documented.

The Department responded that actions had been identified for further work by the Board, including work on:

clarification of the role of the Board

a strategic plan

key drivers for success

performance indicators

a communication/engagement strategy.

These actions are planned to be completed by March 2008.

The Department also advised planned action to document, monitor and report contract management
activities.

Accommodation Services

Accommodation Services provide commercial and residential property accommodation to government entities.
Audit observed controls could be improved over:

. completeness of commercial property revenue;

. compliance with the Department of the Premier and Cabinet Circular 18 ‘Government Office
Accommodation Framework’;

. access to the system used to manage residential properties.

The Departmental response indicated that action is in progress to address the matters raised.
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Service SA

Service SA provides receipting services for a range of clients. Monies received by Service SA are banked into
the Service SA bank account and disbursed to clients. The 2004-05 audit revealed that the Service SA bank
reconciliation was not complete because the individual items that comprise the variance between the
receipting (and disbursing) system and the bank statement were not identified. The 2005-06 audit revealed
that additional procedures had been implemented to identify reconciliation items. Notwithstanding these
additional procedures, there remained a minor unexplained component of the reconciliation.

DAIS responded in 2005-06 that a business case for automating the bank reconciliation process would be
completed in early 2006-07 with project finalisation anticipated over the next 12 months, depending on
funding approval.

The 2006-07 audit revealed the business case did not proceed, there remains an unexplained component of
the reconciliation and there were no documented procedures for the reconciliation.

The Department advised that Service SA has received project approval to build the Service SA receipting and
bank reconciliation requirements into the TRUMPS system. The Department recognised the unexplained
variance, however, considered that due to the size and nature of the variance and current control processes
in place, there is no justification to commit additional resources to improve the manual reconciliation process.
The Department also advised procedures for the reconciliation process would be reviewed.

Information Technology Strategy and Management

Last year’'s Report commented on the status of the then DAIS ICT strategic planning arrangements and
certain other matters. It was indicated that a number of matters had not reached a stage of finalisation.
Notably:

the ICT Plan remained to be finalised and endorsed;

overall risk assessment for all business units would be completed over a twenty four month period;
the Information Security Management System had yet to be fully implemented;

business continuity plans would be further developed.

As commented a number of business units were transferred from the former DAIS to the Department. ICT
support for certain business unit systems is provided by the DTF.

In May 2007, Audit obtained an update on matters previously raised with both the Department and DAIS.
That communication also sought a current high level understanding of the Department’s overall management
and control arrangements for information technology and systems.

The Department’s response in May 2007 provided a comprehensive update. The response advised that:

. some organisational changes were still occurring as result of the administrative restructure of the
Department;
. work on the ICT Strategic Plan would continue in 2007-08 and reflect the integration of the business

units from the former DAIS;

. a number of the Department’s security policies were approved by the Chief Executive and published in
November 2006;

. a review of policies against the Information Security Management System was underway;
. business continuity plans would be reviewed and updated in line with organisational changes.

Audit will continue to monitor the developing area of the Department’s organisational changes in respect of
the overall management and control of ICT during 2007-08.

In addition to obtaining a high level update on ICT strategy and management, Audit also reviewed a number
of important information systems and environments of particular Departmental business units during the
year. Details of these reviews are provided below.

Building Management Information Systems and Environments
During 2006-07, a number of audit observations were raised in relation to certain systems and CPEs within
the Building Management business unit. The systems were the Maintenance and Construction System

(MACS), the Fee and Resource Management System (FARMS), and the Office Accommodation Management
Information System (OAMIS).
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These systems are supported by the ICT Support unit of the Department of Treasury and Finance. Resolution
by the Department of some of the matters commented on below includes the involvement of that business
unit.

MACS and FARMS Systems

In November 2006, Audit formally communicated a number of observations to the Department regarding the
MACS and FARMS systems. A response was provided in January 2007.

Audit’s observations indicated the need for:

. revising formal business continuity and disaster recovery plans and testing the plans;

. updating formal documentation relating to change management processes for some aspects of the
systems;

. updating of formal user and operational procedures, including system user access arrangements.

The Department’s January 2007 response advised of actions being taken to address the matters raised. In
mid 2007 Audit reviewed the status of remedial actions.

It was noted that a number of documentation and procedural improvements for MACS and FARMS and their
IT environments had been made by Building Management. Notably, the:

. updating of user and operational documentation;

. updating of formal documentation for changed logical security user access arrangements for the
systems:

. updating formal documentation relating to change management processes for some aspects of
FARMS;

. updating of the Business Continuity Plan for MACS.

The Department would also continue to:

. maintain the currency of the business continuity plans and develop improved documentation;
. look at opportunities to test planning for continuity of operations;
. discuss with ICT Support aspects of business continuity planning and testing.

OAMIS System

In September 2006 Audit obtained an update from the then DAIS regarding remedial actions being
implemented as a result of an earlier Audit review of the OAMIS system. The update indicated that action
had been taken:

to investigate the automation of a data integrity event logging process;
a number of system software fixes had been applied;

OAMIS user documentation had been developed;

system administration and operational procedures had been prepared.

In August 2007 Audit confirmed that a remaining matter was still being progressed, namely the discussions
with the system vendor for automation of a data integrity event logging process within OAMIS.

Land Services Group - LOTS

The Department, through its Land Services Group (LSG), is responsible for key land administration functions
in South Australia. The major components of that responsibility are discharged through the operation of the
LOTS.

Last year’s Report indicated that Audit had commenced a review of certain aspects of the LOTS system in
June 2006. The LOTS review principally addressed the data flows and associated reconciliations, and security
and control arrangements for access to and maintenance of the electronic record of certificate of title, and the
record of assessed values.

The findings of the review were formally communicated to the then DAIS in October 2006. The LSG was

subsequently transferred to the Department and a comprehensive response was received from the
Department in December 2006.
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The LOTS system is supported by the ICT Support unit of the DTF. Resolution by the Department of some of
the matters raised includes the involvement of that business unit.

The review revealed that while the LSG had in place certain controls over system operation and information
processing, there were a number of matters to be addressed for the continuing security and integrity of the
LOTS operations.

The control measures to prevent unauthorised access to the LOTS electronic record of certificate of title, and
the record of assessed values were not considered of a sufficient standard in some circumstances. This had
the potential to compromise the integrity, confidentiality and availability of the LOTS system and its data. In
particular the review found there were higher than required access levels and functions within LOTS given to
certain employees and a lack of regular review of such access.

In addition, the review identified insufficient documented understanding of security arrangements and system
operations, and a lack of up-to-date and comprehensive documentation relating to current internal and
external interfaces to LOTS. It was also found that attention was required to the operation and management
of interfaces to LOTS and associated reconciliations of valuation information with external entities.

Other matters identified included a need for regular user access reviews over LOTS and a need for
improvement in password control arrangements over key LOTS databases, the testing of the business
continuity plan and the formal documentation of alternative business procedures.

Due to the significance of LOTS in the management of land and land title information, it was considered
important that the issues identified by Audit were appropriately addressed.

The Department’s response acknowledged that the LOTS environment was a complex legacy system and the
response included a detailed plan of action to address all matters raised. For the matter of inappropriate
access and functions provided to some users, prompt action was taken by the LSG to remove the
inappropriate access provided and a review of all other users was undertaken.

The Department advised that a number of other matters would be addressed by interim measures pending
more appropriate resolution through the future stages of the Land Services Business Reform Program
(formerly the ATLAS program). The overall program is directed to the replacing/modernising of the LOTS and
provides for significant components addressing security.

Actions to be taken in regard to most other matters including the LOTS interfaces and related reconciliations
were planned to be finalised by June 2007.

In early 2007-08 Audit is to undertake a follow up review of certain matters. That follow up will consider
certain legislative requirements associated with the function of land administration in South Australia.

EDS (Australia) Managed Computing Facilities

A number of mainframe and mid-range computing environments managed by EDS (Australia) Limited (EDS)
are located at the South Australian Government owned and managed information processing bureau site at
Glenside. These computer environments process major systems for many government agencies.

The Department is the agency responsible for the overall contract management of these arrangements with
EDS and in managing the Glenside site. Audit has an ongoing program for testing and reviewing the controls
over the management of agency systems and computing processing environments at the Glenside site.

In 2006-07 Audit completed reviews of two specific CPEs at the Glenside site. The first environment related
to the Department of Education and Children’s Services’ Valeo Human Resource Management System. The
second environment related to the Department for Families and Communities mainframe environment which
principally supports the housing applications of the South Australian Housing Trust and the Financial
Management System of the Department for Families and Communities. Audit commentary for these two
reviews are included in the relevant agency sections of Part B of this Report.

The Department is responsible for addressing some matters arising from the review.
A specific matter was also raised with the Department’s Building Management in regard to the monitoring of
physical security access to the computers and the provision of automated alarms for temperature and

humidity.

The Department’s responses advised of actions being taken to address all matters raised.
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CHRIS

Over a number of years, Audit has undertaken reviews of the organisational management, procedures and
associated internal control environment for the then DAIS CHRIS Human Resource Management System
(HRMS) processed at the bureau service managed by an external service provider. The reviews have also
addressed compliance with a Bureau Service Agreement between the Minister for Administrative and
Information Services and the service provider.

Last year’'s Report raised important matters from earlier reviews where remedial action was in progress,
notably:

. DAIS was consulting with the Department of Health to complete a security review of the service
provider CPE in the 2006 calendar year;

. DAIS Central Support Unit (CSU) Disaster Recovery Plan was to be updated;
. DAIS CSU was continuing to liaise with government agencies for agency specific business continuity
plans.

During 2006, the functions of the former DAIS HRMS CSU had been transferred to the Department.

At the time of preparing this Report, an update was being sought from the Department on these matters
relating to CHRIS HRMS.

INTERPRETATION AND ANALYSIS OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

It is important to note that the interpretation and analysis of the Income Statement for 2007 includes the
activity for the six month period 1 January 2007 to 30 June 2007 of the former DAIS functions which
transferred to the Department on 1 January 2007. Refer Note 2.

Highlights of the Financial Report

2007 2006 Percentage

$'million $'million Change
EXPENSES
Employee benefits expenses 154 121 27
Supplies and services 547 450 22
Depreciation and amortisation 163 139 17
Other expenses 98 75 31
Total Expenses 962 785 23
INCOME
Fees and charges 359 338 6
Commonwealth revenues 112 92 22
Sale of goods and services 92 15 n/a
Rental income 76 6 n/a
Other income 78 69 14
Total Income 717 520 38
Net Cost of Providing Services 245 265 (8)
REVENUES FROM (PAYMENTS TO) SA GOVERNMENT
Revenues from SA Government 378 378 -
Payments to SA Government 6 4 50
Total Revenues from (Payments to) SA Government 372 374 (1)
Net Result before Restructuring 127 109 17
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 338 341 (1)
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2007 2006 Percentage
$'million $'million Change
ASSETS
Current assets 511 395 29
Non-current assets 6 151 5 409 14
Total Assets 6 662 5 804 15
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 190 101 88
Non-current liabilities 218 194 12
Total Liabilities 408 295 38
EQUITY 6 254 5 509 14

Income Statement

Expenses

Total expenses for the year increased by $178 million (23 percent) of which $179 million relates to the
activity for the six month period 1 January 2007 to 30 June 2007 for the functions transferred to the

Department from the former DAIS.

Expenses for the year totalled $962 million ($785 million) and are mainly attributable to:

. employee benefit expenses of $154 million (16 percent);

. supplies and services expenses of $547 million (57 percent) of which $221 million (40 percent) relates
to the bus and rail service contract payments and $118 million (22 percent) to the cost of major
infrastructure and other service contracts;

. depreciation and amortisation expense of $163 million (17 percent) of which $118 million

(72 percent) relates to network asset depreciation.

For the four years to 2007, a structural analysis of the main expense items for the Department is shown in

the following chart.

1000
800
c 600 f $547m
= $450m
£ 400} $312m $393m
“
163m
200 $140m $133m $139m i
0 $108m $110m $121m $154m
2004 2005 2006 2007
B Other expenditure
O Supplies and services
O Depreciation
O Employee expenses
Income

Total income for the year increased by $198 million (38 percent) of which $163 million relates to the activity
for the six month period 1 January 2007 to 30 June 2007 for the functions transferred to the Department

from the former DAIS.
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Income for the year totalled $718 million ($520 million) and represents:

. Fees and charges of $359 million (50 percent) of which $273 million (76 percent) relates to driver and
vehicle registration income and $71 million (20 percent) to Metroticket income.

. Commonwealth revenues of $112 million (16 percent) of which $30 million relates to funding received
for the Port River Expressway Stage 2 and 3.

Specific funding received in 2006-07 of $11.19 million for the Auslink Strategic Regional Programme
has not been included in commonwealth revenues as the Department has recognised this funding as
‘deferred income’. Refer Note 39.

. Sale of goods and services of $92 million (13 percent) of which $34 million relates to facilities
maintenance services provided to government agencies and $26 million is mainly attributable to
charges for the use of the government radio, telephone and data networks.

. Rental income of $76 million (11 percent) comprising $59 million office accommodation and
$17 million residential accommodation.

A structural analysis of income for the Department in the four years to 2007 is presented in the following
chart.

800

$76m
600 s92m
$6m_ $15m $39m
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= a0 [E$78m $34m so2m | $37M $112m
£ $60m | $16m $91m
e m
200
$282m $323m $338m $359m
0 s . ,
2004 2005 2006 2007

O Rental income

W Sale of goods and services
B Other income

O Grants and subsidies

O Commonwealth revenue

O Fees and charges

Net Cost of Services from Ordinary Activities

The Net Cost of Providing Services for the year was a deficit of $245 million as compared to a deficit of
$265 million the previous year.

The following chart shows the income, expenses and net cost of providing services for the four years to 2007.
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-400
2004 2005 2006 2007
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1405



Transport, Energy and Infrastructure

Revenues from SA Government
Revenues from SA Government totalled $377.9 million ($378.4 million).

Despite the fact that the Department received new appropriation funds in 2006-07 of $31.5 million for the
functions transferred from the former DAIS, total Revenues from Government decreased by $538 000 in
2006-07. This decrease reflects the one off $33 million appropriation funding to the Transport Services
Division received in 2005-06 to purchase trams and related infrastructure from TransAdelaide.

Balance Sheet

The net assets of the Department as at 30 June 2007 totalled $6.3 billion ($5.5 billion), of which $4.5 billion
($4.6 billion) represents the written down value of the network assets.

Network Assets

Network assets represent 73 percent (85 percent) of total non-current assets. The major classes of network
assets are roads and signs with a written down value of $2.1 billion (46 percent) and earthworks with a
written down value of $1.5 billion (33 percent).

The written down value of network assets decreased by $62 million to $4.5 billion. The decrease is
attributable mainly to:

. a revaluation of components of network assets during the year resulting in a revaluation decrement of
$8 million which reflects mainly:

— a revaluation increment of $46 million for roads and signs;
— a revaluation decrement of $141 million for earthworks (Refer Note 32);
— a revaluation increment of $75 million for bridges and culverts;

. the capitalisation of a humber of key projects totalling $52 million of which $8.7 million relates to the
capitalisation of the Mawson Lakes Interchange;

. depreciation and amortisation expense of $117.6 million.
Capital Works in Progress
The value of capital works in progress increased by $200.5 million to $390 million.

The increase reflects a number of major capital projects currently underway and including the Bakewell Bridge
upgrade ($28.3 million), Stages 2 and 3 of the Port River Expressway project ($140.4 million), the South
Road/Anzac Highway underpass ($47.7 million) and Northern Expressway ($25.4 million).

For the five years to 2007, a structural analysis of the written down value of network asset and work in
progress is shown in the following chart.

6
$0.1b $0.1b 5020 i
5020 [ 0.20 30.2b $0.4b
4t $0.6b $0.1b ' $0.7b $0.8b
$0.7b $0.6b '
C
S
3 1.6b
2 $1.8b $1.4b $1.5b $ $1.5b
2 L
$2.0b $2.0b $2.0b $2.1b $2.1b
0 1 1 1 1
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B Other

B Work in progress
O Bridges/Culverts
O Earthworks

O Roads and signs
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The major sources of funding to maintain and develop the network were from the annual collection of
registration and licence fees of $272.6 million ($259.9 million) and grants from the Commonwealth
Government of $112.2 million ($91.6 million). This regular source of funding explains the low level of
outstanding borrowings which totalled $47.8 million ($47.8 million) recorded in the Balance Sheet.
Land, Buildings and Facilities
The value of land, buildings and facilities increased by $489 million to $945 million.

The increase relates mainly to the land, building and facilities transferred to the Department on
1 January 2007 from the former DAIS. The written down value of these assets at 30 June was $475 million.

Land for Current Projects

During the year the Department created a new asset category, land for current projects, within the land,
buildings and facilities asset class. Land for current projects includes land and buildings held or acquired for
current road projects. Buildings transferred to this asset category are not depreciated.

This accounting policy change reflects the fact that the Department acquires buildings principally for the
purpose of acquiring the land for road projects. For further details on the change in this accounting policy
refer Note 5.2.

The value of Land for Current Projects at 30 June 2007 was $29 million.

Administered Items

The Department collects money through its Registration and Licensing function on behalf of third parties
including:

. Compulsory Third Party Insurance on motor vehicles on behalf of the Motor Accident Commission;
. Stamp Duty on behalf of the DTF.

In 2006-07 amounts collected on behalf of third parties totalled $655 million ($657 million) and included
$414 million ($416 million) for Compulsory Third Party Insurance, $133 million ($133 million) for Stamp Duty
and $29 million ($28 million) for the ESL.

Registration and licensing receipts represents 87 percent (86 percent) of revenues administered by the
Department.

FURTHER COMMENTARY ON OPERATIONS

Community Road Safety Fund

The Community Road Safety Fund was established in 2002-03 and became effective from 1 July 2003. The
Fund receives monies from the Consolidated Account from speeding fine revenue collected by Police and the
Courts Administration Authority. The money credited to the Fund is used by the Department to fund road
safety related initiatives.

The Fund received $69.1 million ($59.3 million) from monies collected from speeding fines, additional
Appropriation from the Consolidated Account, and interest of $395 000 ($810 000) which was credited to the
Fund during the year.

During the year the Department spent $66.8 million ($59.3 million) on road safety related initiatives that
were met entirely from the Fund.

The balance of the Fund at 30 June 2007 was $2.745 million ($463 000). Refer Note 48.
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Income Statement

for the year ended 30 June 2007

EXPENSES:
Employee benefits expenses
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation
Grants and subsidies
Finance costs
Other expenses

Total Expenses

INCOME:
Fees and charges
Commonwealth revenues
Sale of goods and services
Rental income
Grants and subsidies
Interest
Commissions received
Net gain or loss on disposal of assets
Resources received free of charge
Other income
Total Income
NET COST OF PROVIDING SERVICES

REVENUES FROM (PAYMENTS TO) SA GOVERNMENT:
Revenues from SA Government
Payments to SA Government
Net Revenues from (Payments to) SA Government
NET RESULT BEFORE RESTRUCTURE
Net revenue (expenses) from administrative restructure
NET RESULT AFTER RESTRUCTURE

Net Result After Restructure is attributable to the SA Government as owner

Note

10
11
12

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24
24

42

2007 2006
$'000 $'000
154 340 121 494
546 965 449 851
162 909 138 527
80 889 66 203
4 313 3992
12 994 4612
962 410 784 679
358 925 337 765
112 242 91 602
91 548 14 997
75 503 6 054
40 361 36 736
9 453 4 660
11 168 9 783
5580 984
660 -

12 098 17 037
717 538 519 618
244 872 265 061
377 858 378 396
5781 4 372
372 077 374 024
127 205 108 963
577 035 6 260
704 240 115 223
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Balance Sheet
as at 30 June 2007

Transport, Energy and Infrastructure

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Inventories
Other current assets
Non-current assets classified as held-for-sale
Total Current Assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Receivables
Land, buildings and facilities
Plant and equipment
Network assets
Capital works in progress
Intangible assets
Total Non-Current Assets
Total Assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Employee benefits
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Employee benefits
Provisions
Other non-current liabilities
Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS

EQUITY:
Accumulated surplus
Asset revaluation reserve
Contributed capital
TOTAL EQUITY

Commitments
Contingent assets and liabilities

2007 2006
Note $'000 $'000
25 394 577 333 600
26 89 922 35028
27 5 489 5761
28 6 519 11 049
29 15 106 9 807
511 613 395 245
26 7 613 40
30 945 178 456 115
31 271 818 173 708
32 4517 772 4580 212
33 389 994 189 534
34 18 544 9 153
6 150 919 5408 762
6 662532 5804 007
35 107 921 62 865
36 1 694 696
37 22 100 13 745
38 14 556 9 905
39 44 183 13 434
190 454 100 645
35 4 837 3 045
36 68 697 48 929
37 50 582 31 856
38 7 860 7 640
39 85 992 102 700
217 968 194 170
408 422 294 815
6 254 110 5509 192
4403 758 3721779
1620349 1574156
230 003 213 257
6 254 110 5509 192
43
44
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2007

Not
Balance at 30 June 2005
Changes in accounting policy
Other accounting policy changes
Asset related adjustments
Other prior year adjustments
Restated balance at 30 June 2005
Gain on revaluation of property during 2005-06
Net income/expense recognised directly in
equity for 2005-06
Net result after restructure for 2005-06
Total Recognised Income and Expense for
2005-06
Equity contribution from SA Government
Balance at 30 June 2006
Asset related adjustments 40
Other prior year adjustments
Restated balance at June 2006
Gain on revaluation of property during 2006-07
Net result after restructure for 2006-07
Total recognised income and expense for
2006-07
Equity contribution from SA Government
Payment of dividend to SA Government
Balance at 30 June 2007

e

Asset Accum-

Contributed Revaluation ulated
Capital Reserve Surplus Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
197 011 1240 139 3620 139 5 057 289
- (125) 114 (11)
- - (15 084) (15 084)
- 39 8 641 8 680
- - (4 287) (4 287)
197 011 1240 053 3609 523 5 046 587
- 334 103 - 334 103
(3 754) - 115 223 111 469
(3 754) 334 103 115 223 445 572
20 000 - - 20 000
213 257 1574 156 3 724 746 5512 159
- - (3 596) (3596)
- - 629 629
213 257 1574 156 3721779 5509 192
- 46 193 - 46 193
- - 704 240 704 240
- 46 193 704 240 750 433
16 746 - - 16 746
- - (22 261) (22 261)
230 003 1620349 4403758 6 254110

All Changes in Equity are attributable to the SA Government as owner
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2007

Transport, Energy and Infrastructure

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Employee benefit payments
Supplies and services
Grants and subsidies
Finance costs
Construction work payments
GST payments on purchases
Other payments
Cash used in Operations
CASH INFLOWS:
Fees and charges
Receipts from Commonwealth
Rental income
Sale of goods and services
Grants and subsidies
Interest received
Commissions
Construction work reimbursement
GST receipts on receivables
Other receipts
Cash generated from Operations
CASH FLOWS FROM SA GOVERNMENT:
Receipts from SA Government
Payments to SA Government
Total cash flows from SA Government
Net Cash provided by Operating Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of network assets
Cash used in Investing Activities
CASH INFLOWS:
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Cash generated from Investing Activities
Net Cash used in Investing Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Payment of dividend to Government
Repayment of finance leases
Repayment of borrowings
Cash used in Financing Activities
CASH INFLOWS:
Capital contributions from Government
Cash proceeds from restructuring activities
Cash generated from Financing Activities
Net Cash provided by Financing Activities
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JULY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 30 JUNE

2007 2006
Inflows Inflows
(Outflows) (Outflows)
Note $'000 $'000
(145 750) (116 462)
(620 768) (451 730)
(83 798) (66 601)
(4 313) (3992)
(43 714) -
(3 014) -
(8 311) (5 391)
(909 668) (644 176)
358 925 337 765
123 432 191 602
91 442 12 858
165 826 5190
41 061 31 496

8 976 4 660
13526 8 388

56 056 -

- 1126

14 651 14 541
873 895 607 626
377 858 378 396
(3 611) (988)
374 247 377 408
45 338474 340 858
(79 327) (79 952)
(231 883) (158 082)
(311 210) (238 034)
19 889 14 922

19 889 14 922
(291 321) (223 112)
(22 261) -
(1 250) -

- (1 149)

(23 511) (1 149)
16 747 20 000

20 588 165

37 335 20 165

13 824 19 016

60 977 136 762
333 600 196 838
25 394 577 333 600
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Program Schedule of Income and Expenses
for the year ended 30 June 2007

EXPENSES:
Employee expenses
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation
Grants and subsidies
Finance costs
Other

Transport Policy

Transport Infra-

Transport Safety and

Public Transport

Total Expenses

INCOME:
Fees and charges
Commonwealth revenue
Interest
Net Gain (Loss) from disposal of

assets

Commissions
Grants and subsidies
Resources received free of charge
Rental income
Sale of goods and services
Other

Total Income

NET COST OF PROVIDING
SERVICES

REVENUES FROM (PAYMENTS TO)
SA GOVERNMENT:
Revenues from SA Government
Payments to SA Government

NET REVENUES FROM (PAYMENTS
TO) SA GOVERNMENT

NET RESULT BEFORE
RESTRUCTURING

and Planning structure Services Regulation Services Services
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
9 414 11 536 61 235 63 375 24 702 26 989 9513 9 589
3098 6 256 123 239 132882 27 274 43 307 242 602 242 230
122 27 125785 119188 2 396 458 20 909 18 576
1930 617 5 056 40 524 - - 22171 16 652
13 - 281 64 55 - 3 349 3928
27 375 8 187 3823 151 64 1 206 257
14 604 18 811 323783 359 856 54 578 70 818 299 750 291 232
18 - 7 284 7 162 279 300 266 194 70 808 64 319
- - 102 983 90 152 597 1210 - 102
- - 8 894 3152 284 212 - 1296
- - 5151 687 (17) - (114) 301
- - 47 42 11121 9 741 - -
- - - - - - 40 361 36 736
- - 660 - - - - -
- - 5764 5549 - - 510 505
98 71 3788 6728 5169 4 883 2136 2 163
36 22 2915 9 290 2189 1891 851 1 046
152 93 137 486 122762 298 643 284 131 114 552 106 468
(14 452) (18 718) (186 297) (237 094) 244 065 213313 (185 198) (184 764)
3018 2 646 52 073 80 948 72 188 61 879 192837 197 131
- - 2569 4 371 - - - 1
3018 2 646 49 504 76 577 72 188 61 879 192837 197 130
(11 434) (16072) (136 793) (160517) 316 253 275 192 7 639 12 366
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Program Schedule of Income and Expenses
for the year ended 30 June 2007 (continued)

Information &
Communication

Energy Policy State Infrastruc- Technology Building
and Regulation ture Facilitation Services Management
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
EXPENSES: $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Employee expenses 7 545 7 269 2 829 2736 6 319 - 10 675 -
Supplies and services 6 955 7 310 8 207 17 866 21 389 - 93170 -
Depreciation and amortisation 453 277 5 1 7 073 - 5577 -
Grants and subsidies 6 052 8 410 9 337 - - - - -
Finance costs - - - - 17 - 556 -
Other 239 48 198 45 33 - 2793 -
Total Expenses 21 244 23 314 20 576 20 648 34 831 - 112 771 -
INCOME:
Fees and charges 92 90 - - - - - -
Commonwealth revenue 67 138 4 263 - 1162 - - -
Interest - - - - - - 274 -
Net Gain (Loss) from disposal of
assets - (4) - - (2) - 557 -
Commissions - - - - - - - -
Grants and subsidies - - - - - - - -
Resources received free of charge - - - - - - - -
Rental income - - - - - - 69 229 -
Sale of goods and services 1724 1152 19 - 29 367 - 35 287 -
Other 3898 3244 247 1 544 463 - 353 -
Total Income 5781 4 620 4 529 1 544 30 990 - 108 700 -
NET COST OF PROVIDING
SERVICES (15463) (18694) (16047) (19 104) (3 841) - (4 071) -
REVENUES FROM (PAYMENTS TO)
SA GOVERNMENT:
Revenues from SA Government 14 143 16 688 12 062 19 104 - - - -
Payments to SA Government - - - - - - 3212 -
NET REVENUES FROM (PAYMENTS
TO) SA GOVERNMENT 14 143 16 688 12 062 19 104 - - (3 212) -
NET RESULT BEFORE
RESTRUCTURING (1 320) (2 006) (3 985) - (3 841) - (7 283) -
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Program Schedule of Income and Expenses
for the year ended 30 June 2007 (continued)

Community Support Services Road Safety Policy,
Services to Government Planning & Services Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
EXPENSES: $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Employee expenses 15 092 - 970 - 6 046 - 154 340 121 494
Supplies and services 9 232 - 2152 - 9 647 - 546 965 449 851
Depreciation and amortisation 329 - 115 - 145 - 162 909 138 527
Grants and subsidies 43 - - - 36 300 - 80 889 66 203
Finance costs - - - - 42 - 4 313 3992
Other 79 - 17 - 64 - 12 994 4612
Total Expenses 24 775 - 3 254 - 52 244 - 962 410 784679
INCOME:
Fees and charges 66 - - - 1 357 - 358 925 337 765
Commonwealth revenue - - - - 3170 - 112 242 91 602
Interest 1 - - - - - 9 453 4 660
Net Gain (Loss) from disposal of
assets - - 5 - - - 5 580 984
Commissions - - - - - - 11 168 9783
Grants and subsidies - - - - - - 40 361 36 736
Resources received free of charge - - - - - - 660 -
Rental income - - - - - - 75 503 6 054
Sale of goods and services 10 957 - 3 - - - 91 548 14 997
Other 856 - 290 - - - 12 098 17 037
Total Income 11 880 - 298 - 4 527 - 717 538 519 618
NET COST OF PROVIDING
SERVICES (12 895) - (2 956) - (47 717) - (244 872) (265061)
REVENUES FROM (PAYMENTS TO)
SA GOVERNMENT:
Revenues from SA Government 31537 - - - - - 377 858 378 396
Payments to SA Government - - - - - - 5781 4 372
NET REVENUES FROM (PAYMENTS
TO) SA GOVERNMENT 31537 - - - - - 372077 374024
NET RESULT BEFORE
RESTRUCTURING 18 642 - (2 956) - (47 717) - 127 205 108 963
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Objectives of the Department for Transport, Energy and Infrastructure
The Department for Transport, Energy and Infrastructure (the Department) has diverse responsibilities in relation
to transport system and services, energy policy and regulation, and infrastructure planning for South Australia.
The goal of the Department is to ensure that South Australia’s future needs and demands for the safe and efficient
movement of people and freight, and safe and efficient energy, transport and other infrastructure, are met in an
ecologically sustainable and cost effective way.

The Department’s goal is achieved by the following objectives:

. identifying strategic infrastructure priorities for the state;
. coordinating infrastructure and land use planning and development across government;
. facilitating timely delivery of key projects that support the economic and social development of the state,

including the development of South Australia’s regions;

o providing policy advice on major energy market reforms and strategic issues relating to electricity and gas
infrastructure;

. assisting in the delivery of the Government’s policy on sustainable energy;

. managing and advising on state-owned transport, property, building, and ICT assets;

. providing leadership in the development of transport options;

o managing traffic on the arterial road network;

. regulating the access, behaviour and security of transport system users;

. investing in integrated transport solutions that increase the safety, effectiveness and efficiency of the

state’s transport, infrastructure and services for all users;

o providing South Australia’s input to Commonwealth aviation safety regulatory change and aligning the
state’s strategies for air services and airport development with regulatory changes made by the
Commonwealth;

o providing improved public transport services;

o conducting an annual review, audit and approval of energy industry safety and technical management
plans and promotion of safety;

o increasing the overall efficiency and effectiveness of the government’s current and future ICT
investments;
o providing statutory services and information to the community in relation to land titling, survey, valuation

and advice on land administration issues;

o providing government services and information to the community through a choice of integrated online,
phone and face-to-face delivery channels;

. ensuring that we have the right people with the right skills in the right jobs to deliver projects and
programs that fulfil the Department’s contribution to the targets of South Australia’s Strategic Plan.

Departmental Organisation

The structure of the Department has been established in a manner that provides clear accountabilities and
responsibilities for all business areas and enables an open and steady flow of information between these areas.
The Offices and Divisions of the Department are:

Across Government CIO

Building Management

Energy

Government ICT Services

Government Relations and Reform Office
Lands and Service SA

Office of Major Projects and Infrastructure
Policy and Planning

Public Transport

Safety and Regulation

Transport Services

Corporate Services

1415



Transport, Energy and Infrastructure

2.

Departmental Organisation (continued)
The Executive Directors of the Offices and Divisions within the Department report to the Chief Executive,
Department for Transport, Energy and Infrastructure.

During 2006-07 there were significant changes to the Department’s structure.

On the 28 September 2006, the Government announced the administrative restructure of the Department for
Administrative and Information Services with all of its functions transferring to a number of other government
departments, namely:

Department for Transport, Energy and Infrastructure;
Department of the Premier and Cabinet;

Department of Treasury and Finance;
Attorney-General’s Department.

For accounting and reporting purposes, the financial transfer of these functions including the transfer of assets,
liabilities and equities was to take effect from 1 January 2007 as reported in the Government Gazette, dated
28 September 2007. Revenues and expenses reported for the period 1 January to 30 June 2007 are detailed
under Note 42.

Effective from that date, financial accountability for the following business units or functions transferred to this
Department:

o Building Management, incorporating:
— Building Services
— Commercial Property Management
— Government Employee Residential Property Management

. Government ICT Services
D Lands and Service SA
o Parliamentary Network Support group, now incorporated within the Corporate Services Division.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Basis of Accounting
The financial report is a general-purpose financial report. The accounts have been prepared in accordance
with applicable AASs, Interpretations, TIs and APSs promulgated under the provision of the PFAA.

AASs include AIFRS and AAS 29.
The Department’s statement of compliance with AASs and Interpretations is detailed under Note 5.1.
The Department’s compliance with APSs issued pursuant to section 41 of the PFAA is by authority of TI 19.

In the interest of public accountability and transparency the APSs have required the following note
disclosures to be included in this financial report:

(a) Revenues, expenses, financial assets and liabilities where the counterparty/transaction is with an
entity within the SA Government as at reporting date, classified according to their nature. A
threshold of $100 000 for separate identification of these items applies;

(b) Expenses incurred as a result of engaging consultants (as reported in the Income Statement);
(c) Employee TVSP information;

(d) Employees whose normal remuneration is $100 000 or more (within $10 000 bandwidths) and the
aggregate of the remuneration paid or payable or otherwise made available, directly or indirectly by
the entity to those employees;

(e) Board/committee member and remuneration information, where a board/committee member is
entitled to receive income from membership other than a direct out-of-pocket reimbursement.

The preparation of the financial report has also required the use of certain accounting estimates where
management is required to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Department’s accounting
policies. Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the financial statements have been outlined in the applicable notes.

The Department’s Income Statement, Balance Sheet and Statement of Changes in Equity have been
prepared on an accrual basis and are in accordance with the historical cost convention, except for certain
assets that have been valued in accordance with specific applicable valuation policies described under this
note.

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared on a cash basis.

The financial report has been prepared based on a 12 month operating cycle with amounts presented in
Australian currency.
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3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

Transport, Energy and Infrastructure

Reporting Entity

The Department has produced both departmental and administered financial statements. The departmental
financial statements include the use of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses controlled or incurred by
the Department in its own right. The administered financial statements include the revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities which the Department administers on behalf of the SA Government but does not
control.

Comparative Information
The presentation and classification of items in the financial statements are consistent with prior periods
except where a specific APS or AAS has required a change.

Rounding
All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($'000).

Service Provider Operations

Service provider units are individual work units that operate on a fee for service basis. Service provider
units predominantly have as their clients other units or divisions within the Department and may also
undertake some work for external parties. Some service provider units charge actual costs directly to
projects or functions, while others retain actual costs within a working account prior to on-charging those
costs to their customer groups. The recurrent or capital nature of these costs is therefore not readily
apparent. A reliable means of allocating these costs between investing and operating activities has been
established based on the history of work performed or an apportionment relevant to the underlying nature
of the Service Provider’s unit operations.

Service Provider unit revenue arising from operations with external clients is disclosed in the Income
Statement. Revenue and expenses arising from intra-division operations have been eliminated.

Business Overheads

The Department adopts a full cost approach to the costing of its infrastructure capital and recurrent works.
This methodology entails the allocation of a proportionate share of overheads to these activities based on a
regime of cost drivers. Costs that are typically allocated using these cost drivers include general
engineering and field related expenses, and goods or services that support the resources directly engaged
in working on these activities (eg accommodation rental, payroll services, finance, contract management,
etc).

Business overheads relating to those functions or areas responsible for the management and control of
property, building, ICT assets are allocated across the Department. Business areas incurring these costs
allocate the costs to specific activities and outputs in line with the Department’s full cost approach
methodology.

Costs normally associated with the establishment and operation of governance frameworks designed to
support the role of Executive Management are not attributed to individual specific works and are borne by
the Department as a whole.

Taxation
The Department is liable for payroll tax, FBT, GST, emergency services levy, land tax and local government
rates.

Under the National Competition Policy principles (Tax Equivalent Regime), state government business
enterprises in competition with private industry are liable for payment of Commonwealth, State and Local
Government taxes with an equivalent payment to be made to the Department of Treasury and Finance
(DTF).

GST
In accordance with the requirements of Interpretation 1031, revenues and expenses are recognised net of
the amount of GST, and receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

The amount of GST incurred by the Department as a purchaser that is not recoverable from the Australian
Taxation Office is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of expense.
The GST due from or payable to the Australian Taxation Office is recognised ‘net’ in the departmental
Balance Sheet.

Taxation Equivalents
Under the tax equivalents regime the Department is liable to pay income tax equivalents in relation to the
commercial operations of the Building Management Division.

In determining its tax equivalent commitments, the Department utilises the ‘Accounting Profits’ model.
Under this model, income tax expense is calculated separately for each taxable entity by applying the
income tax rate (currently 30 percent) to the accounting profit for the year.

Transferred Functions
Assets, liabilities and contributed capital transferred to or from the Department under government
restructuring arrangements have been reported in accordance with APSs contained within APF II, AAS 29
and Interpretation 1038.
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3.9

3.10

Income and Expenses

Income and expenses are recognised in the Department’s Income Statement when and only when it is
probable that the flow of economic benefits to or from the Department will occur and can be reliably
measured.

Income and expenses have been classified based on their nature in accordance with APF II and with the
exception of some items such as rebates or refunds and have not been offset unless required or permitted
by another accounting standard.

Fees and Charges
Revenues from registration and licence fees are recognised when the Department obtains control over the
funds. Control is generally obtained upon receipt of those funds.

Revenues from other fees and charges are derived from the provision of goods and services to other
SA Government agencies and to the public. These revenues are driven by consumer demand and are
recognised upon the delivery of those goods and services to the customers.

Disposals and Contribution of Assets
Gains or losses from the disposal of non-current assets are recognised on a net basis on the face of the
Income Statement when control of the asset has passed to the buyer.

Assets contributed by the Department to other entities at no value or minimal consideration are disclosed
separately in the Notes to the Income Statement.

Assets provided to the Department at no value or minimal value are also recorded on the face of the
Income Statement as resources received free of charge at an amount equal to the fair value of the assets
received.

Borrowing Expenses
In accordance with AASB 123, borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred.

Grants

Grant revenue is recognised as income at the time the Department obtains control over the grant funds or
obtains the right to receive the grant funds. For grants with unconditional stipulations, control generally
occurs at the earlier time of when the Department has been formally advised that the grant has been
approved, the agreement has been signed, and/or the grant has been received. For grants with conditional
stipulations, control passes at the time the stipulations are satisfied or met.

Grants received by the Department from the Commonwealth are generally monies given to fund capital or
recurrent activities. Such grants are recognised as Commonwealth Revenues and are usually subject to
terms and conditions as set out in the contract, correspondence or legislation governing the provision of the
grant.

Grants provided to other entities for general assistance or for a particular purpose are therefore recognised
as expenses, prepayments or payables depending on the nature of the grant and the recipient entity’s level
of control or right to receive the grant. Grants provided by the Department to other entities are generally
unconditional in nature and are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are paid.

Agency Relationships

The Department acts as agent in the payment of goods or services to a third party on behalf of other
government agencies (ie contract manager for the EDS contract). Costs are paid by the Department and
then subsequently billed or invoiced to the client/customer agencies.

Revenues and expenses arising from the payment and billing of costs to client/customer agencies are
disclosed at their full gross amount in the Income Statement under Administered Items and have not been
offset.

The Department may charge a commission or management fee for the provision of these services. Such
commissions or management fees are reported as revenues for the period within the Income Statement for
controlled items.

Administered Items

Other transactions and balances that relate to activities administered by the Department on behalf of
SA Government have been excluded from the departmental operations of the Department. Revenues and
expenses arising from those activities are recognised in the Income Statement for administered items.

Revenues from (Payments to) SA Government

Revenues from SA Government include monies appropriated to the Department under the Appropriation Act
or other Acts. These appropriations are recognised as revenues when the Department obtains control over
the funds. Control is generally obtained upon receipt of those funds.

Payments to SA Government include payments to the DTF for Indentured Ports paid directly to the
Treasurer through the Consolidated Account (refer Note 46).
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3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

Transport, Energy and Infrastructure

Current and Non-Current Items

Assets and liabilities are characterised as either current or non-current in nature. Assets and liabilities that
will be realised as part of the 12 month operating cycle are classified as current assets or current liabilities.
All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash includes cash on hand and deposits at call that are
readily converted to cash and are used in the day-to-day cash management function of the Department.
Cash is measured at nominal value.

Administered cash is reported separately in the administered financial statements.

Cash Alignment Policy

In October 2003 the Government introduced a policy with respect to aligning departmental cash balances
with appropriation and expenditure authority. This policy came into effect during 2003-04 and has
continued operation through to 2006-07. The Department was not required to transfer any cash balances
in 2005-06 or 2006-07.

Receivables

Trade Debtors

Trade receivables arise in the normal course of providing goods and services to other agencies and to the
public. Trade receivables are payable within 30 days after the issue of an invoice or from when the
goods/services have been provided under a contractual arrangement. Other debtors arise outside the
normal course of providing goods and services to other agencies and to the public.

If payment from a debtor has not been received within 90 days after the amount falls due, under the terms
and conditions of the arrangement with the debtor, the Department is able to charge interest at commercial
rates until the whole amount of the debt is paid.

In accordance with AASB 139, the Department determines a provision for doubtful debts based on an
annual review of balances for trade receivables. The provision balance is calculated as that amount of
specific trade receivables that have been assessed as impaired or uncollectible at reporting date.

Loan Receivables

In accordance with the requirements of APF IV, the Department measures financial assets such as loan
receivables at their historic cost, except interest free loans which are measured at the present value of
expected repayments.

Finance Lease Receivables

The Department has entered into a number of finance lease arrangements as lessor for the purpose of
providing housing and accommodation. Receivables to be derived from these lease arrangements have
been brought to account in the Balance Sheet in the accordance with the requirements of AASB 117.

Inventories

Inventories held-for-sale are stated at the lower of cost or their net realisable value. Inventories held for
distribution are measured at the lower of cost or replacement value.

Inventories such as metrotickets consist of tickets held-for-sale or distribution and are valued at cost.
Inventories of roadside materials are valued at historic cost and stores are valued on a weighted average
historic cost basis. Inventories comprising works in progress performed for clients external to the
Department are valued at cost.

Non-Current Asset Acquisition and Recognition

The Department capitalises non-current physical assets with a value of $10 000 or greater in accordance
with policies that are consistent with APF III and the requirements of AASB 116. Exceptions to this policy
relate to assets under construction, land and buildings, as described below.

The Department’s activities with respect to assets under construction are such that these costs are
capitalised and transferred to the Balance Sheet at the completion of the project. Project costs that do not
meet the recognition criteria of an asset are expensed. For those projects equal to or greater than
$1 million, this expensing of costs occurs during the life of the project. For all other projects, costs to be
expensed are identified at/or near the date of practical completion.

The Department recognises land separately from buildings and other improvements, and land acquired for
current road projects separately from other land.

In accordance with APF III APS 9.6 the Department has elected not to recognise in its Balance Sheet the
value of land under roads and land under water because of the inherent difficulty in the reliable
measurement of all land within these categories.

Buildings or other structures residing on land acquired for current road projects are not recognised in the

Balance Sheet. The costs incurred in acquiring the buildings in these instances are deemed to be part of the
costs of acquiring the land.
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3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

Non-Current Asset Acquisition and Recognition (continued)

The Department also recognises as assets outlays on building fit-outs although the acquisition of furniture
and some office fittings under upgrades or modifications are not capitalised due to the inherent difficulty in
separately tracking these items for depreciation and replacement purposes.

The Department performs separate recognition of the components of specific assets it owns or controls only
when the fair value of the asset at the time of acquisition is greater than $5 million for infrastructure assets
and $1 million for other assets. With the exception of its Walkerville administrative office building, where
the lifts and the air-conditioning system have been recognised separately, the Department’s assets have
been appropriately classified and grouped to warrant no further recognition of components.

Most assets acquired and recognised by the Department are initially recorded at cost or at the value of any
liabilities assumed, plus any incidental costs incurred with the acquisition.

Where the Department acquires assets at no value, or minimal value, these items are recorded at their fair
value in the Balance Sheet. If the assets are acquired at no or nominal value as part of a restructuring of
administrative arrangements then the assets are recorded at the value recorded by the transferor entity
prior to the transfer.

Where the payment for an asset is deferred, the Department measures its value at the present value of the
future outflow, discounted using the interest rate of a similar period for borrowing.

Non-Current Assets Held-for-sale

Assets held-for-sale generally consist of land and buildings that have been declared surplus to the needs of
the Department for which a plan of sale has been determined. Assets held-for-sale are separately disclosed
and measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell in accordance with AASB 5.

Contracts in Progress

The Department acts as project manager for major capital works in relation to government buildings or
government accommodation and for a range of minor and maintenance type activities associated with its
role of facilities manager.

Profits on these contracts are brought to account on a percentage of completion basis as determined under
current engineering estimates and in accordance with AASB 111. Where losses are foreseeable, such losses
are provided in full based on current engineering estimates.

Non-Current Works in Progress

The Department is a key provider of infrastructure for the State and constructs or modifies assets as part of
its role in coordinating or facilitating the delivery of transport related and other key strategic or priority
projects.

When capitalised, works in progress result in the recognition of non-current assets such as network assets
and other items of property, plant or equipment in the Balance Sheet.

In accordance with AASB 116, all works in progress arising from these activities are valued at cost.

Intangible Assets

The acquisition or internal development of software is only capitalised when the expenditure can be reliably
measured in accordance with AASB 138, existing Departmental policies and where the amount of
expenditure is greater than or equal to $10 000, in accordance with APF III.

Costs associated with the development or implementation software applications that do not meet the
criteria for asset recognition (eg training expenses, research costs, etc) are expensed.

Under these requirements the Department has recognised at cost assets relating to the following significant
items of software:

Transport Regulation User Management Processing System (TRUMPS) (Phase 1)
Strategic Asset Management Information System (SAMIS)

Office Accommodation Management Information System (OAMIS)
Telecommunication Billing System (TBS)

Web Based Purchasing Interface (with ICT vendors)

In accordance with AASB 138, the Department has also recognised as intangibles the value of licence
agreements held with ETSA Utilities for use of broadband fibre at regional centres (Port Augusta, Whyalla
and Port Lincoln).

Revaluation of Non-Current Assets

In accordance with APF III APS 3.1 and 3.3, the Department revalues all its non-current physical assets to
their estimated fair value. Revaluations are performed only in instances where the fair value of the asset or
asset group at the time of acquisition is greater than $1 million and the estimated useful life is greater than
three years.
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3.20 Revaluation of Non-Current Assets (continued)
The Department revalues land, buildings, leasehold improvements and major plant every two or three years
depending on the nature or purpose for which that property is held. Office or building fit-outs that qualify
for separate asset recognition are not revalued and are therefore carried at their historic cost.

With the exception of the Government Radio Network system, PABX and transmission equipment, the
Department does not revalue its information technology/communication and minor plant assets, as these
items do not meet the revaluation threshold.

When depreciable non-current assets are revalued, the Department uses the ‘gross method’ in accounting
for the accumulated depreciation on revaluation.

If at any time the carrying amount of an asset materially differs from its fair value, then the Department
revalues the asset regardless of when the last valuation took place. Non-current physical assets that are
acquired between revaluations are either held at cost until the next valuation, or revalued if the fair value is
likely to be materially different from the acquisition value.

Revaluation increments are credited directly to the Asset Revaluation Reserve. If within an asset class, an
increment reverses a revaluation decrement previously recognised as an expense in the Income Statement
within that class, the increment is recognised as revenue in the Income Statement, but only to the extent of
the decrement previously recognised in this financial statement.

Revaluation decrements are offset against any previous Asset Revaluation Reserve increment for a
particular class of asset and any remaining balance is expensed.

When entire classes or groups of assets are sold, the revaluation increments relating to those assets are
transferred to Retained Earnings in accordance with APF III APS 3.11.

The valuation methodology applied to specific classes of non-current assets under revaluations is as follows:

Land, Buildings and Facilities
Land and buildings that are subject to commercial leases and held for the provision of government agency
accommodation are revalued every two years based on independent valuations.

Land and buildings that are subject to residential leases and held for the provision of housing of
government employees in remote areas are revalued annually using the Valuer-General of South Australia
assessment adjusted by an index for the average gains/losses in real property values experienced over the
previous four years.

All other land, buildings and facilities held by the Department are valued on a three year rolling basis.

All other land, except for land under roads, land under water and land acquired for current road projects is
valued at fair value based on Valuer-General's assessments or from independent valuations. Land under
roads and land under water are not recognised, and land acquired for current road projects is carried at
historic cost.

All other buildings and facilities are generally valued at written down replacement cost as determined under
independent valuations or by suitably qualified valuation officers of the Department.

Where Valuer-General information is used to measure the value of buildings, that value is based on the
Valuer-General’s assessment of the building being the difference between the capital value and the site
value of the property.

Network Assets

With the exception of earthworks, all network assets are valued at written down replacement cost either by
independent valuers, or by suitably qualified officers of the Department. These assets have no market and
are therefore measured at written down replacement cost which is considered to be equivalent to fair value.
The reasonableness of this valuation approach for road pavements and earthworks was agreed upon under
the advice from an independent engineering consultant (L B Dowling & Associates) in 2001-02.

The Department’s methodology for valuing road pavements includes the recognition of salvage values to
ensure that depreciation expense on road pavements is in accordance with the treatment prescribed in
AASB 116.

Plant and Equipment

Plant and equipment subject to revaluation is valued at written down replacement cost. Plant and
equipment, which does not meet the threshold for revaluation, is valued at historic cost. In these
instances, historic cost is deemed to be the fair value of these assets.

Non-Current Works in Progress
Non-current works in progress is not revalued but carried at historic cost.
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Assets Acquired under Government Restructures or Other Changes in Administrative Arrangements

Former Australian National Rail Land and Associated Assets
These assets have been progressively defined, valued and recorded in the Department’s asset
register as assets vested in or transferred to the Minister for Transport.

Land and buildings on major rail yards subject to commercial leases is based on the
Valuer-General’s determination of market value, or the latest Valuer-General assessment
depending on the terms of the lease. All other rail-related land and buildings are valued using the
Valuer-General’s assessment of site value for land and the difference between capital value and
site value of the property for buildings.

The value for land under rail or rail reserves on Interstate Mainline awaiting title and/or division is
based on net present value of future income flows (nominal only).

Former Energy SA Land and Associated Assets

On 1 July 2005, the functions of Energy SA transferred to the Department. Assets subject to this
transfer included land, buildings, plant and equipment associated with the operation of local
township power stations. In accordance with APF III APS 2.12, these assets were brought to
account at amounts equal to the value recorded by the transferor entity as at 30 June 2005 with a
view that all assets be defined, titled and revalued using valuation principles applied to similar
assets.

In May 2007, the Department initiated a revaluation of the former Energy SA assets. As at
30 June 2007, all land had been subsequently defined, titled and revalued using Valuer-General’s
assessments. The revaluation of buildings, plant and equipment via independent valuation
assessments is expected to be completed in September 2007.

Purchase of Tram Infrastructure from TransAdelaide

On 30 June 2006, the Department acquired from TransAdelaide a number of tram related assets.
These assets included the existing tram infrastructure and extensive upgrades or improvements to
the tram tracks, electrical network, buildings, plant and equipment supporting the Adelaide-Glenelg
Tram Line and Glengowrie Tram Barn.

For 30 June 2006, the tram infrastructure assets were brought to account or recognised in the
Department’s system records and ledger at a summarised level only. As at 30 June 2007, all assets
subject to the purchase had been individually defined, titled and revalued.

Former DAIS Land, Buildings and other Assets

On 1 January 2007, the Department assumed financial responsibility for a number of functions
from the restructuring of DAIS. In accordance with APF III APS 2.12, the assets were brought to
account at amounts equal to the value recorded by the transferor entity (DAIS) as at 31 December
2006.

The transfer of these assets assumed that subsequent revaluations of the assets would be
performed in an orderly manner in accordance with schedules that existed prior to the transfer.

As at 30 June 2007, the assets have continued to be defined, valued and recorded in the asset
registers vested and maintained by or on behalf of the business areas. Revaluations have been
performed as scheduled.

Amendments or Variations to Departmental Revaluation Methodologies and Schedules

Weigh Bridges/Weigh Slabs and Navigational Aids
The Department has deferred its planned revaluation of weigh bridges, weigh slabs and
navigational aids to the 2007-08 financial year.

The Department is currently undertaking an extensive program of upgrading these assets which
may involve the decommissioning and replacement of some items. Revaluations will therefore be
performed at the completion of these upgrades. The written down replacement cost for weigh
stations and weigh slabs as at 30 June 2007 is $118 000.

The Department is currently pursuing a major physical inspection program for all navigational aids
installed in South Australian waters. Revaluations are expected to be performed as part of that
program. The written down replacement cost for navigational aids as at 30 June 2007 is $123 000.

O’Bahn Busway Interchanges
A lack of sufficiently qualified resources has resulted in the deferral of the revaluation of the
Busway Interchange assets to the 2007-08 financial year.

As an interim revaluation strategy for reporting Busway Interchange assets as at 30 June 2007,
the Department has opted to increase the current carrying amount of existing assets using the
Road and Bridge Construction Index from ABS, applicable to each of the last three financial years,
to arrive at a revised carrying amount for Busway Interchanges of $9.811 million.
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The Department revaluation policy requires the carrying amount of agency and marine related
buildings and facilities to be re-valued every three years. In late February 2007, the Department
engaged an independent valuer (Liquid Pacific Holdings Pty Ltd) for the purpose of reassessing the
values of approximately 900 different sites or structures.

As at 30 June 2007, management had not had the opportunity to thoroughly review or resolve all
matters pertaining to the estimates submitted by the valuer in the draft Valuation Report. The
Department has therefore deferred the bringing to account of the latest estimates for this

revaluation until sign off can be achieved.

revaluation by November 2007.

Timing of Asset Revaluations

The Department is committed to completing this

The following table shows the classes of assets held by the Department, when they were last revalued and

by whom:

Asset Class

Last Valued/

Revalued

By Whom

Network

Roads pavements, including small
signs, pavement marking and
median kerbing

Earthworks

Bridges/Culverts

Major signs

Ferry landings

Traffic signals

Drainage

Road lighting

Weighbridges and weigh slabs

Rail and Track

Busway track and structures
Busway interchanges
Adelaide-Glenelg tram line

Land

Rail land

Marine land

Bus Depot land

Government employee housing

Government agency
accommodation

All other land

Buildings and Facilities

Marine related

Rail related

Bus depots

Glengowrie Tram Depot

Residential Buildings:
Future road construction
Government employee housing

Commercial Buildings:
Future road construction
Government agency

accommodation
Other departmental

Plant and Equipment

Buses

Tram Cars

Bus depot plant and equipment

Glengowrie Depot plant and
equipment

Government Radio Network

PABX and transmission equipment

Other information technology

Towing vessel

Ferries (including modules)

Navigational aids

Minor plant

30 June 2007

30 June 2007

30 June 2007
30 June 2007
30 June 2007
30 June 2005
30 June 2006
30 June 2005
30 June 2004

30 June 2007
30 June 2007
1 July 2006

30 June 2007
30 June 2006
30 June 2006
30 June 2006
1 July 2006

30 June 2006

30 June 2004
30 June 2005
30 June 2007
1 July 2006

30 June 2006
30 June 2006

30 June 2006
1 July 2006

30 June 2004

30 June 2007
1 July 2006
30 June 2006
1 July 2006

30 June 2005
30 June 2005
Not applicable

28 February 2007

30 June 2005
30 June 2004
Not applicable
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Amando Reyes, BSEng (Civil), Grad Dip (Project
Management)

Amando Reyes, BSEng (Civil), Grad Dip (Project
Management)

Tony Nobbs, BEEng (Civil), Master Eng Science
Tony Nobbs, BEEng (Civil), Master Eng Science
Tony Nobbs, BEEng (Civil), Master Eng Science
Brendan MclIntosh, BEng (Electrical)

Bill Lipp, BTech Civil Eng, Grad Dip Maths

Rick Burt, (Cert in Electrical Eng)

Modern Weighbridge and Scale Service Pty Ltd
and various departmental officers

Tony Nobbs, BEEng (Civil), Master Eng Science
[Management assessment - indexed]
Rushton Valuers Pty Ltd

Valuer-General
Valuer-General

Liquid Pacific Holdings Pty Ltd
Valuer-General plus index
Frank Knight Valuations

Valuer-General

Liquid Pacific Holdings Pty Ltd
Various

Liquid Pacific Holdings Pty Ltd
Rushton Valuers Pty Ltd

Valuer-General
Valuer-General plus index

Qualified departmental officers
Frank Knight Valuations

Liquid Pacific Holdings Pty Ltd

Liquid Pacific Holdings Pty Ltd
Rushton Valuers Pty Ltd
Evans and Clarke

Rushton Valuers Pty Ltd

Gibson Quai
Gibson Quai

K. Tech Marine
Gary Harvey, BEng (Mechanical Eng)
Alex Colligan
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3.21

3.22

Revaluation of Intangible Assets

Software applications that have been specifically developed for the Department and cannot be actively
traded in the market place are not revalued. These intangibles will continue to be reported at their historic
cost less accumulated amortisation in accordance with AASB 138.

Depreciation and Amortisation of Assets
Amortisation is used in relation to intangible assets, while depreciation is applied to physical assets such as
property, plant and equipment.

The useful life of an asset is generally determined on the basis of ‘economic useful life to the entity’. The
useful lives of all major assets held by the Department are reassessed on an annual basis.

With the exception of land, earthworks and works in progress, all non-current assets having a limited useful
life are systematically depreciated/amortised over their estimated useful lives in a manner that reflects the
consumption of their service potential.

Land, earthworks and work in progress are not depreciated. Buildings residing on land acquired for current
road projects are not recognised and therefore are not depreciated.

The value of leasehold improvements is amortised over the estimated useful life of each improvement, or
the unexpired period of the relevant lease, whichever is shorter. Similarly, the value of finance lease assets
is amortised over the shorter of the lease term and the underlying asset’s useful life.

Capitalised software is amortised over the useful life of the intangible asset, with a maximum period for

amortisation of 10 years.

Depreciation/amortisation for non-current assets are determined as follows:

Asset Class Method Estimated Useful Life
Land Improvements
Land remediation (capitalised) Straight line 3 years
Leased Assets
Computers and network printers Straight line 3-4 years
State core network Straight line 3-5 years
Network Assets
Roads Straight line 40-58 years
Roads (unsealed) Straight line 15-35 years
Bridges/Culverts Straight line 30-200 years based on individual structures
Major signs Straight line 36-60 years
Traffic signals Straight line 15 years
Road lighting Straight line 25 years
Other Straight line Useful life depends on individual asset items
Rail and Track
Busway (including interchanges) Straight line 4-100 years based on individual structures
Adelaide - Glenelg Tram Line Straight line 5-155 years based on individual structures
Buildings, Fitouts and Facilities
Glengowrie tram depot Straight line 7-50 years
Bus depots Straight line 15-40 years
Government agency Straight line 40 years
accommodation
Government employee housing Straight line 66 years
Building fitouts Straight line 15 years
Other Straight line 3-100 years based on individual asset items
Plant and Equipment
Tram cars Straight line 30 years
Glengowrie depot plant and Straight line 15-20 years based on individual asset items
equipment

Buses Diminishing value 25 years
Bus depot plant and equipment Straight line 3-25 years based on individual asset items
Other plant and equipment Straight line 5-99 years based on individual asset items
Government Radio Network:

Towers/masts and other Straight line 30-40 years

structures

Data and voice net equipment  Straight line 10-15 years

Other GRN equipment Straight line 3-10 years
PABX equipment Straight line 3-7 years
Transmission equipment Straight line 5-20 years
Information technology equipment  Straight line 3 years
Intangible Assets Straight line 5-25 years
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3.24

3.25

3.26
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Remediation of Non-Current Assets

Land remediation costs are capitalised and depreciated only where the resultant costs incurred in
performing that remediation have met the definition and recognition criteria of an asset. Land remediation
undertaken within the Department is primarily designed to restore the asset to its original state or condition
and would not normally meet the criteria for asset recognition under the AASB ‘Framework for the
Preparation of Financial Statements’, paragraphs 89-90 ‘Recognition of Assets’. These costs are therefore
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Where the remedial work is to be performed in response
to a present obligation, either under legislation or under a contractual arrangement to a third party, the
Department recognises a provision for any future work in accordance with the requirements of AASB 137.

Payables
Payables include creditors, accrued expenses and employment on-costs.

Creditors represent the amounts owed by the Department for goods and services provided by other entities
that are unpaid at the end of the reporting period where an invoice has been received.

Accrued expenses represent amounts owed by the Department for goods and services provided by other
entities that are unpaid at the end of the reporting period where an invoice has not been received.

Employment on-costs include superannuation contributions and payroll tax with respect to outstanding
liabilities for salaries and wages, long service leave and annual leave.

The Department also makes contributions to several superannuation schemes operated by the State
Government. These contributions are treated as an expense when they occur. There is no liability for
payments to beneficiaries as the South Australian Superannuation Board (SASB) has assumed these
obligations. The only payable outstanding at reporting date relates to any contributions due but not yet
paid to the SASB.

All payables are measured at their nominal amount. Creditors are normally settled within 30 days after the
Department receives an invoice in accordance with TI 11.

Interest Bearing Liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities consists of borrowings or loans and liabilities associated with assets held under
finance leases.

Borrowings are recognised when issued at the full amount received and carried at this value less any
repayments until the loan is settled. Intra-division borrowings (or loans) are non-interest bearing and are
eliminated upon consolidation.

Interest charges on borrowings and finance leases are not applied to the balance of the loan due. These
costs are recognised separately as ‘borrowing costs’ in the Income Statement.

Leases

The Department has entered into finance leases and operating leases both as lessor and lessee and has
recognised assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses associated with these business dealings in accordance
with AASB 117 and the ‘Government Leasing Guidelines’ as issued by the DTF.

Finance Leases - the Department as Lessor

. Recreational Jetties
The Department has entered into leases as lessor, in regards to the Government’s Recreational
Jetties Divestment Program where 29 jetties have been leased to Councils throughout the State.
Peppercorn rentals of $1 per annum apply over the 50 or 99-year lease term for each lease.

Under the terms of the lease agreement, these leases have been categorised as finance leases due
to the passing of risks and benefits incidental to ownership to the lessee. Since the leases provide no
material revenue to the Department, the leases have nil value. The underlying assets are also no
longer recorded on the Department’s asset register.

o Government Employee Housing
The Department provides housing services on a leasehold basis to government employees based in
remote areas of the State. As lessor, the Department recognises finance lease receivables in
relation to these properties at an amount equal to its net investment in the lease. Finance lease
interest income is recognised based on the periodic rate of return on that net investment. Lease
payments from the lessee are applied against the gross investment in the lease to reduce both the
principle and the unearned interest income.

Finance Leases - the Department as Lessee

. Government Accommodation - Roma Mitchell Building
The Department is responsible for the finance lease in relation to government office accommodation
for Roma Mitchell House, North Terrace and has recognised assets and liabilities at the fair value of
the leased property. Lease liabilities under these arrangements are classified as both current and
non-current, with the minimum lease payments allocated between interest expense/borrowing costs
and the reduction of lease liability for the period.
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3.27

3.28

3.29

. Government Accommodation - Roma Mitchell Building (continued)
The 40 year lease on Roma Mitchell House commenced in July 1987. Ownership of the building will
transfer to the Department on payment of a nominal sum at the end of the lease. The lease
agreement includes a half-way buy-out option at 1 July 2007 for the lessee which the Department
has chosen not to exercise. Under the terms and conditions of the lease agreement, the Department
is also liable to pay contingent rentals based on the Adelaide Consumer Price Index.

. Personal Computers and Network Printers
The Department has entered into various lease arrangements as lessee with respect to the use of its
computer equipment. Under the AASs and Government Leasing Guidelines, such agreements are
treated as finance leases.

. State Core Network
The Department has numerous finance leases with EDS for information technology computer
hardware and software. The lease terms are generally three to five years and are non-cancellable. At
the end of the lease, ownership of the leased property is transferred to the Department upon
payment of a nominal sum.

Operating Leases — the Department as Lessor

The Department leases commercial and residential properties to external parties through operating leases.
Income derived from these leases is recognised as rental income in the Income Statement in the period in
which it is earned, and in the case of commercial properties, is representative of the patterns of benefits
derived from the leased assets.

Operating Leases - the Department as Lessee

The Department has a number of operating lease agreements as lessee for plant, motor vehicles, office
equipment and office accommodation. Operating lease payments are charged to the Income Statement on
a basis that is representative of the pattern of benefits derived from the leased assets.

Employee Benefits
Benefits accrue to employees as a result of services provided up to reporting date and generally consist of
unpaid salaries and wages, annual and long service leave.

The liability for salaries and wages is measured as the amount unpaid at reporting date at remuneration
rates current at the reporting date. The liability for annual leave reflects the value of total annual leave
entitlements of all employees as at 30 June and is measured at nominal amounts.

In accordance with APF 1V, the liability for long service leave is recognised by the Department after an
employee has completed six and a half years of service. The provision for this liability is calculated using
current remuneration rates. The liability payable within 12 months has been measured at nominal value,
while the liability payable later than 12 months has been measured at a discounted value in accordance
with AASB 119 and APF V.

No provision has been made for sick leave as all sick leave is non-vesting and the average sick leave taken
in future years by employees is estimated to be less than the annual entitlement of sick leave.

Related on-costs of payroll tax, superannuation and workers compensation premiums are shown under the
item Payables in the Balance Sheet.

Provisions

Liabilities have been reported to reflect workers compensation claims not settled, amounts provided for and
payable under the Tax Equivalent Regime (TER), and future remediation work required on land under the
Ports Corp Business and Sale Agreement.

The workers compensation provision is based on an actuarial assessment co-ordinated by the Public Sector
Workforce Wellbeing group within the Public Sector Workforce Division of the Department of the Premier
and Cabinet.

The provision for TER payments is based on the income tax expense payable at the current income tax rate
of 30 cents. (Refer to Note 3.7).

The land remediation provision has been calculated on the basis of revised project manager estimates of
the value of future remedial work required to meet agreed environmental standards. Given that the
remaining work has been scheduled to be performed over a period of four years from 2007-08, these
estimates are discounted at their net present value in accordance with the requirements of paragraph 45 of
AASB 137.

Other Current Liabilities

The Department receives monies in advance in the form of conditional grants to undertake specific
infrastructure works in future periods (ie AusLink Advance Specific Projects, Rail Facilitation Advance). As
these works are completed the amounts received are recognised as revenues in the Income Statement. The
balance of any unspent grant monies as at 30 June is recognised as a liability in the Balance Sheet.
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3.29 Other Current Liabilities (continued)
The Department receives incentive monies from building owners that are applied towards the costs of office
fitouts performed on commercial properties occupied by other government agencies. These monies are
recognised as revenues when works are completed with the balance of unspent funds recognised as current
liabilities.

3.30 Transactions by the Government as Owner
Where monies have been appropriated to the Department under the Appropriation Act in the form of an
equity contribution, the Treasurer has acquired a financial interest in the net assets of the Department.
Monies issued or applied in this manner are therefore recorded as equity contributions from SA Government
in accordance with TI 3.

Financial Risk Management
The Department holds interest bearing financial assets and liabilities where its exposure to fair value (market) risk
and cash flow interest risk is considered minimal.

Interest bearing financial assets include funds in the form of cash deposits at call where interest revenue is
calculated using the Common Public Sector Interest Rate (CPSIR) and/or other rates as determined by the
Treasurer. The Department accrues all interest revenue and does not apply that revenue to its expenditure
programs unless permitted by whole of government budget priorities and ministerial approvals, or by authorities
within specific legislative provisions and/or funding agreements. The Department’s expenditure approvals are not
dependent on the amount of interest revenue earned on these financial assets.

Interest bearing financial liabilities consist of finance leases and borrowings. The interest expense implicit in any
finance lease payments is fixed at the inception of the lease and is calculated using prevailing government
borrowing rates as advised by the South Australian Government Financing Authority (SAFA). Interest expense on
the Department’s borrowings is calculated using the CPSIR. Repayments on loans are negotiated with SAFA. The
Department’s revenue base is sufficient for the purpose of servicing its interest or loan repayment commitments
on interest bearing liabilities.

The Department’s maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date is reflected in the carrying amount of its
receivables in the Balance Sheet. The Department has no significant concentration of credit risk associated with
these financial assets. The Department has credit management policies and procedures in place to ensure that
business transactions continue to occur with customers with appropriate credit history.

The Department enters into business transactions that require the payment of goods or services in a foreign
currency. Foreign currency risk associated with significant payments is minimised using a strategy of obtaining
forward cover contracts through the SAFA. This forward cover aims to hedge against losses arising from any
foreign currency price fluctuations at the date of settlement.

In relation to liquidity/funding risk, the continued existence of the Department in its present form, and with its
present programs, is dependent on government policy, the operation of current fee and charges structures, and
continuing appropriations from various acts.

Changes in Accounting Policies

5.1 Statement of Compliance
Except for the amendments to AASB 101, which the Department has early-adopted, the AASs and
Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet effective, have not been adopted
by the Department for the reporting period ending 30 June 2007. The Department has assessed the impact
of the new and amended standards and interpretations and considers there will be no impact on the
accounting policies or the financial report of the Department, except as outlined in the table below.

Application Impacton Application
Date of Financial Date for
Reference Title Summary Standard Report Department
AASB 7 ‘Financial New standard replacing 1 January AASB 7 is a disclosure 1 July 2007
Instruments: the disclosure require- 2007 standard and is not
Disclosures’ ments of AASB 132 expected to have a

direct impact on the
amounts disclosed in
the Department’s

financial statements

AASB 2005-10 Amendments to Amendments to other 1 January Not all amended 1 July 2007
AAS arising from applicable standards 2007 standards are relevant
AAS 7 that arise from the to the operations of
(AASBs 132, release of AASB 7 in the Department. For
101, 114, 117, August 2005. those standards that
133139, 1, 4, are relevant,
1023 & 1038) amendments entail

requirements or
corrections for
references to AASB 7
that will have no
impact on the amounts
disclosed in the
Department’s financial
statements
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5.1 Statement of Compliance (continued)
Application Impacton Application
Date of Financial Date for
Reference Title Summary Standard Report Department
AASB Determining Specific criteria for 1 January The Department would 1 July 2008
Interpretation 4 whether an determining whether an 2008 not enter into any
arrangement arrangement is or arrangement for the
contains a lease contains a lease. use of an asset in
(revised) Determination is based return for payment
on an assessment of unless the arrange-
whether the arrange- ment takes the legal
ment is dependent on form of a lease.
the use of a specific Amendments are not
asset and whether the expected to alter
arrangement conveys existing accounting
right to the asset practices or to have
any impact on the
Department’s financial
statements.
AASB ‘Service Interpretation provides 1 January The Department’s 1 July 2007
Interpretation 12  Concession accounting guidance for 2008 future participation in
and UIG 129 Arrangements operators participating service concession
and Service in public to private arrangements is
Concession service concession unknown. Unless
Arrangement arrangements but no AASB approves 'mirror’
Disclosures’ guidance for grantors. accounting treatment
UIG 29 details disclosu- for operators and
res required by both grantors, these
operators and grantors amendments are not
expected to have an
impact on the amounts
disclosed in the
Department’s financial
statements
AASB 2007-2 Amendments to Amendments provide 28 February  Not all amended 1 July 2008
AAS arising from for an exemption from 2007 standards are relevant
AASB AASB 1 requirements, to the operations of
Interpretation 12 e prior period the Department. For
(AASBs 1, 117, information be restated those standards that
118, 120, 121, as if the requirements are relevant,
127, 131 & 139) of AASB Interpreta- amendments to AASB
tion 12 had always 1 are not expected to
applied. have an impact on the
Exemption allows a first Department's financial
time adopter to apply statements unless the
AASB Interpretation 12 AASB approves ‘mirror’
to a service concession accounting treatment
arrangement essentially for both operators and
from the start of the grantors. Amendments
earliest period to other standards are
presented. editorial in nature and
Amendments to other will therefore have no
standards involve substantive impact on
references to the financial
interpretations rather statements.
than UIG's.
AASB 2007-4 Amendments to Amendments include April 2007 Not all amended 1 July 2007

AAS arising from
ED 151 and
Other
Amendments
(AASB 1, 2, 3, 4,
5,6,7,102,
107, 108, 110,
112, 114, 116,
117, 118, 119,
120, 121, 127,
128, 129, 130,
131, 132, 133,
134, 136, 137,
138, 139, 141,
1023 & 1038)

options that currently
exist under IFRS to be
included in the
Australian Standards,
as well as a number of
editorial changes.
Amendments to

AASB 107 specifically
provide a choice in
using the direct or
indirect method for
presenting the Cash
Flow Statement.

standards are relevant
to the operations of
the Department. With
respect to AASB 107,
the Department does
not expect the option
to use the direct or
indirect method to
materially alter the
presentation format of
the Cash Flow
Statement as the
Department will
continue to use the
Model Financial
Reports as its guide in
preparing that financial
statement.
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Application Impacton Application
Date of Financial Date for
Reference Title Summary Standard Report Department
AASB 2007-5 Amendments to Amendments require May 2007 The Department 1 July 2007
Inventories Held inventories held for already includes
for Distribution distribution to be factors such as
by Not-for-Profit measured (when obsolescence in the
Entities applicable) at cost value determination of
(AASB 102) adjusted for any loss of its inventories. The
service potential and amendments to
disclosure of the basis AASB 102 are
for determining that therefore expected to
loss. have only a minor
impact on the
Department’s financial
statement disclosures.
AASB 2007-6 Amendments to Amendments to other June 2007 The Department does January
AAS arising from applicable standards not normally hold 2009
AASB 123 that arise from the assets which would
(AASB 1, 101, reissue of AASB 123 in meet the definition of
107, 111, 116 & June 2007. Specifically ‘qualifying assets’
138 and amendments include under AASB 123. The
Interpretations 1 the removal of amendments to other
& 12) references to expensing standards are not
borrowing costs on expected to have an
qualifying assets as impact on the
such costs can now be Department’s financial
capitalised. statements as al
borrowing costs are
required to be
expensed in
accordance with the
requirements of APS
3.3 of APF II.
AASB 2007-7 Amendments to Further amendments June 2007 Not all amended 1 July 2007

AASB 1, 2, 4, 5,
107 & 128)

arising from the issue of
AASB 2007-4 in

May 2007. With
respect to AASB 5, the
amendments consist of
minor editorial changes.
With respect to

AASB 107, the
amendments remove
the encouragement to
adopt a particular
format for the Cash
Flow Statement.

standards are relevant
to the operations of
the Department. For
those standards that
are relevant,
amendments to

AASB 5 and AASB 107
will have no impact on
the Department’s
financial statements.

Other Changes to Accounting Policies

Asset Recognition

During 2006-07 the Department amended a number of its asset recognition policies to improve financial
reporting and minimise inconsistent accounting practices across divisions. All asset policy changes were
applied to the Department’s operations from 1 July 2006.

. Asset Capitalisation Threshold and Grouping Arrangements

The Department amended asset recognition policies by increasing the asset capitalisation threshold
for plant and equipment from $2000 to $10 000 for individual items and clarifying grouping
provisions for these items. This change in policy resulted in the write-off of minor asset balances
with a written down value of $195 000 for the 2006-07 financial year.

Recognition of Building Fitouts

The Department amended the accounting and reporting treatment for building fitouts. Previously
the cost of building fitouts was expensed on the basis that items forming part of upgrades could not
be effectively tracked for replacement, depreciation and revaluation purposes. The expansion of the
Department’s commercial and residential property management functions under recent restructuring
arrangements required a reassessment of this treatment.

Under the revised policy, the Department will recognise assets fitouts on owned or leased buildings

subject to materiality and/or other criteria for recognition of these items in the Balance Sheet. The
Department will not be revaluing building fitouts.
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Recognition of Buildings on Land Acquired for Road Purposes

The Department has reviewed the accounting and reporting treatment for buildings residing on land
acquired for current road projects. Previously, buildings acquired through the purchase of properties
were recognised separately from the land. Under the revised policy the value or purchase price for
the property is now attributed all to the land, with no separate recognition of buildings. The new
treatment is based on the view that the outlay incurred is principally for the purpose of acquiring the
land for current road projects.

In accordance with this change in policy, the Department transferred the value of buildings brought
to account on current road projects such as the South Road upgrade, Northern Expressway, Port
River Expressway and replacement of the Bakewell Bridge. The total amount transferred was
$10 346 million of which $3192 million relates to the value of buildings purchased prior to 2006-07.
With this transfer, the Department also recorded a downward adjustment of $1023 million against
the opening balance of its Retained Earnings in the Balance Sheet. This adjustment represented the
write off for the accumulated depreciation as at 30 June 2006 associated with those buildings which
the Department had previously recognised separately from the land.

6. Programs of the Department
In achieving its objectives, the Department provides a range of services classified into the following programs:

Program 1

Program 2

Program 3

Program 4

Program 5

Program 6

Program 7

Program 8

Program 9

Program 10

Program 11

Transport Policy and Planning
Development and provision of an effective policy framework, advice and strategic planning
services surrounding legislation committed to the Minister.

Transport Infrastructure Services
The efficient and effective maintenance and operation of marine, rail, road and bridge
infrastructure and facilities.

Transport Safety and Regulation Services
Provision of services that regulate access to the transport system under legislation committed to
the Minister and to provide advice on transport safety matters.

Public Transport Services

Provision of efficient, equitable and accessible public transport services in metropolitan Adelaide
and assisting regional councils and communities to deliver diverse passenger transport services
to meet local needs.

Energy Policy and Regulation

Provision of policy advice on energy issues, energy program delivery and regulatory services for
the competitive, sustainable, safe and reliable supply and use of energy, for the benefit of the
South Australian community.

State Infrastructure Facilitation

Review of infrastructure needs and provision of services in relation to prioritisation of across
government infrastructure development and the delivery of key projects for the State
Government.

Road Safety Policy, Planning and Services
Provision of policy, planning and services to improve road safety in South Australia.

ICT Services

Provision of strategic government services, primarily across the public sector, including strategic
advice on, and coordination of, agency and sector specific ICT initiatives to assist agencies in the
efficient delivery of services to the government and the community.

Building Management
Provision of services to government agencies in relation to the construction, maintenance and
management of building assets.

Community Services

Provision of specialised services and support, information and policy to the community,
government, industry and the Minister in the areas of land administration and the provision of
wider access to government information, services and transactions.

Support Services to Government

Provision of a comprehensive range of ICT services to the Parliament of South Australia including
Members and their staff while in Parliament House and at other locations in the State including
electorate and home offices.
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Employee Benefit Expenses 2007 2006
$'000 $'000

Salaries and wages 110 541 89 401
Board and committee (refer below) 105 125
Employment on-costs ) 21 661 16 168
Annual leave 12 253 8 568
Long service leave 6 323 3 367
Workers compensation expenses 1 890 1 697
TVSP separation payments (refer below) - 1 609
Other employee related expenses 1 594 559
Total Employee Benefit Expense 154 340 121 494

(1) Employment on-costs is made up of Superannuation of $13.821 million ($10.049 million) and Payroll Tax of
$7.840 million ($6.119 million).

TVSPs
TVSPs paid to employees during the reporting period - 1 609
Annual leave and long service leave accrued over the period - 495
Recovery from the Department of Treasury and Finance - 1 609
2007 2006
Number of Number of
Employees Employees
Number of employees that were paid TVSPs during the reporting period - 18

The Department is not owed any monies in relation to TVSPs as at 30 June 2007.

Remuneration of Employees
The number of employees whose remuneration received or receivable
falls within the following bands:

$100 000 - $109 999 45 34
$110 000 - $119 999 21 15
$120 000 - $129 999
$130 000 - $139 999
$140 000 - $149 999
$150 000 - $159 999
$160 000 - $169 999
$170 000 - $179 999
$180 000 - $189 999
$190 000 - $199 999
$200 000 - $209 999
$210 000 - $219 999
$220 000 - $229 999
$240 000 - $249 999
$250 000 - $259 999
$280 000 - $289 999
$300 000 - $309 999
$510 000 - $519 999

Total Number of Employees 108 84

[
1T EE ) ERERENEWONNDDADWN

The table includes all employees who received remuneration of $100 000 or more during the year. The total
remuneration for the 108 employees (84 employees) was $13.81 million ($11.11 million) and reflects all costs of
employment including salaries and wages, superannuation contributions (employer's contribution), FBT, other
salary sacrifice benefits and separation packages for those with salaries over $100 000.

A number of functions from the former DAIS were transferred to the Department effective from 1 January 2007.
The remuneration table above includes two officers who received remuneration of $100 000 or more during the
period 1 January 2007 to 30 June 2007.

Below is a table showing all employees of the former DAIS transferred to the Department who received
remuneration of $100 000 or more during the financial year from 1 July 2006 to 30 June 2007.
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Remuneration of Former DAIS Employees 2007
The number of employees whose remuneration received or receivable Number of
falls within the following bands: Employees
$100 000 - $109 999 21
$110 000 - $119 999 7
$120 000 - $129 999 1
$130 000 - $139 999 3
$140 000 - $149 999 8
$150 000 - $159 999 3
$160 000 - $169 999 2
$170 000 - $179 999 2
$190 000 - $199 999 1
$200 000 - $209 999 3
Total Number of Employees 51

Remuneration of Board and Committee Members
Members that were entitled to receive remuneration for membership during the 2006-07 financial year were:

Government Office Accommodation Committee
David McArdle (expired 30 June 2007)

Major Projects Facilitation Group

Mr Grant Belchamber (expired 1 January 2007)

Mr John Bastian (expired 1 January 2007)

Mr Malcolm Kinnaird (expired 1 January 2007)

Mr Franco Moretti (expired 1 January 2007)

Mr Andrew Vernon Fletcher (expired 1 January 2007)*

Passenger Transport Standards Committee
Ms Gerada Bader

Mr Ian Bassham

Mr David Gunner*

Ms Margaret Heylen

Mr John Jackson

Ms Kathleen Johnston

Ms Branka King

Mr David King

Mr Geoffrey Krieger

Mr John Mc Kenzie

Ms Deborah Myhill

Mr Frank Pearce

Ms Josephine Tiddy

Mr Denis Hehir (resigned 31 December 2006)
Mr Gordon Porter (resigned 31 December 2006)

South Australian Boating Facility Advisory
Committee
Mr Rodney Payze

Stormwater Management Committee
Mr Nick Bolkus (14 September 2006 - 30 June 2007)
Mr William Woods (14 September 2006 - 30 June 2007)

Energy Consumers Council

Mr Max Baldock

Mr Owen Covick

Ms Jane Fisher (appointed 27 March 2007)
Ms Karen Grogan

Ms Rose Linh Le (appointed 27 March 2007)
Mr Anthony Moore

Mr Nathan Paine (appointed 27 March 2007)
Mr John Pike (appointed 27 March 2007)

Ms Carol Vincent (appointed 27 March 2007)

Road Safety Advisory Council
Mr Alex Gallacher

Mr Jack McLean

Sir Eric Neal

2007 2006

The number of members whose remuneration received or receivable falls within Number of Number of
the following bands: Members Members
$0 - $9 999 34 31
$10 000 - $19 999 1 2
$30 000 - $39 999 - 1
Total Number of Members 35 34

Remuneration of members reflects all costs of performing board/committee member duties including sitting fees,
superannuation contributions, FBT and other salary sacrifice arrangements. The total remuneration received or
receivable by members was $105 000 ($125 000).

Amounts paid to a superannuation plan for board/committee members was $7000 ($10 000).
Unless otherwise disclosed, transactions between Board members and the Department are on conditions no more
favourable than those that it is reasonable to expect the entity would have adopted if dealing with the related

party at arm's length in the same circumstances.

* In accordance with the Department of the Premier and Cabinet Circular 16, government employees did not
receive any remuneration for board/committee duties during the financial year.
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Supplies and Services 2007 2006
Supplies and Services provided by Entities within the SA Government: Note $’000 $’000
Bus and rail service contracts 93 494 93 695
Other service contracts 12 127 11 843
Operating leases 7 049 6 255
Property expenses 1284 1 446
Plant, equipment and vehicle expenses 71 4 682
Information technology 2 888 4 680
Materials and other purchases 203 11
Utilities 1 358 1159
Insurance 1703 1671
Legal services 1042 475
Auditor’s remuneration 13 584 315
Other 10 310 2 676
Total Supplies and Services - SA Government Entities 132113 128 908
Supplies and Services provided by Entities external to the SA Government:
Bus and rail service contracts 127 160 122 351
Major infrastructure maintenance contracts 61 342 74 456
Other service contracts 44 502 46 494
Consultants 433 12
Operating leases 44 620 5418
Property expenses 40 262 815
Plant, equipment and vehicle expenses 5799 4 529
Information technology 17 659 3144
Materials and other purchases 14 023 15 796
Utilities 19 524 7 803
Insurance 130 170
Legal services 109 165
Commissions - Transaction processing 5381 4 867
Administrative costs 11 058 11 965
Other 22 850 22 958
Total Supplies and Services - Non-SA Government Entities 414 852 320 943
Total Supplies and Services 546 965 449 851
Consultancies 2007 2006
The number and dollar amount of consultancies paid/payable Number $'000 Number $'000

that fell within the following bands:

Below $10 000 8 40 3 12
Between $10 000 and $50 000 1 13 1 42
Above $50 000 5 752 1 778

Total Paid/Payable to the Consultants Engaged 14 805 5 832

During 2006-07 the Department spent $805 000 ($832 000) on consultancies. This expenditure includes expenses
incurred in both investing and operating programs of the Department. Operating expenditure of $433 000
($12 000) is reflected in the Income Statement. The remaining expenditure is attributed to investing projects
under works in progress, or part of the costs of assets, that have been capitalised during 2006-07.

Depreciation and Amortisation 2007 2006
Depreciation: $'000 $'000
Network assets 117 647 109 077
Plant and equipment 30 403 21 265
Buildings and facilities 11 516 6 818
Total Depreciation 159 566 137 160
Amortisation:
Leased assets 1 236 969
Intangible assets 2107 398
Total Amortisation 3343 1 367
Total Depreciation and Amortisation 162 909 138 527

Change in Depreciation Due to a Revaluation
The Department revalued some of its network assets, plant, equipment and buildings in 2005-06. As a result of
that revaluation, depreciation on assets calculated for the current reporting period increased by $2.977 million. A
revaluation of similar assets including facilities was performed in June 2007 and is expected to increase this
expense in future periods by a further $511 000.

Change in Depreciation Due to a Revision in Accounting Estimates

In 2005-06 the Department reassessed the useful life of some of its assets. This review in accounting estimates
resulted in a decrease of $6.642 million in the calculated depreciation expense for the current period. A revision of
salvage values for network assets applied in June 2007 is expected to decrease the future annual depreciation
expense for the Department’s asset base by a further $5.957 million.
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10. Grants and Subsidies
Grants and Subsidies paid/payable to Entities within the SA Government:
Recurrent grants:
Contribution for policing services
Other
Total Grants and Subsidies - SA Government Entities

Grants and Subsidies paid/payable to Entities external to the SA Government:
Recurrent Grants:
Bus operating subsidies
Energy rebates
Transport Subsidy Scheme
Grants to local councils
Transport concessions
Other
Capital Grant:
Grants to local Councils
Total Grants and Subsidies - Non-SA Government Entities

Total Grants and Subsidies

11. Finance Costs
Interest and guarantee fees
Finance charges on finance leases

Total Finance Costs

12, Other Expenses
Other Expenses paid/payable to Entities within the SA Government:
Rates, taxes and levies
Net losses on foreign exchange
Other
Total Other Expenses - SA Government Entities

Other Expenses paid/payable to Entities external to the SA Government:
Rates, taxes and levies
Donated assets expense
Bad and doubtful debts expense
Write-off of an asset
Other
Total Other Expenses - Non-SA Government Entities

Total Other Expenses

13. Auditors’ Remuneration
Audit Fees paid/payable to Entities within the SA Government:
Audit fees paid/payable to the Auditor-General’s Department

Total Audit Fees

Other Services
No other services were provided by the Auditor-General’s Department.

14. Fees and Charges
Fees and Charges received/receivable from Entities within the SA Government:
Metrotickets
Motor registrations
Marine related fees and charges
Land services fees
Other fees and charges
Total Fees and Charges - SA Government Entities

Fees and Charges received/receivable from Entities external to the SA Government:

Drivers Licence fees
Metrotickets
Motor registrations
Marine relate fees and charges
Other fees and charges
Total Fees and Charges - Non- SA Government Entities

Total Fees and Charges
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2007 2006
$’000 $'000
34 853 34 853
2 676 51
37 529 34 904
3126 3248
5 746 8 048
9811 8 124
2 852 4 701
4 857 4313
6 579 2 865
10 389 -
43 360 31299
80 889 66 203
3 454 3756
859 236
4313 3992
2 032 197
1 029 1436
22 77

3 083 1710
1451 583
1347 -
380 (202)

3 803 230
2 930 2291
9911 2902
12 994 4612
584 315
584 315
47 25
3113 3095
32 -

102 -
351 39

3 645 3159
26 860 21 474
70 760 64 294
242 583 235 336
10 045 9 869
5 032 3633
355 280 334 606
358 925 337 765
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Road Safety

In accordance with the Highways Act 1926, $4.477 million ($3.579 million) being 1/6th of drivers’ licence
collections and $513 000 ($487 000) being 1/100th of Heavy Vehicle Registrations, was applied towards funding
transport safety related initiatives under the Transport Safety and Regulation Services and Transport Infrastructure
Services programs.

Commonwealth Revenue 2007 2006
Commonwealth Revenue received/receivable from Entities external to the $'000 $'000
SA Government comprised:

Auslink (National Land Transport) Act 2005 100 233 78 138
Interstate Road Transport Act 1985 6 205 6 050
Roads to Recovery Act 2000 - 5499
Other Commonwealth revenues 5 804 1915
Total Commonwealth Revenue - Non-SA Government Entities 112 242 91 602

Total Commonwealth Revenue 112 242 91 602

Sale of Goods and Services
Sale of Goods and Services received/receivable from Entities within the
SA Government:

IT and telecommunication services 26 429 -
Maintenance services 34 181 -
Other sale of goods 347 1 097
Other sale of services 7 323 -

Total Sale of Goods and Services - SA Government Entities 68 280 1 097

Sale of Goods and Services received/receivable from Entities external to the
SA Government:

Other sale of goods 10 257 12 451
Other sale of services 13 011 1 449
Total Sale of Goods and Services - Non- SA Government Entities 23 268 13 900
Total Sale of Goods and Services 91 548 14 997

Impact of Government Restructure Activities

With the transfer of a number of functions from the former DAIS effective from 1 January 2007, the Department
has reported substantial increases in its revenue base specifically in the areas of ‘Sale of Goods and Services’ and
‘Rental Income’ (refer Note 17).

Rental Income 2007 2006
Rental Income received/receivable from Entities within the SA Government: $'000 $'000
Government accommodation 50 600 -
Property rents and recoveries - 101
Other lease income 460 687
Total Rental Income - SA Government Entities 51 060 788

Rental Income received/receivable from Entities external to the SA Government:

Property rents and recoveries 2 230 2204
Other lease income 22 213 3 062
Total Rental Income- Non- SA Government Entities 24 443 5 266
Total Rental Income 75 503 6 054

Grants and Subsidies
Grants and Subsidies received/receivable from Entities within the SA Government:
Concessional passenger income 40 315 36 568
Total Grants and Subsidies - SA Government Entities 40 315 36 568

Grants and Subsidies received/receivable from Entities external to the
SA Government:

Concessional passenger income 46 168
Total Grants and Subsidies - Non-SA Government Entities 46 168
Total Grants and Subsidies 40 361 36 736

Concessional Passenger Income
This represents fare concession receipts to fund concessional travel provided to pensioners, the unemployed and
students on passenger transport in metropolitan and regional areas.

Interest
Interest received/receivable from Entities within the SA Government:
Interest from entities within the SA Government 9453 4 660
Total Interest - SA Government Entities 9 453 4 660
Total Interest 9 453 4 660
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20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

Commission Received 2007 2006
$'000 $'000
Commissions received from entities within SA Government 11 168 9 783
Total Commissions Received 11 168 9 783
Net Gain or Loss on Disposal of Assets
Land, Buildings and Facilities:
Proceeds from disposal 19 680 13 426
Net book value of assets disposed 13 969 11 275
Net Gain from Disposal of Land, Buildings and Facilities 5711 2151
Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds from disposal 209 1 496
Net book value of assets disposed 340 1202
Net (Loss) Gain from Disposal of Plant and Equipment (131) 294
Network Assets:
Net book value of assets disposed - 1461
Net Gain (Loss) from Disposal of Network Assets - (1461)
Total Assets:
Proceeds from disposal 19 889 14 922
Net book value of assets disposed 14 309 13 938
Total Net Gain from Disposal of Assets 5 580 984
Resources Received Free of Charge
Land, buildings and facilities 660 -
Total Resources Received Free of Charge 660 -
This represents land received by the Department for no consideration and recognised at fair value.
Other Income
Other Income received/receivable from Entities within the SA Government:
Recoveries and contributions 1 837 729
Reimbursement works and external project contributions 1020 3 500
Intra-government transfers 3484 3 056
Total Other Income - SA Government Entities 6 341 7 285
Other Income received/receivable from Entities external to the SA Government:
Recoveries and contributions 2 694 3662
Reimbursement works and external project contributions 2 958 6 003
Sundry income 105 87
Total Other Income - Non-SA Government Entities 5 757 9 752
Total Other Income 12 098 17 037
Revenues from (Payments to) SA Government
Revenues from SA Government:
Appropriations from Consolidated Account pursuant to the 365 452 374 001
Appropriation Act
Transfers from contingency provisions 12 406 4 395
Total Revenues from SA Government 377 858 378 396
Payments to SA Government:
Income tax equivalent payments (refer Note 3.7) 3212 -
Other payments to consolidated account 2 569 4 372
Total Payments to SA Government 5781 4 372
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Deposits at call - Westpac 388173 331 420
Deposits with the Treasurer (Accrual Appropriation) 3962 1837
Imprest Account 2 248 248
Other 194 95
Total Cash 394 577 333 600
Other

Includes petty cash floats, cashiers’ floats and other cash on hand.
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Receivables 2007 2006
Current: $'000 $'000
Receivables 49 518 19 986
Provision for doubtful debts (1 489) (1113)
Finance lease receivables 531 -
GST receivable 12 390 9 376
Accrued revenues 28 972 6 779
Total Current Receivables 89 922 35 028
Non-Current:
Receivables 7 613 40
Total Non-Current Receivables 7 613 40
Total Receivables 97 535 35 068
Government/Non-Government Receivables
Receivables from SA Government Entities:
Receivables 27 456 3179
Provision for doubtful debts (49) -
Finance lease receivables 531 -
Accrued revenues 23 030 523
Total Current Receivables from SA Government Entities 50 968 3702
Total Non-Current Receivables from SA Government Entities 6 127 -
Receivables from Non-SA Government Entities:
Receivables 22 062 16 807
Provision for doubtful debts (1 440) (1113)
GST receivables 12 390 9 376
Accrued revenues 5943 6 256
Total Current Receivables from Non-SA Government Entities 38 955 31 326
Total Non-Current Receivables from Non-SA Government
Entities 1485 40
Total Receivables 97 535 35 068

Provision for Doubtful Debts

The provision for doubtful debts (allowance for impairment loss) is recognised when there is objective evidence
that a receivable is impaired. An allowance for an impairment loss has been recognised in 'other expenses' in the
Income Statement for specific debtors that have been assessed on a collective basis for which such evidence

27.

28.

exists.

Movements in the Provision of Doubtful Debts 2007
$'000
Carrying amount at 1 July 1113
Provision acquired through restructure 166
Increase in the provision 385
Amounts written off 175
Carrying Amount at 30 June 1489
Bad and Doubtful Debts
The Department has recognised a bad and doubtful debt expense of $380 000 in the Income Statement.
Inventories 2007 2006
Current: $'000 $’000
Inventories held for distribution at no or nominal amount 5 329 5 646
Inventories held-for-sale 160 115
Total Current Inventories 5 489 5761
Total Inventories 5489 5761
Other Current Assets
Current:
Prepayments 6 519 11 049
Total Current Other Assets 6 519 11 049
Total Other Assets 6 519 11 049
Government/Non-Government Other Assets
Other Assets from SA Government Entities:
Prepayments 445 -
Other Assets from SA Government Entities 445 -
Other Assets from Non-SA Government Entities:
Prepayments 6 074 11 049
Other Assets from Non-SA Government Entities 6 074 11 049
Total Other Assets 6 519 11 049
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29. Non-Current Assets Classified as Held-for-Sale 2007 2006
Non-Current Assets Classified as Held-for-Sale: $'000 $'000

Land, buildings and facilities 15 106 9 807

Total Non-Current Assets Classified as Held-for-Sale 15 106 9 807

The Department has identified $15.106 million ($9.807 million) of Land, Buildings and Facilities that are surplus to
the Department's requirements. The Land, Buildings and Facilities are expected to be sold within 12 months by
public tender or auction.

30. Land, Buildings and Facilities 2007 2006
Land: $'000 $'000
Land at fair value 380 071 275 886
Total Land 380 071 275 886
Land for Current Projects:
Land for current projects 28 858 -
Total Land for Current Projects 28 858 -
Buildings and Facilities:
Buildings and facilities (deemed fair value) 673 790 315920
Accumulated depreciation 156 499 135 691
Total Buildings and Facilities 517 291 180 229
Buildings and Improvements under Lease:
Buildings and improvements under lease (deemed fair value) 19 898 -
Accumulated depreciation 940 -
Total Buildings and Facilities 18 958 -
Total Land, Buildings and Facilities 945 178 456 115

Valuation of Land, Buildings and Facilities
Refer to Note 3.20 for details relating to the revaluation of Land, Buildings and Facilities.

Reconciliation of Land, Buildings and Facilities Land for Buildings  Buildings &

The following table shows the movement of Land at Current and Improv'mts 2007
Land, Buildings and Facilities during Fair Value Projects Facilities Under Lease Total
2006-07: $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Carrying amount at 1 July 275 887 - 180 228 - 456 115
Reclassification to assets held-for-sale (234) - 516 - 282
Additions 4 679 14 188 7 807 57 26 731
Disposals (2 519) - (252) - (2771)
Donated assets (1231) - (19) - (1 250)
Write-offs (2 046) - (130) - (2 176)
Revaluation increment (decrement) 19916 - 30475 - 50 391
Transfer from WIP - - 7 314 109 7 423
Depreciation and amortisation - - (11 516) (237) (11 753)
Acquisition (Disposal) through
administrative restructuring 105 522 - 312 479 19 029 437 030
Acquisition (Disposal) from transfer (19 903) 14 670 (9 611) - (14 844)
Carrying Amount at 30 June 380 071 28 858 517 291 18 958 945 178
31. Plant and Equipment 2007 2006
Plant and Equipment: $'000 $'000
Plant and equipment (deemed fair value) 602 433 484 280
Information technology 20 337 5114
IT under lease 4 881 3 265
627 651 492 659

Accumulated Depreciation:

Plant and equipment 340 555 311 873
Information technology 11 786 4 050
IT under lease 3 492 3028
355 833 318 951

Total Plant and Equipment 271 818 173 708
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Valuation of Plant and Equipment
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Refer to Note 3.20 for details relating to the revaluation of plant and equipment.

Reconciliation of Plant and Equipment
The following table shows the movement of
plant and equipment during 2006-07:
Carrying amount at 1 July
Additions
Disposals
Write-offs
Revaluation increment (decrement)
Depreciation and amortisation

Acquisition (Disposal) through administrative

restructuring
Transfers in due to reclassification of assets
Transfer from works in progress

Carrying Amount at 30 June

Depreciation of Plant and Equipment

Total depreciation associated with Plant and Equipment for 2006-07 was $31 618 million.

Plant and Information IT under 2007
Equipment Technology Lease Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
172 408 1063 237 173 708
54 402 961 1138 56 501
(337) - (2) (339)
(498) - - (498)

4 148 - - 4 148
(29 303) (1 316) (999) (31 618)
65 097 7 799 1015 73911
(6911) 2 - (6 909)
2 872 42 - 2914
261 878 8 551 1389 271 818

Of this amount,

$31 402 million has been reported within the Income Statement as operating expenditure of the Department. The
remaining $216 000 relates to capital projects and has been reflected within the value of the Department’s assets

as at 30 June 2007.

Network Assets 2007 2006
Network Assets: $'000 $'000
Network assets (deemed fair value) 8 630 643 8 706 780
Rail and bus track 133 584 100 131
8 764 227 8 806 911
Accumulated Depreciation:
Network 4 207 061 4 199 705
Rail and bus track 39 394 26 994
4 246 455 4 226 699
Total Network Assets 4 517 772 4 580 212
Valuation of Network Assets
Refer to Note 3.20 for details relating to the revaluation of network assets.
Traffic
Reconciliation of Network Assets Roads Bridges Signals
The following table shows the and and and Road Busway/ 2007
movement of Network Assets during Signs Earthworks Culverts Lighting  Tramline Other Total
2006-07: $’000 $’000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Carrying amount at 1 July 2 093 851 1641 933 686 651 79 983 73137 4 657 4580212
Additions 35 389 5732 8 681 2 386 - - 52 188
Write-offs - - (484) (578) - - (1062)
Revaluation increment (decrement) 45944 (140 910)®W 74 878 (376) 11 039 1084 (8 341)
Depreciation and amortisation (93 056) - (15 277) (6 698) (2 408) (208) (117 647)
Transfers in due to reclassification
of assets - - - - 12 422 - 12 422
Carrying Amount at 30 June 2082120 1 506 755 754 449 74 717 94 190 5533 4517772

(1) In June 2007, the Department reviewed the replacement values of its Earthworks based on current prices and
noted a marked decrease in the carrying amount of this asset. The decrease was primarily attributable to the
movement in current prices since the date of last revaluation (June 2004) being significantly less than the
movement anticipated to occur through the annual indexing of this asset using the Australian Bureau of

Statistics Road and Bridge Construction Index.

Given this large disparity in anticipated price increases, the

Department will be undertaking a review of its current revaluation methodology for annual indexing of
Earthworks in 2007-08 to determine whether a more appropriate or relevant index factor should be used.

Capital Works in Progress
Capital Works in Progress:
Buildings and facilities
Road network
Plant and equipment

Total Capital Works in Progress

Valuation of Works in Progress

Refer to Note 3.20 for details regarding Works in Progress valuations.
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$'000 $'000
25 027 1947
360 469 182 977
4 498 4610
389 994 189 534
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Reconciliation of Capital Works in Progress Plant and  Buildings & 2007
The following table shows the movement of Road Network Equipment Facilities Total
Capital Works in Progress during 2006-07: $’000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Carrying amount at 1 July 206 717 4 940 1947 213 604
Prior period adjustments (23 740) (330) - (24 070)
Adjusted opening balance 182 977 4 610 1947 189 534
Additions 246 974 55 078 11 031 313 083
Transfer to capital (52 188) (59 809) (10 270) (122 267)
Transfer to operating (17 294) (505) - (17 799)
Transfers from administrative restructures - 4217 23 305 27 522
Other movements - 907 (986) (79)
Carrying Amount at 30 June 360 469 4 498 25 027 389 994

34. Intangible Assets 2007 2006
Software: $'000 $'000
Computer software 34 538 9 551
Accumulated amortisation 15994 (398)
Total Intangible Assets 18 544 9153

Valuation of Intangible Assets

Intangible assets in the current year represent the TRUMPS software system, the SAMIS, Real Estate Management
Progenisis software for rental collection, TBS, Web Based Purchasing Interface (with ICT vendors) and license
agreements with ETSA Utilities for use of broadband fibre at regional centres (Whyalla, Port Augusta and Port
Lincoln). The Intangible Assets of the Department are valued at historical cost. Refer Note 3.19 for details on the
Valuation of Intangible Assets.

Reconciliation of Intangible Assets 2007 2006
The following table shows the movement of Intangible Assets during 2006-07: $'000 $'000
Carrying amount at 1 July 9 153 544
Additions 654 9 551
Donated Assets (96) -
Depreciation and amortisation (2107) (398)
Acquisition (Disposal) through administrative restructuring 8175 (544)
Transfer from works in progress 2 765 -
Carrying Amount at 30 June 18 544 9 153

35. Payables

Current:
Creditors 58 099 44 715
Accrued expenses 45 437 15 967
Employment on-costs 4 385 2 183
Total Current Payables 107 921 62 865
Non-Current:
Employment on-costs 4 837 3 045
Total Non-Current Payables 4 837 3 045
Total Payables 112 758 65 910

Government/Non-Government Payables
Payables to SA Government Entities:

Creditors 15 469 2481
Accrued expenses 6710 1 065
Employment on-costs - Current (superannuation and payroll tax) 4 385 2183
Employment on-costs - Non-current (superannuation and payroll tax) 4 837 3 045
Total Payables to SA Government Entities 31401 8 774
Payables to Non-SA Government Entities:
Creditors 42 630 42 234
Accrued expenses 38 727 14 902
Total Payables to Non-SA Government Entities 81 357 57 136
Total Payables 112 758 65910
36. Interest Bearing Liabilities

Long-Term Borrowings:
Balance as at 1 July 47 760 49 079

Less: Repayments:
Public Transport assets - 1319
Balance as at 30 June 47 760 47 760
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36. Interest Bearing Liabilities (continued)
Finance Leases:
Balance as at 1 July
Increase in lease liabilities due to:
New leases
Transfers
Less: Repayments
Balance as at 30 June

Total Interest Bearing Liabilities

Current
Non-current

Total Interest Bearing Liabilities

37. Employee Benefits
Current:
Annual leave
Long service leave
Accrued salaries and wages
Total Current Employee Benefits

Non-Current:
Long service leave

Total Non-Current Employee Benefits

Total Employee Benefits

Transport, Energy and Infrastructure

2007 2006
$'000 $'000
1 865 1694
1138 1167
20 878 -
1250 996
22 631 1865
70 391 49 625
1694 696
68 697 48 929
70 391 49 625
14 725 9 640
3992 1890
3 383 2215
22100 13 745
50 582 31 856
50 582 31 856
72 682 45 601

The total current and non-current employee expense (ie aggregate employee benefit plus related on-costs) for

2007 is $18 863 million and $38 426 million respectively.

Annual Leave

Annual leave is classified as a current liability as employees are required to take all annual leave within the year of

entitlement.

Long Service Leave

Long Service Leave liability has been allocated between current and non-current liabilities using the leave pattern

history for the previous year.

Based on an actuarial assessment performed by the DTF, the benchmark measurement of the long service leave

liability has been revised from seven to six and a half years.

38. Provisions
Current:
Provision for workers compensation
Site remediation

Provision for Indentured Ports payment to the Treasurer

Other provisions
Total Current Provisions

Non-Current:
Site remediation
Provision for workers compensation
Total Non-Current Provisions

Total Provisions

Carrying amount at 1 July
Provision acquired on restructure
Increase in the provision
Decrease in the provision

Carrying Amount at 30 June

39. Other Liabilities
Current:
Deferred income
Other
Total Current Other Liabilities

Non-Current:
Deferred income
Total Non-Current Other Liabilities

Total Other Liabilities

2007 2006
$'000 $'000
1423 1031
752 974

10 070 7 900
2311 -
14 556 9 905
4 462 4 968
3 398 2672
7 860 7 640
22416 17 545
17 545 14 325
2790 -
4 686 3514
2 605 294
22416 17 545
38 401 13434
5782 -
44 183 13434
85992 102 700
85 992 102 700
130175 116 134
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39.

40.

41.

Other Liabilities (continued)

On 29 June 2005, the Department received a conditional grant of $15 million in relation to funding for the Eyre
Peninsula Grain Transport Plan Rail System Upgrade. The unspent balance of this fund has been disclosed as
deferred income in accordance with APF V APS 4.12.

The Auslink Advance Specific Projects Fund includes Commonwealth Grants received in relation to the Accelerated
Sturt Highway Package and the Auslink Strategic Regional Programme. The Department received a conditional
Commonwealth grant of $100 million for works to be performed under the Accelerated Sturt Highway Package on
the 30 June 2006, to be expended over the four year period between 2006-07 and 2009-10. The Department also
received a Commonwealth grant of $11.190 million on the 27 June 2007 for works to be performed under the
Auslink Strategic Regional Programme. The funds are to be expended over the three year period between
2006-07 and 2008-09.

These funds have been disclosed as deferred income in accordance with APF V APS 4.12.

Adjustments to Equity 2007 2006
Adjustments against Accumulated Surplus: $'000 $'000
Works in progress adjustment 24 070 29 038
Asset recognition adjustments (20 474) (39 308)
Commonwealth grant adjustment - 15 000
Provisions for Indenture Ports payment - 4 516
Other (629) 1495
Total Adjustments against Accumulated Surplus 2967 10 741
Adjustments against Asset Revaluation Reserve:
Asset recognition adjustments - (39)
Total Adjustments against Asset Revaluation Reserve - (39)
Total Adjustments to Equity 2 967 10 702

Work in Progress Adjustment

During 2006-07, various projects that had been included as capital work in progress as at 30 June 2006 were
subsequently completed. It was determined that the Department was unable to capitalise all of the expenditure
from these completed projects and as a result $24.070 million ($29.038 million) was brought to account by means
of adjustment directly against Accumulated Surplus.

Asset Recognition Adjustments

Asset recognition adjustments reflect network assets and plant that have been recognised in the 2006-07 financial
statements, which were purchased in prior years. The adjustments are as a result of more accurate and complete
information being recorded in the Department’s subsidiary ledgers, which better reflects the Department’s asset
base.

Financial Instruments
(a) Terms, Conditions and Accounting Policies
(i) Financial Assets
Cash is available at call and is recorded at cost. Interest revenue is recorded on an accrual basis,
with only certain funds held within the total cash balance being interest bearing.

Receivables are raised for all goods and services provided, for which payment has not been received.
Receivables are normally settled within 30 days or in accordance with the terms specified in the
contract.

(ii) Financial Liabilities
Creditors and accruals are recognised for all amounts billed but unpaid at an amount equal to the
value of goods and services provided. Creditors are normally settled within 30 days.

Finance leases are recorded at amounts equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments
using a government borrowing rate of 6.67 percent (as at 30 June 2007). Lease payments are made
in accordance with schedules determined at the inception of each lease.

Borrowings are recorded at the amount still owing, taking into account repayments and interest
accrued. Interest expense is recognised on an accrual basis. Borrowings are drawn from the DTF at
the Common Public Sector Interest Rate of 6.5 percent (as at 30 June 2007). Repayments are
determined in negotiation with SAFA.
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(b) Interest Rate Risk
The Department’s exposure to interest rate risk is measured in reference to the level of interest and
non-interest bearing assets and liabilities held at reporting date.

2007 Weighted

Average

Floating Non- Total Effective

Interest Interest Interest Carrying Interest

Financial Instrument Rate Bearing Bearing Amount Rate

Financial Assets: Percent $'000 $’000 $'000 Percent

Cash assets 6.10 159 942 234 635 394577 5.98

Finance lease receivable 6 658 - 6 658 7.00
Receivables 90 877 90 877

166 600 325512 492 112

Financial Liabilities:

Payables - 112 758 112 758
Finance leases 6.67 22 631 - 22 631 6.36
Borrowings 6.50 47 760 - 47 760 6.56
70 391 112 758 183 149
2006 Weighted
Average
Floating Non- Total Effective
Interest Interest Interest Carrying Interest
Financial Instrument Rate Bearing Bearing Amount Rate
Financial Assets: Percent $'000 $'000 $'000 Percent
Cash assets 5.43 175 995 157 605 333 600 5.38
Receivables - 35 068 35 068

175995 192 673 368 668

Financial Liabilities:

Payables - 65911 65911

Finance leases 6.32 1 865 - 1 865 5.52

Borrowings 6.95 47 760 - 47 760 6.95
49 625 65911 115 536

(c) Credit Risk
The Department’s maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date is measured at the carrying amount of
its receivables as indicated in the Balance Sheet.

(d) Fair Value (Market) Risk
The Department’s financial instruments are disclosed at a carrying amount that approximates their net fair
value. The amount for financial assets approximates the net fair value due to the short-term to maturity of
the items, or due to the assets being receivable on demand. The carrying amount of financial liabilities is
considered to be a reasonable estimate of net fair value.

Transferred Functions
On the 28 September 2006, the Government announced the administrative restructure of DAIS with all of its
business units or functions transferring to a number of other government departments, namely:

Department for Transport, Energy and Infrastructure (DTEI)
Department of the Premier and Cabinet (DPC)

Department of Treasury and Finance (DTF)
Attorney-General’s Department (AGD)

For financial accounting and reporting purposes the effective date of this transfer was 1 January 2007.

DAIS DTEI

01.07.06 to  01.01.07 to

Total income and expenses attributable to the functions which transferred to this 31.12.06 30.06.07
Department for the full financial year are: $'000 $'000
Employee benefits costs 31769 33 056
Supplies and services 120 694 129 012
Depreciation and amortisation 12 228 13 095
Other expenses 1 852 3539
Total Expenses 166 543 178 702
Total Income 160 504 163 122

Net Cost of Providing Services 6 039 15 580
Revenues from (Payments to) SA Government 363 28 325
Net Result before Restructuring and Tax (5676) 12 745
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43.

Transferred Functions (continued)
On transfer of these functions, the following assets and liabilities
in its Balance Sheet were recognised:
Cash
Receivables
Inventories
Property, plant and equipment
Intangibles
Other assets
Total Assets

Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Employee entitlements
Provisions
Other liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets Transferred

2007
$'000
20 588
93 617
106

538 463
8 175
16 066
677 015

(47 636)
(20 877)
(21 839)
(2 769)
(6 859)
(99 980)
577 035

The former DAIS reported appropriations at a corporate level. DAIS Corporate was transferred to the DTF,
effective 1 January 2007. Appropriations received during 1 July to 31 December 2006 cannot be reasonably
allocated across all former DAIS business units. Therefore, all appropriations relating to the former DAIS entity

received during this period will be reported by DTF.

Commitments for Expenditure 2007 2006
Capital Commitments $'000 $'000

Capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as

liabilities in the financial report, are payable as follows:

Within one year 143 327 116 328
Later than one year but no later than five years 50 125 3 600
Not later than five years - -
Total Capital Commitments 193 452 119 928

The Department’s Capital Commitments are predominantly for aggregate capital expenditure on construction

projects relating to road networks.

Remuneration Commitments

Commitments for the payment of salaries and other remuneration under fixed
term employment contracts in existence at the reporting date but not
recognised as liabilities are payable as follows:

Within one year 19 628 15 081
Later than one year but no later than five years 26 445 22 197
Total Remuneration Commitments 46 073 37 278

Amounts disclosed include commitments arising from executive and other service contracts. The Department does

not offer fixed term remuneration contracts greater than five years.

Other Commitments

Within one year 256 201 244 992
Later than one year but no later than five years 258 312 625 879
Later than five years 188 535 -
Total Other Commitments 703 048 870 871
Operating Lease Commitments as Lessee
Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases at the reporting date but
not recognised as liabilities in the financial report, are payable as follows:
Within one year 80 087 3483
Later than one year but no later than five years 164 415 9 848
Later than five years 75 463 17 148
Total Operating Lease Commitments as Lessee 319 965 30 479

Operating Lease Commitments as Lessor
Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases at the reporting date but
not recognised as receivable in the financial report, are payable as follows:

Within one year 83 525
Later than one year but no later than five years 183 606
Later than five years 61 109

Total Operating Lease Commitments as Lessee 328 240
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Operating Lease Commitments as Lessor (continued)
The Department's operating leases are for motor vehicles, accommodation, office equipment and some items of
plant and equipment.

Commercial accommodation leases are non-cancellable with terms ranging from one to ten years. Rental is
payable in advance with no contingent rental provisions. Residential accommodation leases are cancellable with
varying terms and have no option to renew.

Motor vehicle leases are cancellable, rentals are paid monthly in arrears and no contingent rental provisions exist
within the agreement. Motor vehicle lease terms may be for three years (or 60 000 kms whichever comes first) or
five years (or 100 000 kms whichever comes first).

Photocopier leases are non-cancellable with terms of four years, with rentals paid monthly.

Finance Lease Commitments as Lessee 2007 2006
Future minimum lease payments under finance leases and hire purchase contracts $'000 $'000
together with the present value of net minimum lease payments are as follows:

Within one year 4732 893
Later than one year but no later than five years 15 659 1347
Later than five years 47 022 -
Minimum lease payments 67 413 2 240
Less: Future finance leases lease charges 44 782 375
Amount recognised as liability 22 631 1 865
Total Finance Lease Commitments as Lessee 22 631 1 865

The present value of finance lease payable is as follows:

Within one year 1 694 696
Later than one year but no later than five years 4777 1169
Later than five years 16 160 -
Present Value of Finance Lease 22 631 1 865
Representing:

Current 1 694 696
Non-current 20 937 1169
22 631 1 865

Finance Lease Commitments as Lessor
Finance lease receivables contracted for at the reporting date are as follows:

Within one year 980 -
Later than one year but no later than five years 3 669 -
Later than five years 5 548 -
Minimum lease payments 10 197 -
Less: Unearned finance income 3539 -
Amount recognised as liability 6 658 -

Total Finance Lease Commitments as Lessor 6 658 -

The present value of finance lease receivable is as follows:

Within one year 531 -
Later than one year but no later than five years 2 277 -
Later than five years 3 850 -

Present Value of Finance Lease 6 658 -

Representing:

Current 531 -
Non-current 6 127 -
6 658 -

The Department's computer and network printer equipment leases are non-cancellable with terms of three to four
years. Each lease contains three options at the conclusion of the current term being: return equipment, extend
the lease at fair market value or purchase the equipment at fair market value. In all cases the Department
chooses to exercise its right to return the equipment. The weighted average interest rate implicit in the lease is
5.54 percent.

The lease for Roma Mitchell House is non-cancellable, for a term of 40 years. At the end of the lease term, the
building becomes part of the Department's owned portfolio. Rental is payable monthly, in advance. A contingent
rental provision exists, in which an amount is expensed after taking into account the principal reduction and
interest expense from the monthly lease payment. The lease payment changes each year in accordance with CPI.
The weighted average interest rate implicit in the lease is 5.52 percent.

Residential finance leases are non-cancellable, for a term of 20 years. At the end of the lease term, the asset
belongs to the Department. Rental is paid one month in advance and there are no contingent rental provisions.
The weighted average interest rate implicit in the lease is 7 percent.

Equipment for the StateNet Core Network has been leased under a non-cancellable lease for a term of five years.

Rentals are paid monthly and there are no contingent rental provisions. The weighted average interest rate
implicit in the lease is 6.73 percent.
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44.

45.

46.

47.

Contingent Assets and Liabilities

Non-Quantifiable

At 30 June 2007, the Department had possible material exposures resulting from litigation (or pending litigation) in
respect of claims for property damage or personal injury. The Department has also received notification of other
cases not yet subject to Court action or formal claim, which may result in subsequent litigation in the future.

The Department also has possible material exposure resulting from the ongoing monitoring and treatment of
contaminated land assets to bring the land into a position for future use or sale.

The Department believes that the extent of these liabilities cannot be reliably measured at balance date.

Quantifiable

At 30 June 2007, the Department has no quantifiable contingent assets.

Cash Flow Reconciliation 2007 2006

Reconciliation of Cash - Cash at 30 June as per: $’000 $'000
Cash Flow Statement 394 577 333 600
Balance Sheet 394 557 333 600

Reconciliation of Net Cash provided by Operating Activities to Net Cost of
Providing Services:

Net cash inflows from operating activities 338 474 340 858
Less: Revenues from SA Government 377 858 378 396
Add: Payments to SA Government 3611 987
Add (Less): Non-Cash Items:
Net gain (loss) from disposal of assets 5 580 984
Depreciation/amortisation of assets (162 909) (138 527)
Write off of an asset (3 803) (230)
Donated asset expense (1347) -
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value - (35)
Fair value of assets received 660 -
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Increase (Decrease) in receivables (40 311) 8 915
Increase (Decrease) in inventories (272) (453)
Increase (Decrease) in other assets (825) -
(Increase) Decrease in payables and provisions 2 386 (3 464)
(Increase) Decrease in other liabilities (8 258) (95 700)
Net Cost of Providing Services (244 872) (265 061)

Indenture Ports

The Department manages the indenture and private ports. Funds in regards to cargo services and harbour
services charges are collected by the Department and applied to the maintenance of indenture ports. Any
remaining funds are returned to the DTF by way of a payment to the Consolidated Account. Assets associated with
these ports include land and facilities at Port Bonython, Ardrossan and Whyalla.

The amount paid to the DTF in 2006-07 was $399 000 ($987 000). In addition to the amount paid, the
Department has recognised a provision in 2006-07 of $10.070 million ($7.9 million) representing the outstanding
funds to be collected by the Department and returned to the DTF.

Rail Transport Facilitation Fund

The Rail Transport Facilitation Fund Act 2001, which established the Rail Transport Facilitation Fund was
proclaimed in December 2001. Net income derived from the sale or leasing of railway assets and net income
derived by the State from rail facilitation projects is to be paid into the fund.

Approval was given for the creation of the Rail Transport Facilitation Fund on 20 September 2002. Income from
the sale and leasing of railway land and costs associated with these assets has been transacted through the
Transport Operating Account up to 20 September 2002.

2007 2006
Inflows: $'000 $'000
Income into the fund 56 661 40 747
Total Inflows 56 661 40 747
Outflows:

Expenditure from the fund 55 546 29 052
Total Outflows 55 546 29 052
Net Surplus 1115 11 695

Fund Balance
Balance at 1 July 38 203 26 508
Net Surplus 1115 11 695
Balance at 30 June 39 318 38 203
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Income into the Fund

The increased income into the fund in 2006-07 results predominately from $41.1 million income related to the Port
River Expressway - Stage 3 (Rail). This is made up of a Federal payment of $12.7 million and a State
appropriation of $28.4 million.

Expenditure from the Fund
The increased expenditure from the fund in 2006-07 results predominately from $36 million being spent on the
Port River Expressway - Stage 3 (Rail).

Community Road Safety Fund

The Community Road Safety Fund has been operative since 1 July 2003, and is currently funded by an
appropriation from Treasury and Finance. These funds are utilised for the purposes of Road Safety Related
expenditure, including a payment to SAPOL for safety related policing expenditure. The appropriation represents
revenue forecasts of funds expected to be collected by SAPOL and the Courts Administration Authority for traffic
infringements.

2007 2006
Inflows: $'000 $'000
Income into the fund 69 067 59 310
Total Inflows 69 067 59 310
Outflows:

Expenditure from the fund 66 785 59 315
Total Outflows 66 785 59 315
Net Surplus (Deficit) 2 282 (5)

Fund Balance
Balance at 1 July 463 468
Net Surplus (Deficit) 2 282 (5)
Balance at 30 June 2745 463

Expenditure from the Fund
During 2006-07 SAPOL received an amount of $34.9 million from the Fund.

AusLink Advance Account for Specific Projects

The Auslink Advance Specific Projects Fund includes Commonwealth Grants received in relation to the Accelerated
Sturt Highway Package and the Auslink Strategic Regional Programme. The Department received a conditional
Commonwealth grant of $100 million for works to be performed under the Accelerated Sturt Highway Package on
the 30 June 2006, to be expended over the four year period between 2006-07 and 2009-10. The Department also
received a Commonwealth grant of $11.19 million on 27 June 2007 for works to be performed under the Auslink
Strategic Regional Programme. The funds are to be expended over the three year period between 2006-07 and
2008-09.

These funds have been disclosed as deferred income in accordance with APF V APS 4.12 (refer Note 39).

2007 2006
Inflows: $'000 $'000
Income into the fund 16 737 100 000
Total Inflows 16 737 100 000
Outflows:

Expenditure from the fund 5 497 -
Total Outflows 5 497 -
Net Surplus 11 240 100 000

Fund Balance
Balance at 1 July 100 000 -
Net Surplus 11 240 100 000
Balance at 30 June 111 240 100 000

Income into the Fund
The income into the Fund consists of the $11.19 million relating to the Auslink Strategic Regional Programme
Advance and $5.5 million relating to interest received on the Sturt Highway advance.

Expenditure from the Fund
$5.5 million relates to expenditure associated with the Sturt Highway.

Events After Balance Date
The Department is not aware of any events occurring after balance date.
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Statement of Administered Income and Expenses
for the year ended 30 June 2007

INCOME:

Revenues from SA Government
Revenues from fees and charges
Registration and licensing receipts from third parties
Grants
Transfer receipts
Commonwealth revenue
Interest
Total Income

EXPENSES:

Employee expenses
Supplies and services
Grants and subsidies
Registration and licensing payments to third parties
Finance costs
Transfer payments
Payments to Consolidated Account
Total Expenses

OPERATING (DEFICIT) SURPLUS BEFORE ADMINISTRATIVE

RESTRUCTURE
Increase in net assets due to administrative restructure

OPERATING SURPLUS AFTER ADMINISTRATIVE RESTRUCTURE

Operating Surplus is attributable to the SA Government as owner

Note

A8
A9
A10
Al1l
Al12
Al13

Al4
Al5
Al6

Al17

A18

A27
A25

2007 2006
$’000 $'000
10 962 13 943
72 329 -
655 134 656 683
- 4232

11 151 77 463
1758 8 951
384 228

751 718 761 500
326 213

12 655 77 449
2126 6 193
664 214 665 546
197 207

11 036 10 261
62 323 12
752 877 759 881
(1 159) 1619
7 240 6 381

6 081 8 000
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Statement of Administered Assets and Liabilities
as at 30 June 2007

2007 2006
Note $'000 $'000
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash A19 33 272 12 461
Receivables A20 1563 190
Total Current Assets 34 835 12 651
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Capital works in progress 26 26
Receivables A20 2 546 2718
Total Non-Current Assets 2572 2744
Total Assets 37 407 15 395
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables A21 18 939 2 896
Interest bearing liabilities A22 173 161
Short-term employee benefits A23 10 -
Total Current Liabilities 19 122 3 057
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables 3 -
Interest bearing liabilities A22 2 546 2718
Long-term employee benefits A23 35 -
Total Non-Current Liabilities 2584 2718
Total Liabilities 21 706 5775
NET ASSETS 15 701 9 620
EQUITY:
Accumulated surplus A24 15 701 9 620
TOTAL ADMINISTERED EQUITY 15 701 9 620
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Statement of Changes in Administered Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2007

Retained
Earnings Total
Note $'000 $'000
Balance at 30 June 2005 1620 1620

Changes in accounting policy - -
Error correction - -

Restated Balance at 30 June 2005 A24 1620 1620

Gain on revaluation of property - -
Loss on revaluation of plant and equipment - -

Net income and expense recognised directly in equity - -

Operating Surplus (Deficit) 1619 1619
Increase in net assets due to administrative restructure 6 381 6 381
Total Recognised Income and Expense for 2006 8 000 8 000
Balance at 30 June 2006 A24 9 620 9 620
Changes in accounting policy - -
Increase in net assets due to administrative restructure 7 240 7 240
Net Income and Expense Recognised directly in Equity - -
Operating Surplus (Deficit) (1 159) (1 159)
Balance at 30 June 2007 15701 15 701

All Changes in Equity are attributable to the SA Government as owner
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Statement of Administered Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2007

2007 2006
Inflows Inflows
(Outflows) (Outflows)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Note $'000 $'000
CASH INFLOWS:
Revenues from SA Government 10 962 14 098
Revenues from fees and charges 71 741 -
Registration and licensing receipts from third parties 655 134 656 683
Grants - 4 232
Transfer receipts 11 157 78 121
Commonwealth revenue 1758 9 289
Interest 544 228
Total Cash Inflows 751 296 762 651
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Employee expenses (316) (213)
Supplies and services (11 697) (77 418)
Grants and subsidies (2 126) (6 193)
Registration and licensing payments to third parties (665 214) (665 233)
Finance costs (358) (207)
Transfer payments (11 046) (10 480)
Payments to Consolidated Account (59 106) (12)
Total Cash Outflows (749 863) (759 756)
Net Administered Cash Inflows from Operating Activities A27 1433 2 895
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Investing payments - (26)
Total Cash Outflows - (26)
Net Cash Outflows from Investing Activities - (26)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
CASH INFLOWS:
Restructuring activities 19 378 5 346
Total Cash Inflows 19 378 5 346
Net Cash Inflows from Financing Activities 19 378 5 346
NET INCREASE IN CASH HELD 20 811 8 215
CASH AT 1 JULY 12 461 4 246
CASH AT 30 JUNE A19 33 272 12 461
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Program Schedule of Administered Income and Expenses

for the year ended 30 June 2007

ADMINISTERED INCOME:
Revenues from SA Government
Revenues from fees and charges
Registration and licensing

receipts from third parties
Grants
Transfer receipts
Commonwealth revenue
Interest
Total Administered Income

ADMINISTERED EXPENSES:
Employee expenses
Supplies and services
Grants and subsidies
Registration and licensing

payments to third parties
Finance costs
Transfer payments

Payments to Consolidated Account

Total Administered Expenses
OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)

ADMINISTERED INCOME:
Revenues from SA Government
Revenues from fees and charges
Registration and licensing

from third parties
Grants
Transfer receipts
Commonwealth revenue
Interest
Total Administered Income

ADMINISTERED EXPENSES:
Employee expenses
Supplies and services
Grants and subsidies

Registration and licensing payments

to third parties
Finance costs
Transfer payments

Payments to Consolidated Account

Total Administered Expenses
OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)

Transport Infra-

Transport Safety and

Public Transport

Energy Policy &

structure Services Regulation Services Services Regulation
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
64 115 9 105 8 883 68 64 4 7
- - 655 134 656 683 - - - -
- 4 232 - - - - - -
101 126 - - - - - 77 143
- - - - - - 1758 1201
196 207 - - 10 21 - -
361 4 680 664 239 665 566 78 85 1762 78 351
64 115 25 20 68 64 4 7
- 178 - - - - - 77 227
- 4 054 - - 148 164 1978 1975
- - 664 214 665 546 - - - -
197 207 - - - - - -
88 114 - - - - - 2 397
12 12 - - - - 384 -
361 4 680 664 239 665 566 216 228 2 366 81 606
- - - - (138) (143) (604) (3 255)
Building Comm-
State Infrastructure ICT Manage- unity

Facilitation Services ment Services Total
2007 2006 2007 2007 2007 2007 2006
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
5 4874 - 1 688 28 10 962 13 943
- - - - 72 329 72 329 -
- - - - - 655 134 656 683
- - - - - - 4 232
102 194 10 948 - - 11 151 77 463
- 7 750 - - - 1758 8 951
- - - - 178 384 228
107 12 818 10 948 1 688 72 535 751 718 761 500
5 7 - 46 114 326 213
- 44 - 2 076 10 579 12 655 77 449
- - - - - 2126 6 193
- - - - - 664 214 665 546
- - - - - 197 207
- 7 750 10 948 - - 11 036 10 261
- - - - 61 927 62 323 12
5 7 801 10 948 2122 72 620 752 877 759 881
102 5017 - (434) (85) (1159) 1619
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NOTES TO THE ADMINISTERED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Administered Financial Statements include income, expenses, assets and liabilities that the Department administers on
behalf of the SA Government but does not control.

Al.

A2.

A3.

A4.

AS5.

Objectives of the Department for Transport, Energy and Infrastructure
The objectives of the Department outlined in Note 1 for controlled items apply equally to the Administered
Financial Statements.

Departmental Organisation
The organisation of the Department outlined in Note 2 for controlled items applies to both the Department and the
Administered Financial Statements.

Specifically, changes to the Department’s organisational structure in 2006-07 noted under Note 2 has resulted in a
change in the nature of some administrative items such that, with the transfer of those functions from DAIS
effective from 1 January 2007, the Department has now assumed administrative responsibility for:

(a) Valuer-General’s Salary
Represents a separate Special Act appropriation received for the payment of the Valuer-General’s salary.

(b) Service SA
Represents monies collected and disbursed by Service SA through the provision of a range of services to
the South Australian public on behalf of other SA Government Departments. Monies collected are deposited
into the Shared Services bank account and then distributed to the appropriate department.

(c) Land Services Regulatory Fees
Represents monies collected by the Land Services Group through various land administration Acts and
administered under the statutory authority of the Registrar-General and the Surveyor-General. The
revenue is collected through the following legislation:

Real Property Act 1886, Regulation 3

Strata Titles Act 1988, Regulation 4

Community Titles Act 1996, Schedule 2

Real Properties (Land Division), Regulations 1995, Schedule 1
Bill of Sale Act 1886, Regulation 4

Registration of Deed Act 1935, Regulation 3, Schedule 1
Workers Lien Act 1893, Regulation 3, Schedule 1

(d) Land Services Trust Funds
Represents monies administered in the following trust accounts in accordance with:

. Real Property Act Assurance Fund - section 201 Real Property Act 1886
o Real Property Trust Account - section 146 Real Property Act 1886
. Workers Liens Trust Account - section 16 Workers Liens Act 1893

(e) Major Administered Projects
Represents funds received and held for capital works performed on behalf of other agencies such as:

o Asbestos and Heritage Maintenance Program
. Building Security Program for Whole of Government

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The policies of the Department outlined in Note 3 for controlled items apply equally to the Administered Financial
Statements.

The amount of GST payable/receivable incurred by the Department in relation to administered functions is
recognised in the Balance Sheet for controlled items.

Financial Risk Management
The financial risk management approach of the Department outlined in Note 4 for controlled items applies equally
to the Administered Financial Statements.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The Changes in Accounting Policies as outlined in Note 5 for controlled items apply equally to the Administered
Financial Statements. With respect to specific policies no changes have been noted for administered functions
other than the following:

EDS Australia Contract for ICT Services

The Department acts as agent in the payment to EDS for ICT services. This function was transferred to the
Department on 1 January 2007 under the restructuring of DAIS and was deemed to be in the nature of
‘administered’ and not ‘controlled’. Revenues and expenses relating to the transferred function have been
disclosed at their full gross amount in the Income Statement, Cash Flow Statement and Program Statement and
have not been offset.
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A6. Programs of the Department
The Programs of the Department outlined in Note 6 in the controlled items apply equally to the Administered
Financial Statements.

A7. Administered Items of the Department
The Administered Items of the Department are comprised of the following:

Contractors deposits

Emergency Services Levy receipts

Expiation receipts including the Victims of Crime Levy
Firearm Licence receipts

Hospital Fund - Contribution

Land Service regulatory fees

Lincoln Cove Marina

Major administered projects

Metropolitan (Woodville, Henley and Grange) Drainage Scheme
Minister’s salary

Motor Accident Commission receipts

Natural Gas Authority of South Australia (NGASA)
Passenger Transport Research and Development Fund
Photovoltaic Rebate Program (PVRP)

Real Property Act Assurance Fund

Real Property Act Trust Accounts

Registration and Licensing collections and disbursements
Renewable Remote Power Generation Rebate Program (RRPGP)
Service SA collections and disbursements
South-Western Suburbs Drainage Scheme

Stamp Duties receipts

Unclaimed salaries and wages

Valuer-General’s salary

Workers Liens Trust Account

AS8. Revenues from SA Government 2007 2006
Revenues from SA Government: $'000 $'000
Appropriations from Consolidated Account pursuant to the Appropriation Act 10 643 13 730
Special Acts 319 213
Total Revenues from SA Government 10 962 13 943
A9. Fees and Charges

Fees and Charges received/receivable from Entities within the SA Government:
Regulatory fees 30 -
Total Fees and Charges - SA Government Entities 30 -

Fees and Charges received/receivable from Entities external to the SA Government:

Service SA 9 349 -
Regulatory fees 62 950 -
Total Fees and Charges - Non-SA Government Entities 72 299 -
Total Fees and Charges 72 329 -

A10. Registration and Licensing Receipts from Third Parties
Registration and Licensing Receipts on behalf of the SA Government:

Stamp Duties 132 609 133 427
Hospital Fund 57 730 56 307
Emergency Services Levy 28 555 27 575
Expiation Notices 942 1 544
Firearms Licenses 1323 1136
Expiation Notices - Courts Administration Authority 668 648
Third Party Insurance 413 993 415 875
Other 3 395 4 439
Total Registration and Licensing Receipts on behalf of the
SA Government 639 215 640 951

Registration and Licensing Receipts on behalf of Entities external to the
SA Government:

Refunds 10 163 10 142
Federal registrations 5 756 5 590
Total Registration and Licensing Receipts on behalf of Entities
External to the SA Government 15919 15 732
Total Registration and Licensing Receipts 655 134 656 683
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Al1l. Grants 2007 2006
Grants received/receivable from Entities within the SA Government: $'000 $'000
Recurrent grant - -
Capital grant - 4232
Total Grants - SA Government Entities - 4 232
Total Grants - 4232
Al12. Transfer Receipts

Contractor deposits 80 106
Lincoln Cove Marina revenue 21 20
Glenelg Foreshore/West Beach Reserve Redevelopment - External contributions 102 194
Natural Gas revenue - 77 227
Energy Management Task Force - Credit note - (84)
EDS contract 10 948 -
Total Transfer Receipts 11 151 77 463

A13. Commonwealth Revenue
RRPGP energy rebate contribution 1758 1201
Gawler River Flood Mitigation Scheme - 7 750
Total Commonwealth Revenue 1758 8 951

Al14. Supplies and Services
Supplies and Services paid/payable to Entities within the SA Government:

Service SA 9 297 -
Project expenditure 2 067 -
Other 1 053 -

Total Supplies and Services - SA Government Entities 12417 -

Supplies and Services paid/payable to Entities external to the SA Government:

Payment to Cooper Basin Gas Producers 52 77 227
Service SA 9 -
Project expenditure 177 -
Other - 222

Total Supplies and Services - Non-SA Government Entities 238 77 449

Total Supplies and Services 12 655 77 449

A15. Grants and Subsidies
Grants and Subsidies paid/payable to Entities external to the SA Government:

Capital grant 2126 6193
Total Grants and Subsidies - Non-SA Government Entities 2126 6 193
Total Grants and Subsidies 2126 6193

Al6. Registration and Licensing Payments to Third Parties
Registration and Licensing payments to Third Parties paid/payable to Entities within
the SA Government:

Stamp Duties - Department of Treasury and Finance 132 609 133 427
Hospital Fund - Department of Treasury and Finance 57 730 56 307
Emergency Services Levy 37 635 36 438
Expiation Notices - South Australian Police 942 1 544
Firearms Licences - South Australian Police 1323 1136
Expiation Notices - Courts Administration Authority 668 648
Third Party Insurance 413 993 415 875
Other 3395 4 439
Total Registration and Licensing Payments to Third Parties -
SA Government Entities 648 295 649 814

Registration and Licensing payments to Third Parties paid/payable to Entities
external to the SA Government:

Refunds 10 163 10 142
Federal registrations 5 756 5 590
Total Registration and Licensing Payments to Third Parties -
Non-SA Government Entities 15919 15 732
Total Registration and Licensing Payments to Third Parties 664 214 665 546
Al17. Transfer Payments

Gawler River Flood Mitigation Scheme - 7 750

Energy Management Task Force payment to the Department of Industry, Tourism
and Resources (Cwlth) - 2 397
Contractor deposits 80 86
Lincoln Cove Marina 8 8
EDS contract 10 948 -
Other - 20
Total Transfer Payments 11 036 10 261
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A18.

A19.

A20.

A21.

Payments to Consolidated Account

Payments to Consolidated Account
Total Payments to Consolidated Account

Cash

Deposits at Call - Westpac

Motor Registration Holding Account

DTEI Operating Account

DTEI Shared Services Operating Account

DTEI Shared Services Administered Items Account
Real Property Act Assurance Fund

Real Property Act Trust Account

Deposits with the Treasurer

Contractors deposits

Natural Gas Authority of South Australia (NGASA)
Passenger Transport Research and Development Fund
Unclaimed salaries and wages

Land Services Group - Regulatory Fees

Special Acts

Total Cash

Receivables
Current:
Receivables
Accrued revenues
Total Current Receivables

Non-Current:
Receivables
Total Non-Current Receivables

Total Receivables

Government/Non-Government Receivables
Receivables from SA Government Entities:
Receivables
Accrued revenues
Total Receivables from SA Government Entities

Receivables from Non-SA Government entities:
Receivables
Accrued revenue
Total Receivables from Non-SA Government Entities

Total Receivables

Payables
Current:
Creditors
Accrued expenses
Total Current Payables

Non-Current:
Accrued expenses
Total Non-Current Payables

Total Payables

Government/Non-Government Payables
Payables to SA Government Entities:
Creditors
Accrued expenses
Total Payables to SA Government Entities

Payables to Non-SA Government Entities:
Creditors
Total Payables to Non-SA Government Entities

Total Payables

1456

2007 2006
$'000 $'000
62 323 12
62 323 12
1741 2741
8 802 8 915
2 836 -
839 -
5926 -
52 -
202 113
408 408
124 261
24 23

12 398 -
(80) -
33 272 12 461
1509 161
54 29
1563 190
2 546 2718
2 546 2718
4109 2 908
175 -
49 18
224 18

3 880 2 879
5 11

3 885 2 890
4 109 2908
6 019 2879
12 920 17
18 939 2 896
3 -

3 -

18 942 2 896
5 886 2879
12 922 17
18 808 2 896
134 -
134 -

18 942 2 896
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A22. Interest Bearing Liabilities 2007 2006
$'000 $'000
Balance as at 1 July 2 879 3031
Increases in debt due to interest 197 207
Less: Repayments:
Woodville, Henley and Grange Drainage Scheme 35 37
South West Suburbs Drainage Scheme 322 322
Balance as at 30 June 2719 2 879
Current 173 161
Non-Current 2 546 2718
Total Interest Bearing Liabilities 2719 2 879
A23. Employee Benefits
Current:
Employee benefits 10 -
Total Current Employee Benefits 10 -
Non-Current:
Employee benefits 35 -
Total Non-Current Employee Benefits 35 -
Total Employee Benefits 45 -
Payables to Non-SA Government Entities:
Employee benefits 45 -
Total Employee Benefits payable to Non-SA Government Entities 45 -
Total Employee Benefits Payable 45 -
A24. Equity
Accumulated surplus 15 701 9 620
Total Equity 15 701 9 620
Accumulated Surplus
Balance at 1 July 9 620 1620
Operating (Deficit) Surplus (1 159) 1619
Increase in net assets due to restructure 7 240 6 381
Balance at 30 June 15 701 9 620

A25. Transfer of Administrative Functions

Effective from 1 January 2007, the Department assumed responsibility for a number of administered items within
functions that transferred to it under a change in SA Government administrative arrangements (refer to Note A2).
The impact of these restructured arrangements on the Administered Financial Statements is summarised as

follows:
DAIS DTEI
01.07.06 to 01.01.07 to
Total income and expenses attributable to these administered functions 31.12.06 30.06.07
for the full financial year are: $'000 $'000
Employee benefits costs 80 99
Other expenses 164 596 85 530
Total Expenses 164 676 85 629
Total Income 165 094 83 455
Net Cost of Providing Services 418 (2 174)
Revenues from (Payments to) SA Government 1627 1 655
Net Result before Restructuring and Tax 2 045 (519)
On transfer of these administrative functions, the following assets 2007
and liabilities were recognised: $'000
Cash 19 378
Receivables 777
Total Assets 20 155
Payables (12 883)
Employee entitlements (32)
Total Liabilities (12915)
Net Assets Transferred 7 240

1457



Transport, Energy and Infrastructure

A26. Financial Instruments
(a) Terms, Conditions and Accounting Policies
(i) Financial Assets
Cash is available at call and is recorded at cost. Interest revenue is recorded on an accrual basis,
with only certain funds held within the total cash balance being interest bearing.

Receivables are raised for all goods and services provided, for which payment has not been received.
Receivables are normally settled within 30 days or in line with agreements entered into for specific
Administered Items.

(i) Financial Liabilities
Creditors and accruals are recognised for all amounts billed but unpaid at an amount equal to the
value of goods and services provided. All creditors are normally settled within 30 days.

Borrowings are recorded at the amount still owing, taking into account repayments and interest
accrued. Interest expense is recognised on an accrual basis. Borrowings are drawn from the
Department of Treasury and Finance at the Common Public Sector Interest Rate of 6.50 percent.
Repayments are determined in negotiation with the SAFA.

(b) Interest Rate Risk
Exposure to interest rate risk for administered items is measured in reference to the level of interest and
non-interest bearing assets and liabilities held at reporting date.

2007

Weighted
Average
Floating Non- Effective
Interest Interest Interest Interest
Financial Instrument Rate Bearing Bearing Total Rate
Financial Assets: Percent $'000 $'000 $'000 Percent
Cash assets 6.10 33 272 - 33 272 5.98
Receivables - - 4 109 4109 -

33 272 4 109 37 381

Financial Liabilities:

Payables - - 18 942 18 942 -
Borrowings 6.50 2719 - 2719 6.56

2719 18 942 21 661

2006

Weighted
Average
Floating Non- Effective
Interest Interest Interest Interest
Financial Instrument Rate Bearing Bearing Total Rate
Financial Assets: Percent $'000 $’000 $'000 Percent
Cash assets 5.43 12 461 - 12 461 5.38
Receivables - - 2 908 2 908 -

12 461 2908 15 369

Financial Liabilities:

Payables - - 2 896 2 896 -
Borrowings 6.95 2 879 - 2 879 6.95

2 879 2 896 5775

(c) Credit Risk
The maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date is measured at the carrying amount of administered
receivables as indicated in the Balance Sheet.

(d) Fair Value (Market) Risk
Administered financial instruments are disclosed at a carrying amount that approximates their net fair
value. The amount for financial assets approximates the net fair value due to the short-term to maturity of
the items, or due to the assets being receivable on demand. The carrying amount of financial liabilities is
considered to be a reasonable estimate of net fair value.

A27. Cash Flow Reconciliation 2007 2006
Reconciliation of Cash - Cash at 30 June: $'000 $'000

Cash Flow Statement 33 272 12 461

Balance Sheet 33 272 12 461

Reconciliation of Net Cash Inflows from Operating Activities to
Operating Surplus:

Net cash inflows from operating activities 1433 2 895
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Increase (Decrease) in receivables 422 (1063)
Decrease (Increase) in liabilities (3014) (213)
Operating (Deficit) Surplus (1 159) 1619
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Transport, Energy and Infrastructure

Criminal Injuries Compensation Fund (Victims of Crime Levy)

In accordance with the Expiation of Offences Act 1996, and on behalf of the Attorney-General’s Department, the
Public Transport Division of the Department collects criminal injuries compensation levies from expiation notices
issued.

2007 2006
$'000 $'000
Levies collected during the year 10 -
Amount paid to Attorney-General’s Department 10 -

Amount Payable to Attorney-General’s Department - -

Natural Gas Authority of South Australia (NGASA)
On 1 September 1995, the NGASA became operative pursuant to the provisions of the Pipelines Authority (Sale of
Pipelines) Amendment Act 1995.

The principle activities of this operative are:

. Purchase, sale and delivery of gas;

. Administration of gas supply contracts with respect to the South Australian Cooper Basin, South West
Queensland Cooper Basin and Katnook;

. Administration of down stream gas sale contracts for AGL Wholesale Gas (SA) and Origin Energy;

. Gas price reviews, gas nominations, reserves and adequacy, take-or-pay and Trade Practice Commission
issues;

o Gas billing, gas quality and measurement;

. The administration of Gas Pipeline easements.

Under the terms of the contracts, NGASA is responsible for invoicing and collecting payments from AGL Wholesale
Gas (SA) and Origin Energy for gas purchase and the subsequent forwarding of those monies to gas producers.
These contracts effectively came to the end of their term on 31 December 2005.

Reserves held in the Special Deposit Account, totalling $384 000 were no longer required by the project and
subsequently returned to the Department of Treasury and Finance Consolidated Fund.

A balance of $25 000 has been retained to enable NGASA to perform its remaining functions.

Passenger Transport Research and Development Fund

Pursuant to section 62 of the Passenger Transport Act 1994, the Public Transport Division of the Department
administers, on behalf of the Minister for Transport, the Passenger Transport Research and Development Fund (an
interest bearing deposit account).

The Fund may be applied by the Minister for Transport for:

. the purpose of carrying out research into the taxi-cab industry;
o the purpose of promoting the taxi-cab industry; and/or
o any other purpose considered by the Minister to be beneficial to the travelling public, in the interests of
the passenger transport industry, and an appropriate application of money standing to the credit of the
Fund.
2007 2006
Inflows: $'000 $'000
Income into the fund 10 21
Total Inflows 10 21
Outflows:
Expenditure from the fund 146 163
Total Outflows 146 163
Net Deficit (136) (142)
Fund Balance
Balance at 1 July 261 403
Net Deficit (136) (142)
Balance at 30 June 125 261

Remuneration of Employees
Amounts received or receivable by employees as Administered Items whose remuneration is greater than
$100 000.
2007 2006
Number of Number of
Employees Employees
The number of employees whose remuneration received or receivable
falls within the following bands:

$270 000 - $279 999 - 1
$290 000 - $299 999 1 -
Total Number of Employees 1 1
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A31.

Remuneration of Employees (continued)

The table includes all employees who received remuneration of $100 000 or more during the year. The
remuneration reflects all costs of employment including gross salary and wages, superannuation contributions
(employer’s contribution), FBT, other salary sacrifice benefits and separation packages for those with salaries over
$100 000.

A number of functions from the former DAIS were transferred to the Department effective from 1 January 2007.

Below is a table showing all employees of the former DAIS transferred to the Department who received
remuneration of $100 000 or more during the financial year from 1 July 2006 to 30 June 2007.

2007 2006
Number of Number of
Employees Employees
The number of former DAIS employees whose remuneration received or receivable
falls within the following bands:
$160 000 - $169 000 1 -
Total Number of Employees 1 -
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DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY AND FINANCE

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY AND STRUCTURE
Establishment

The Department of Treasury and Finance (the Department) is an Administrative Unit established under the
PSMAct.

Functions

The Government, through the Treasurer and the Department, undertakes a number of distinct roles including:

. setting economic and fiscal policy at the whole-of-government level;
. managing whole-of-government financial management processes;
. providing a range of direct whole-of-government services including asset and liability management,

collection of taxes, and insurance and superannuation administration.

In turn the Department is a major service provider by:

. collecting tax revenue and implementing taxation legislation through RevenueSA;

. raising and managing the State’s debt funding and managing and insuring Government risk through
the South Australian Government Financing Authority (SAFA);

. administering public sector superannuation through the State Superannuation Office (Super SA).

The Department administers but does not control certain funds on behalf of the Treasurer. These funds are
not recorded in the Department’s Income Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity and
Cash Flow Statement, as the Department does not have any discretion to deploy the resources for
achievement of its own objectives. Further details are provided in the Statement of Administered Income and
Expenses, Statement of Administered Assets and Liabilities, Statement of Changes in Administered Equity and
Statement of Administered Cash Flows appearing in the Department’s financial report.

Structure

The structure of the Department as at 30 June 2007 is illustrated in the following organisation chart.

Treasurer

Department of Treasury and Finance

Under Treasurer

Finance SAFA SuperSA
Revenue and Economics Shared Services Reform Corporate Services
Government Accounting and Reporting State Procurement and Support Operations

Policy Analysis

Projects and Government Enterprises

RevenueSA
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Changes to Structure

As stated in Note 2.3, the Contract and Procurement Services, Fleet SA, Support Services and Corporate
Services (other than Parliamentary Network Support Group, Injury Management Unit and Placement Services)
business units of the Department for Administrative and Information Services transferred to the Department
effective 1 January 2007. These business units formed the new State Procurement and Support Operations
branch in the Department.

In September 2006 the SA Government announced the whole-of-government shared services reform
initiative. The Shared Services Reform Office has been established as a branch within the Department to
manage the implementation of shared services reform for the business service functions of Information and
Communications Technology (ICT), Human Resources (HR), Procurement and Finance.

AUDIT MANDATE AND COVERAGE
Audit Authority
Audit of the Financial Report

Subsection 31(1)(b) of the PFAA provides for the Auditor-General to audit the accounts of the Department for
each financial year.

Assessment of Controls

Subsection 36(1)(a)(iii) of the PFAA provides for the Auditor-General to assess the controls exercised by the
Department in relation to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of
property and the incurring of liabilities.

This assessment also considers whether those controls are consistent with the prescribed elements of the FMF
as required by TI 2.

Scope of Audit

The audit program covered major financial systems and was directed primarily to obtaining sufficient evidence
to enable an opinion to be formed with respect to the financial statements and internal controls.

During 2006-07, specific areas of audit attention included:

Corporate Services

. expenditure

. payroll

. fixed assets

. revenue

. financial accounting

. information technology.

RevenueSA

. financial accounting and recording systems for tax collections
. Emergency Services Levy (ESL) collection system

. First Home Owners Grant applications and disbursements
. Compliance Services for all taxes

. information technology.

State Procurement and Support Operations

. Contract and Procurement Services:
— warehouse sales, purchasing and stock take
— gaming machine purchases and recoveries
. Fleet SA:
— fleet revenue
— motor vehicle expenditure
— motor vehicle assets
. Support Services:
— payroll
— accounts payable
— e-purchase
— credit cards
— general ledger.
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Financing and Insurance Services
Commentary in respect of these activities is included in the section of Part B of this Report covering SAFA.
Superannuation Services

Commentary in respect of these activities is included in the section of Part B of this Report covering the South
Australian Superannuation Board.

Public Finances

In addition, Audit undertakes ongoing work with respect to various aspects of the public finances. These
matters are primarily reported in Part C of this Report, and the Treasurer’s Statements are an Appendix to
Part B of this Report.

AUDIT FINDINGS AND COMMENTS
Auditor’s Report on the Financial Report

In my opinion, the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Department of Treasury and Finance as at 30 June 2007, and its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with the Treasurer’s Instructions promulgated under the provisions of the
Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 and Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations).

Assessment of Controls

In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Department of Treasury and Finance in relation to the receipt,
expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the incurring of liabilities,
are sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that the financial transactions of the Department of Treasury
and Finance have been conducted properly and in accordance with law.

Communication of Audit Matters

Matters arising during the course of the audit were detailed in management letters to the Under Treasurer.
Responses to the management letters were generally considered to be satisfactory. The following outlines
certain matters raised with the Department and the related responses.

Corporate Services

The Corporate Services branch is responsible for overseeing the processing and management of transactions
in relation to the Department’'s own operations as well as providing some services to other agencies. The
audit of the branch indicated that in most cases there was a satisfactory control environment in place. There
were, however, some areas where minor improvements could be made to payroll controls and instances were
noted where established controls were not being applied.

In response, the Department indicated that each of the matters raised had either been resolved, or that steps
had been put in place to implement the Audit recommendations.

RevenueSA

RevenueSA is responsible for the collection of more than $2.9 billion of taxation revenue on behalf of the
Government. The audit of RevenueSA indicated that in most cases there was a satisfactory control
environment in place, although there were some areas where minor improvements could be made to internal
controls and instances were noted where established controls were not being applied.

In response, the Department indicated that each of the matters raised had either been resolved, or that steps
had been put in place to implement the Audit recommendations.

State Procurement and Support Operations (SPSO) Branch
The SPSO Branch provides advice to Government and agencies on strategic procurement, undertakes and
manages across government contracts and the Government vehicle fleet and provides support services to

other government agencies in the areas of ICT, finance and accounting services, HR, payroll and
administration services.
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Support Services - Review of General Control Environment
The audit of the Support Services section identified the need to:

increase the frequency and level of review of e-purchase system access privileges;

monitor and assess the level of purchasing in arrears through the e-purchase system;
strengthen controls over the validity of input into the Masterpiece Accounts Payable system;
follow up outstanding purchase card statements;

ensure the appropriate authorisation of purchase card statements.

In response the Department indicated planned action on the matters raised. However, in relation to controls
over Masterpiece Accounts Payable system input validity, the Department considered that adequate controls
were in place, even though Audit’s view was that the established control environment may not identify invalid
transactions before the payment is made.

Support Services - Review of E-Purchase Information Technology Management and System Operations
In late 2006, Audit undertook an information update of certain aspects of the e-purchase SA Business Unit
information technology management and control, including the e-purchase system and its computer

processing environment.

A number of improvements that could be made by the Department were identified from the information and
documentation provided.

Audit’s observations indicated a need (at the Business Unit level or at the ICT Support Unit level) for:

. developing or updating of formal business continuity and disaster recovery plans;

. the above plans to be reviewed, updated and tested on a regular basis;

. formalised updated documentation relating to change management processes;

. user and operational procedures, including system user access allocation to be updated;

. developing formal procedures to ensure that passwords are periodically changed and that the

password security configuration for the system is enabled.

The Department’s response of January 2007 confirmed some actions that were already in progress and others
that were planned as a result of the Audit observations and recommendations.

Audit undertook a follow up of matters in progress in July 2007. The follow up revealed that a number of
improvements had been made, notably:

user and operational documentation progressively updated;

logical security password functions activated;

logical security user access procedures developed;

data classified in accordance with the Information Management Security Framework;

a formalised change management process and procedures developed and implemented.

Other matters in progress were:

. the continued updating and development of user and operational documentation;

. development of a formalised Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Plan specific for the Business
Unit;

. formalisation of testing of the Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Plan.

Government Accounting and Reporting (GAR) Branch

Responsibilities for the GAR Branch include the Appropriation process, recording the activities of the
Consolidated Account and the balances of the Treasurer’s Deposit Accounts and Treasurer’s Loans. The audit
of the GAR Branch indicated that systems of internal control were generally operating satisfactorily, although
there were some areas where minor improvements could be made to internal controls and instances were
noted where established controls were not being applied.

In response, the Department indicated that each of the matters raised had either been resolved, or that steps
had been put in place to implement the Audit recommendations.

Other specific matters of audit comment are outlined below.
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Accrual Appropriation Excess Funds Account

The last two reports have included comments on the nature and operation of the Accrual Appropriation Excess
Funds Account (the Account). It is a Special Deposit Account holding funds at 30 June 2007 totalling
$398 million.

The comments in the previous reports have raised the need for formalisation of policies and procedures
covering the Account’s operations, its operating relationship with the budget and cash management processes
of government, and the monitoring of agencies to deposit required funds into the Account.

During 2006-07 a follow-up review was undertaken of action taken to address the matters raised by Audit.
The follow-up review revealed:

. a policies and procedure document (approved in May 2007) was distributed to all relevant agency
Chief Executives on 16 June 2007;

. funds totalling $37.9 million were accessed by agencies from the Account during 2006-07;

. payments by agencies into the Account during 2005-06 were for accrual appropriation amounts owing
in respect of the 1998-99 to 2003-04 years;

. the payment process for 2006-07 was complicated by the later than usual State Budget and passing
of the Appropriation Act 2006. The majority of agencies complied with the Department’s instructions
for payments into the Account, though some exceptions were noted. These were subsequently
corrected;

. the payment process for 2007-08 will be as for 2005-06, ie the Department will be depositing accrual
appropriation funds into the Account on behalf of agencies. This will strengthen controls over
administration of the Account.

The Department advised that in some instances the funds transfer requirements were not being met by
agencies and it will act to ensure this is not repeated in 2007-08.

Appropriation Disbursement Error
On 19 June 2007 the Department deposited $16.44 million in appropriation funds into the bank account of the
Department of Trade and Economic Development in error. The Department identified the error and the funds

were returned.

The circumstances of the error were reviewed by Audit and the Department’s advice was sought regarding
action it proposed to improve control over disbursements.

In response the Department advised it has implemented an additional step in the transfer approval procedure
whereby a third person is to verify transfer details before appropriation is transferred.

INTERPRETATION AND ANALYSIS OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

The Department, as previously commented, was subject to organisational changes during 2006-07. Notes
2.3 and 29 to the financial statements provide details (including financial details) in relation to the changes.
As a result only highlights from the financial statements are presented below. The significant increases in all

financial statement areas reflects the effects of the changes.

Highlights of the Financial Report

2007 2006
$'million $’'million
INCOME
Revenue from fees and charges 98.3 29.1
Other revenue 1.7 1.2
Total Income 100.0 30.3
EXPENSES
Employee benefit costs 63.3 44.0
Supplies and services 62.1 25.1
Other expenses 34.6 2.5
Total Expenses 160.0 71.6
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2007 2006

$'million $'million
Net Cost of Providing Services (60.0) (41.3)
REVENUES FROM SA GOVERNMENT
Government appropriation 60.8 39.9
NET RESULT BEFORE RESTRUCTURE AND TAX 0.8 (1.4)
Net revenue from administrative restructure 11.3 0.3
Income tax equivalent (0.1) -
NET RESULT 12.0 (1.1)
ASSETS
Current assets 95.2 13.1
Non-current assets 173.4 8.5
Total Assets 268.6 21.6
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 27.8 5.7
Non-current liabilities 222.0 9.0
Total Liabilities 249.8 14.7
EQUITY 18.8 6.9
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 50.3 1.6
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (28.0) (0.8)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (2.1) -
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 20.2 0.8
Cash and Cash Equivalents at 1 July 11.4 10.6
Cash and Cash Equivalents at 30 June 31.6 11.4

Administered Items

The Administered financial statements mainly reflect the Department’s transactions on behalf of the
SA Government for the Consolidated Account.

2007 2006 Percentage
$'million $'million Change
INCOME
Taxation 2993 2 683 11
Commonwealth revenues 3 645 3574 1
Revenues from SA Government 1190 1176 1
Other revenues 860 1 086 (20)
Total Income 8 688 8 519 1
EXPENSES
Payments to SA Government 7 296 7 160 1
Other expenses 1373 1 348 1
Total Expenses 8 669 8 508 1
Operating Surplus 19 11 72
ASSETS
Current assets 1 090 912 19
Non-current assets 1 2 (50)
Total Assets 1091 914 19
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2007 2006 Percentage
$'million $'million Change
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 1 006 846 18
Non-current liabilities 498 500 -
Total Liabilities 1504 1 346 11
EQUITY (413) (432) 4
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 166 (175) 194
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 6 3 100
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and
Cash Equivalents Held 172 (172) 200
Cash and Cash Equivalents at 1 July 898 1070 (16)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at 30 June 1070 898 19

The Consolidated Account result for 2006-07 is reported in the Treasurer’s Statements (refer to the Appendix
to Part B of this Report).
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Income Statement

for the year ended 30 June 2007

EXPENSES:
Employee benefit expenses
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Borrowing costs
Other expenses
Total Expenses

INCOME:
Revenues from fees and charges
Interest revenues
Net gain from disposal of assets
Other revenues
Total Income
NET COST OF PROVIDING SERVICES

REVENUES FROM SA GOVERNMENT

NET RESULT BEFORE RESTRUCTURE

Net revenue from administrative restructure

NET RESULT AFTER RESTRUCTURING

Income tax equivalent

NET RESULT AFTER RESTRUCTURING AND TAX

Net Result after restructuring and tax is attributable to the SA Government as owner

Note

11
12
13
14

15

29

16

2007 2006
$’000 $'000
63 298 43 983
62 136 25 068
22 758 2528
6 291 -
5514 6
159 997 71 585
98 289 29 119
68 756
1252 -
388 388

99 997 30 263
(60 000) (41 322)
60 818 39 949
818 (1373)

11 363 288
12 181 (1 085)
162 -

12 019 (1 085)
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Balance Sheet
as at 30 June 2007

2007 2006
CURRENT ASSETS: Note $'000 $'000
Cash and cash equivalents 17 31 590 11 354
Receivables 18 16 744 1717
Inventories 19 2400 -
Property, plant and equipment 21 41 351 -
92 085 13 071
Non-current assets classified as held-for-sale 20 3 099 -
Total Current Assets 95 184 13 071
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Receivables 18 136 2
Property, plant and equipment 21 167 123 1601
Intangible assets 22 6 187 6 897
Total Non-Current Assets 173 446 8 500
Total Assets 268 630 21 571
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables 23 17 792 1870
Borrowings 24 27 -
Employee benefits 25 7 308 3822
Provisions 26 720 54
Other current liabilities 27 776 -
26 623 5746
Liabilities directly associated with non-current assets held-for-sale 1121 -
Total Current Liabilities 27 744 5746
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables 23 1 558 771
Borrowings 24 203 896 -
Employee benefits 25 16 242 8 069
Provisions 26 333 147
Total Non-Current Liabilities 222 029 8 987
Total Liabilities 249 773 14 733
NET ASSETS 18 857 6 838
EQUITY:
Asset revaluation reserve 28 108 108
Retained earnings 28 18 749 6 730
TOTAL EQUITY 18 857 6 838

Total Equity is attributable to the SA Government as owner

Commitments 30
Contingent assets and liabilities 31
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2007

Balance at 30 June 2005
Changes in accounting policy
Restated Balance at 30 June 2005
Net result after restructure for 2005-06
Total recognised income and expense for 2005-06
Restated Balance at 30 June 2006
Net result after restructure and tax for 2006-07
Total recognised income and expense for 2006-07
Balance at 30 June 2007

All Changes in Equity are attributable to the SA Government as owner

Note

28

28

Asset
Revaluation Retained
Reserve Earnings Total
$'000 $'000 $'000
108 7 257 7 365
- 558 558
108 7 815 7 923
- (1 085) (1 085)
- (1 085) (1 085)
108 6 730 6 838
- 12 019 12 019
- 12 019 12 019
108 18 749 18 857
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2007

2007 2006
Inflows Inflows
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: (Outflows) (Outflows)
CASH OUTFLOWS: Note $'000 $'000
Employee benefit payments (61 383) (42 869)
Supplies and services (57 972) (25 823)
Interest paid (6 291) -
GST payments on purchases (12 544) (2 120)
GST remitted to Australian Taxation Office (11 374) (2 032)
Cash used in Operations (149 564) (72 844)
CASH INFLOWS:
Fees and charges 102 047 29 260
Interest received 118 761
Proceeds from restructuring activities 12 720 -
GST receipts on receivables 13 215 2021
GST input tax credits 10 665 2 070
Other receipts 388 417
Cash generated from Operations 139 153 34 529
CASH FLOWS FROM SA GOVERNMENT:
Receipts from SA Government 60 818 39 949
Income tax equivalents paid (106) -
Cash generated from SA Government 60 712 39 949
Net Cash provided by Operating Activities 33(b) 50 301 1634
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (56 725) (583)
Purchase of intangible assets (293) (208)
Cash used in Investing Activities (57 018) (791)
CASH INFLOWS:
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 29 020 -
Cash generated from Investing Activities 29 020 -
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (27 998) (791)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Repayment of borrowings (55 279) -
Cash used in Financing Activities (55 279) -
CASH INFLOWS:
Proceeds from borrowing 53 212 -
Cash generated from Financing Activities 53 212 -
Net Cash used in Financing Activities (2 067) -
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 236 843
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JULY 11 354 10 511
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 30 JUNE 33(a) 31590 11 354
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Program Schedule of Expenses and Income

for the year ended 30 June 2007

(Refer Note 5)

EXPENSES:
Employee benefit expenses
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Borrowing cost
Other expenses

Total Expenses

INCOME:
Revenues from fees and charges
Interest revenues
Net gain from disposal of assets
Other revenues
Total Income
NET COST OF PROVIDING SERVICES
REVENUES FROM SA GOVERNMENT
NET RESULT BEFORE RESTRUCTURE

(Refer Note 5)

EXPENSES:
Employee benefit expenses
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Borrowing cost
Other expenses

Total Expenses

INCOME:
Revenues from fees and charges
Interest revenues
Net gain from disposal of assets
Other revenues
Total Income
NET COST OF PROVIDING SERVICES
REVENUES FROM SA GOVERNMENT
NET RESULT BEFORE RESTRUCTURE

Program 1 Program 2 Program 3

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
12 386 13435 29 796 30 330 2 858 -
4 006 4 649 20778 20 395 1482 -
687 719 1765 1 809 9 -
- 2 - 4 - -
17 079 18 805 52 339 52 538 4 349 -
1 086 1610 30 461 27 508 2 -
- 309 - 445 - -
71 112 201 276 1 -
1157 2031 30 662 28 229 3 -
(15922) (16774) (21677) (24 309) (4 346) -
16 299 16 837 21 586 22 873 4 450 -
377 63 (91) (1436) 104 -

Program 4 Program 5 Program Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
18 024 - 234 218 63 298 43 983
35 861 - 24 62 136 25 068
20 296 - 1 - 22 758 2528
6 291 - - - 6 291 -
5514 - - - 5514 6
85 986 - 244 242 159 997 71 585
66 740 - - 98 289 29 119
68 - - 2 68 756
1 252 - - - 1 252 -
115 - - - 388 388
68 175 - - 3 99 997 30 263
(17 811) - (244) (239) (60000) (41 322)
18 234 - 249 239 60 818 39 949
423 - 5 - 818 (1373)

The allocations to programs are indicative and are based on broad costing methodologies.

Program descriptions are contained in Note 5.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Objectives of the Department of Treasury and Finance

The Department of Treasury and Finance (the department) provides policy advice and financial management
services to the Government of South Australia in order to strengthen state finances and contribute to community
well being through supporting the objectives of South Australia’s Strategic Plan (SASP). This is achieved by
promoting policy accountability in the public sector based on objective and comprehensive analysis of options, by
managing the whole-of-government financial processes and by providing financial services.

The department is the lead agency supporting the government’s key economic, social and financial policy
outcomes through the provision of advice and coordination of resource allocation for government programs. The
department also provides financial services to the government and the community, covering asset and liability
management, collection of state taxes, insurance and superannuation.

The department also supports the government's target for improved administrative efficiency within the public
sector through implementation and provision of shared services and provision of procurement and fleet
management further across the SA Government.

The department provides the government with policy and financial advice on achieving the SASP through the
following departmental priorities:

Strengthen State Finances including maintaining the AAA Credit Rating
Related SASP Objective: Growing Prosperity
Target Area: Credit rating,; Strategic Infrastructure

Achieve Performance Improvements in the South Australian Public Sector
Related SASP Objective: Growing Prosperity
Target Area: Performance in the public sector — administrative efficiency, Government decision-making

Improve Budget and Financial Management Processes
Related SASP Objective: Growing Prosperity
Target Area: Performance in the public sector — Government Decision Making,; Strategic Infrastructure

Improve Service Delivery

Related SASP Objective: Growing Prosperity

Target Area: Performance in the public sector - Customer and client satisfaction with government services;
Government decision making

Effective Industry Regulation
Related SASP Objective: Growing Prosperity
Target Area: Performance in the public sector - Government decision making

Corporate Priorities
Related SASP Objective: Growing Prosperity
Target Area: Performance in the public sector — Productivity; Government decision making

To achieve these objectives, the department delivers a number of programs for the government. The program
information is summarised in Note 5.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Accounting
The financial report is a general purpose financial report. The accounts have been prepared in accordance
with applicable AASs, TIs and APSs promulgated under the provision of the PFAA.

The department’s Income Statement, Balance Sheet and Statement of Changes in Equity have been
prepared on an accrual basis and are in accordance with historical cost convention, except for certain assets
that were valued in accordance with the valuation policy applicable.

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared on a cash basis.

The financial report has been prepared based on a 12 month operating cycle and presented in Australian
currency.

Statement of Compliance
AASs include AIFRS and AAS 29. The department has early-adopted the amendments to AASB 101. Refer
to Note 4.

The preparation of the financial report requires:

. the use of certain accounting estimates and requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the department’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
outlined in the applicable notes;
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2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Statement of Compliance (continued)

. compliance with APSs issued pursuant to section 41 of the PFAA, by authority of TI 19. In the
interest of public accountability and transparency the APSs require the following note disclosures,
that have been included in this financial report:

(a) revenues, expenses, financial assets and liabilities where the counterparty/transaction is with
an entity within the SA Government as at reporting date, classified according to their nature;

(b) expenses incurred as a result of engaging consultants (as reported in the Income Statement);
(c) employee TVSP information;

(d) employees whose normal remuneration is $100 000 or more (within $10 000 bandwidths)
and the aggregate of the remuneration paid or payable or otherwise made available, directly
or indirectly by the entity to those employees;

(e) board/committee member and remuneration information, where a board/committee member
is entitled to receive income from membership other than a direct out-of-pocket
reimbursement.

Reporting Entity

The department produces both departmental and administered financial statements. The departmental
financial statements include the use of income, expenses, assets, and liabilities, controlled or incurred by
the department in its own right. The administered financial statements include the income, expenses,
assets and liabilities which the department administers on behalf of the SA Government but does not
control.

Administrative Restructure

The Public Sector Management (Abolition of Administrative Unit and Public Service Restructure)
Proclamation 2006 (dated 28 September 2006) declared that the Contract and Procurement Services,
Fleet SA, Support Services and Corporate Services (other than Parliamentary Network Support Group,
Injury Management Unit and Placement Services) Business Units transferred from the Department for
Administrative and Information Services (DAIS) to the department. This public sector restructure was
effective from 1 January 2007 for financial reporting purposes. Refer to Note 29.

The Micro Economic Reform and Infrastructure (MERI) Branch was transferred to the Department for
Transport, Energy and Infrastructure (DTEI) from 1 July 2005. No revenues or expenses for this function
were included in the financial statements for 2005-06. The net revenue from the transfer of assets and
liabilities as a result of the restructure has been reflected in the Income Statement for 2005-06.

Comparative Information
The presentation and classification of items in the financial report are consistent with prior periods except
where a specific APS or AAS has required a change.

Where presentation or classification of items in the financial report has been amended comparative
amounts have been reclassified unless reclassification is impracticable.

The restated comparative amounts do not replace the original financial report for the preceding period.

Rounding
All amounts in the financial report have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($'000).

Taxation

In accordance with TI 22, some business units are required to pay to the State Government income tax
equivalents. The income tax liability is based on the Treasurer's accounting profit method, which requires
the corporate tax rate be applied to the net profit. The current income tax liability relates to the income tax
expense outstanding for the current period.

Income taxation equivalents are required to be paid by the following business units of the department:

. Fleet SA
. Government supplies warehouse (Supply SA)

The department is liable for payroll tax, FBT and GST.

Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:

. when the GST incurred on a purchase of goods or services is not recoverable from the Australian
Taxation Office (ATO), in which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the

asset or as part of the expense item applicable;

. receivables and creditors are stated with the amount of GST included.
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Taxation (continued)
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables or
payables in the Balance Sheet.

Cash flows are included in the Cash Flow Statement on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is classified
as part of operating cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to
the ATO. If GST is not payable to, or recoverable from the ATO, the commitments and contingencies are
disclosed on a gross basis.

Income and Expenses
Income and expenses are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the flow of economic benefits to
or from the department will occur and can be reliably measured.

Income and expenses have been classified according to their nature and have not been offset unless
required or permitted by a specific accounting standard, or where offsetting reflects the substance of the
transaction or other event.

The notes accompanying the financial statements disclose income, expenses, financial assets and financial
liabilities where the counterparty/transaction is with an entity within the SA Government as at the reporting
date.

Transactions with SA Government entities and non-SA Government entities are classified according to their
nature.

The following are specific recognition criteria:

Revenues from (Payments to) SA Government
Appropriations for program funding are recognised as revenues when the department obtains control over
the funding. Control over appropriations is normally obtained upon receipt.

Payments to the SA Government include the return of surplus cash pursuant to the cash alignment policy,
and revenues from taxation, Commonwealth Government, dividends, interest, other revenues received on
behalf of the government and paid directly to the Consolidated Account.

Resources Received/Provided Free of Charge

Resources received/provided free of charge are recorded as revenue and expenditure in the Income
Statement at their fair value. Resources provided free of charge are recorded in the expense line items to
which they relate.

Contributions Received/Paid

Contributions are recognised as an asset and income when the department obtains control of the
contributions or obtains the right to receive the contributions and the income recognition criteria are met
(ie the amount can be reliably measured and the flow of resources is probable).

Generally, the department has obtained control or the right to receive for:

. contributions with unconditional stipulations — this will be when the agreement becomes enforceable
ie the earlier of when the receiving entity has formally been advised that the contribution (eg grant
application) has been approved; agreement/contract is executed; and/or the contribution is
received.

. contributions with conditional stipulations — this will be when the enforceable stipulations specified
in the agreement occur or are satisfied; that is income would be recognised for contributions
received or receivable under the agreement.

All contributions received by the department have been contributions with unconditional stipulations
attached and have been recognised as an asset and income upon receipt.

For contributions payable, the contribution will be recognised as a liability and expense when the entity has
a present obligation to pay the contribution and the expense recognition criteria are met.

All contributions paid by the department have been contributions with unconditional stipulations attached.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet includes cash on hand and deposits at call that are readily

converted to cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash is measured at nominal value.
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2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

Receivables
Receivables include amounts receivable from trade, prepayments and other accruals.

Trade receivables arise in the normal course of selling goods and services to other agencies and to the
public. Trade receivables are generally receivable within 30 days after the issue of an invoice or the
goods/services have been provided under a contractual arrangement.

Collectibility of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts that are known to be uncollectible
are written off when identified. An allowance for doubtful debts is raised when there is objective evidence
that the department will not be able to collect the debt.

Inventories

Inventories are mainly general stock on hand (other than those held for distribution at no or nominal
consideration) held by Supply SA and are valued at the lower of average cost or net realisable value, using
the average weighted cost method.

The amount of any inventory write-down to net realisable value/replacement cost of inventory losses are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurred. Any write-down reversals are
recognised as an expense reduction.

Other Financial Assets
The department measures financial assets and debt at historical cost, except for interest free loans
(measured at the present value of expected repayments).

Non-Current Assets Acquisition and Recognition

Assets are initially recorded at cost or at the value of any liabilities assumed, plus any incidental cost
involved with the acquisition. Where assets are acquired at no value, or nominal value, they are recorded
at their fair value in the Balance Sheet. However, if the assets are acquired at no or nominal value as part
of a restructuring of administrative arrangements, then the assets are recorded at the value recorded by
the transferor prior to transfer.

An increase in the capitalisation threshold from $5000 to $10 000 occurred during 2006-07. All non-current
tangible assets with a value of $10 000 or greater are capitalised.

Revaluation of Non-Current Assets

All non-current tangible assets are valued at written down current cost (a proxy for fair value) and
revaluation of non-current assets is only performed when its fair value at the time of acquisition is greater
then $1 million and estimated useful life is greater than three years.

Every three years, the department revalues its land, buildings and fitouts over $1 million. However, if at
any time management considers that the carrying amount of an asset materially differs from its fair value,
then the asset will be revalued regardless of when the last valuation took place. Non-current tangible
assets that are acquired between revaluations are held at cost until the next valuation, where they are
revalued to fair value.

Any revaluation increment is credited to the asset revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses
a revaluation decrease of the same asset class previously recognised in the Income Statement, in which
case the increase is recognised in the Income Statement.

Any revaluation decrease is recognised in the Income Statement, except to the extent that it offsets a
previous revaluation increase for the same asset class, in which case the decrease is debited directly to the
asset revaluation reserve to the extent of the credit balance existing in the revaluation reserve for that
asset class.

Any accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amounts of
the assets and the net amounts are restated to the revalued amounts of the asset.

Upon disposal or derecognition, any revaluation reserve relating to that asset is transferred to retained
earnings.

Impairment

All non-current tangible and intangible assets are reviewed for indication of impairment through stocktaking
processes or at the reporting date. Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is
estimated. An amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as
an impairment loss.

For revalued assets an impairment loss is offset against the asset revaluation reserve.
Non-Current Assets (or disposal groups) Held-for-Sale
Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held-for-sale and stated at the lower of their

carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
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Non-Current Assets (or disposal groups) Held-for-Sale (continued)

Non-current assets classified as held-for-sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held-for-sale
are presented separately from the other assets in the Balance Sheet. The liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held-for-sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the Balance Sheet.

Depreciation and Amortisation of Non-Current Assets

All non-current assets, having a limited useful life, are systematically depreciated/amortised over their
useful lives in a manner that reflects the consumption of their service potential. Amortisation is used in
relation to intangible assets such as software, while depreciation is applied to tangible assets such as
property, plant and equipment.

The assets' residual values, useful lives and depreciation/amortisation methods are reviewed and adjusted if
appropriate, on an annual basis.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are accounted for prospectively by change to the time period or method, as
appropriate, which is a change in accounting estimate.

The value of fitouts for leased buildings are amortised over the estimated useful life of each improvement,
or the unexpired period of the relevant lease, whichever is shorter.

The creation of new asset classes occurred during 2006-07 as a result of the restructure of DAIS.
Land and assets held-for-sale are not depreciated.

Depreciation/amortisation is calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the following
classes of assets. Depreciation rates were amended as a result of the change in useful lives.

Class of Asset Depreciation Method Useful Life (Years)
Buildings Straight Line 20-40
Fitouts - Owned buildings Straight Line 3-10
Fitouts - Leased buildings Straight Line Remaining life of lease
Furniture Straight Line 10
Information technology equipment Straight Line 3-5
Intangibles Straight Line 3-10
Motor vehicles Straight Line 2-5
Office equipment Straight Line 3-5
Plant and equipment Straight Line 5-10
Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. Intangible assets are
measured at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. The department only has
intangible assets with finite lives. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible
assets is reviewed on an annual basis.

The acquisition of or internal development of software is capitalised only when the expenditure meets the
definition criteria (identifiable, control and the existence of future economic benefits) and recognition
criteria (probability of future economic benefits and cost can be reliably measured) and when the amount of
expenditure is greater than or equal to $10 000.

All research and development costs that do not meet the capitalisation criteria outline in AASB 138 are
expensed.

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets that includes upgrades or enhancements to existing software
systems that result in additional functionality or performance will be capitalised. Other expenditure for
modifications that merely maintain the existing level of performance or system functionality will be
expensed.

Payables
Payables include creditors, accrued expenses and employment on-costs.

Creditors represent the amounts owing for goods and services received prior to the end of the reporting
period that are unpaid at the end of the reporting period. Creditors include all unpaid invoices received
relating to the normal operations of the department.

Accrued expenses represent goods and services provided by other parties during the period that are unpaid
at the end of the reporting period and where an invoice has not been received.

All amounts are measured at their nominal amount, are unsecured and are normally settled within 30 days
from the date of the invoice or date the invoice is first received.
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2.18

2,19

2.20

2.21

2.22

Payables (continued)
Employment on-costs include superannuation contributions and payroll tax with respect to outstanding
liabilities for salaries and wages, annual leave and long service leave.

The department makes contributions to several State Government and externally managed superannuation
schemes. These contributions are treated as an expense when they occur. There is no liability for
payments to beneficiaries as they have been assumed by the respective superannuation schemes. The only
liability outstanding at balance date relates to any contributions due but not yet paid to the schemes.

Interest Bearing Liabilities
Borrowings are recognised when issued at the amount of the net proceeds received and carried at cost less
any repayments until the loan is settled.

Light Motor Vehicles - Loan Arrangements with SAFA

Arrangements for the ongoing acquisition of motor vehicles have existed with the SAFA since 2003.
Funding has been provided through a loan facility direct to Fleet SA. The vehicle purchases are financed on
a credit foncier basis of three year fixed periods from October 2005 with balances of loans maturing in
either two or three years. During the reporting period an amount of $53 211 862 was borrowed.

Employee Benefits

These benefits accrue for employees as a result of services provided up to the reporting date that remain
unpaid. Long-term employee benefits are measured at present value and short-term employee benefits are
measured at nominal amounts.

Salaries and Wages, Annual Leave and Sick Leave
Liability for salaries and wages are measured as the amount unpaid at the reporting date at remuneration
rates current at reporting date.

The annual leave liability is expected to be payable within 12 months and is measured at the undiscounted
amount expected to be paid. In the unusual event where salaries and wages and annual leave are payable
later than 12 months, the liability will be measured at present value.

No provision has been made for sick leave as all sick leave is non-vesting and the average sick leave taken
in future years by employees is estimated to be less than the annual entitlement for sick leave.

Long Service Leave

The liability for long service leave is recognised after an employee has completed six and a half years
(seven years) of service. An actuarial assessment of long service leave based on a significant sample of
employees throughout the South Australian public sector determined that the liability measured using the
short hand method was not materially different from the liability measured using the present value of
expected future payments. This calculation is consistent with the department's experience of employee
retention and leave taken.

The current/non-current classification of department’s long service leave liabilities has been calculated
based on historical usage patterns consistent with APF IV APS 5.15.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the department has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

When the department expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised
as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any
provision is presented in the Income Statement net of any reimbursement.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted for the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Workers Compensation

The department is responsible for workers compensation with an actuarial estimate of the outstanding
liability as at 30 June 2007 provided by a consulting actuary through the Public Sector Workforce Division of
the Department of the Premier and Cabinet.

Procurement of Testing Services - Removal of Underground Fuel Tanks and Site Remediation

A provision is in place for the procurement of testing services (relating to the costs associated with the
removal of underground fuel tanks previously owned by Mobil Australia including the remediation of sites).
The provision specifically includes the procurement of assessment, drilling and analytical services.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement. The department has assessed whether the fulfiiment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. The department has
entered into finance leases and operating leases.
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Finance Leases

Finance leases, which transfer to the department substantially all the risks and benefits/rewards incidental
to ownership of the leased assets, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased
asset or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Minimum lease payments are allocated between interest expense/borrowing costs and reduction of the
lease liability, to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Lease liabilities are classified as both current and non-current.

Where there is no reasonable assurance that the department will obtain ownership of the capitalised asset
at the end of the lease term, the asset is amortised over the shorter of the lease term and its useful life.

Operating Leases

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Income Statement on a straight line basis
over the lease term. The straight line basis is representative of the pattern of benefits derived from the
leased assets.

The aggregate benefit of lease incentives received by the department in respect of operating leases have
been recorded as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term, on a straight line basis.

Financial Risk Management

The department has significant non-interest bearing assets (cash on deposit and receivables) and liabilities
(payables) and interest bearing liabilities (borrowings from SAFA). The department’s exposure to market risk and
cash flow interest risk is minimal.

The department has no significant concentration of credit risk.

In relation to liquidity/funding risk, the continued existence of the department in its present form, and with its
present programs, is dependent on SA Government policy and on continuing appropriations by Parliament for the
department’s administration and programs.

Changes in Accounting Policies

Except for the amendments to AASB 101, which the department has early-adopted, the AASs and Interpretations
that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet effective, have not been adopted by the department
for the reporting period ending 30 June 2007. The department has assessed the impact of the new and amended
standards and interpretations and considers there will be no impact on the accounting policies or the financial
report of the department.

A change in accounting policy was adopted for these financial statements in relation to the recording of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets. From 1 July 2006 the capitalisation limit for property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets was increased from $5000 to $10 000. This increase in capitalisation amount is
within the threshold noted in APF III APS 2.15. Items capitalised in the past years at a cost below $10 000 have
been expensed in the current reporting period. The change in accounting policy resulted in a decrease in the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of $115 000 and $61 000 respectively.

Programs of the Department
In achieving its objectives, the department provides a range of services classified into the following Programs

Program 1: Accountability for Public Sector Resources

The department has the role of ensuring accountability for public sector resources through
providing policy, economic and financial advice to the Government and coordinating resource
allocations for government programs and priorities at the whole-of-government level.

Program 2: Financial Services Provision

The department has a role of providing a range of whole-of-government services including
liability management, collection of taxes and insurance and superannuation administration.

Program 3: Shared Services Reform
Design, development and implementation of shared services across government.

Program 4: State Procurement and Support Operations

The department has a role of providing a range of services to other government agencies
including contract and procurement management, fleet management and a range of corporate
transaction services.

Program 5: Gambling Policy

The department provides policy advice to the government on economic, social and regulatory
issues associated with gambling.
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6. Employee Benefit Expenses 2007 2006
$'000 $'000

Salaries and wages 45 211 31 820
TVSPs (refer below) - 183
Long service leave 2 080 1363
Annual leave 4 538 3036
Employment on-costs - Superannuation 6 137 4210
Employment on-costs - Other 3 275 2 249
Board fees 198 188
Other employee related expenses 1 859 934
Total Employee Benefit Expenses 63 298 43 983
TVSPs 2007 2006
Amount paid to these employees: $'000 $'000
TVSPs - 183
Annual leave and long service leave accrued over the period - 10

- 193

2007 2006

Number of Number of
Employees Employees

Number of employees who were paid TVSPs during the reporting period - 1
2007 2007
Remuneration of Employees SPSO DTF* 2006
The number of employees whose remuneration received or Number of Number of Number of
receivable falls within the following bands: Employees Employees Employees
$100 000 - $109 999 17 9 9
$110 000 - $119 999 5 4 4
$120 000 - $129 999 1 8 3
$130 000 - $139 999 - 10 16
$140 000 - $149 999 1 10 7
$150 000 - $159 999 2 5 1
$160 000 - $169 999 1 1 5
$170 000 - $179 999 - 3 1
$180 000 - $189 999 - 2 1
$200 000 - $209 999 - 1 2
$210 000 - $219 999 - 2 2
$220 000 - $229 999 1 2 -
$250 000 - $259 999 1 - -
$260 000 - $269 999 - - 1
$270 000 - $279 999 - 1 1
$320 000 - $329 999 - - 1
$340 000 - $349 999 - 1 -
Total Number of Employees 29 59 54

* Excluding SPSO employees.

The table includes all employees who received remuneration of $100 000 or more during the year. The State
Procurement and Support Operations (SPSO) values reflect six months for DAIS and six months for the
department. Remuneration of employees reflects all costs of employment including salaries and wages,
superannuation contributions, FBT and any other salary sacrifice benefits. The total remuneration received by
these employees for the year was $8 981 000 ($7 967 000).

7. Supplies and Services 2007 2006
Supplies and Services provided by Entities within the SA Government: $'000 $’000
Accommodation and telecommunication 6 008 4 273
Information technology expenses 5019 2782
Cost of goods 1724 -
Motor vehicle expenses 1614 -
Minor works, maintenance and equipment 1 207 247
Legal costs 846 721
Valuation fees 3 846 3 687
General administration and consumables 37 76
Other 2 323 2 209
Total Supplies and Services - SA Government Entities 22 624 13 995
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Supplies and Services (continued) 2007 2006
Supplies and Services provided by Entities external to the SA Government: $'000 $’000
Accommodation and telecommunication 279 103
Information technology expenses 6 946 2989
Cost of goods 6 662 -
Motor vehicle expenses 12 193 -
Minor works, maintenance and equipment 594 415
Legal costs 38 31
Consultants 1675 515
Contractors 3193 3 029
General administration and consumables 3408 2 361
Other 4524 1630
Total Supplies and Services - Non-SA Government Entities 39512 11 073

Total Supplies and Services 62 136 25 068

The total supplies and services amount disclosed includes GST amounts not recoverable from the ATO due to the
department not holding a valid tax invoice for payments relating to third party arrangements.

The number and dollar amount of consultancies paid/payable (included in supplies and services expense) that fell
within the following bands:

2007 2006 2007 2006
Number Number $'000 $'000
Below $10 000 16 15 78 51
Between $10 000 and $50 000 11 5 266 93
Above $50 000 5 3 1331 371
32 23 1 675 515
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 2007 2006
Depreciation: $'000 $'000
Buildings 7 -
Plant and equipment 319 -
Motor vehicles 19 314 -
Furniture 16 21
Information technology equipment 241 154
Office equipment 107 105
Total Depreciation 20 004 280
Amortisation:
Intangible assets 2222 2102
Building fitouts 519 146
Leased plant and equipment 13 -
Total Amortisation 2 754 2 248
Total Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 22 758 2528

Other Expenses
Other Expenses paid/payable to Entities external to the SA Government:

Property, plant and equipment write-offs - 6
Bad and doubtful debts (write-back) expenses 348 -
Impairment loss 5 166 -
Total Other Expenses - Non-SA Government Entities 5514 6
Total Other Expenses 5514 6
Auditors’ Remuneration
Audit fees paid/payable to the Auditor-General’s Department 462 374
Total Audit Fees 462 374
Other Services
No other services were provided by the Auditor-General’s Department.
Revenue from Fees and Charges
Fees and Charges received/receivable from Entities within the SA Government:
Agencies for the provision of corporate services 1997 1816
South Australian Government Captive Insurance Corporation - 1972
South Australian Government Financing Authority 7 958 5735
Community Emergency Services Fund 5926 6 100
Banking administration fees 14 457
Land tax certificates 475 431
Service provision 14 074 -
Fleet management 43 034 -
Sale of goods 6 325 -
Other recoveries 1177 1 683
Total Fees and Charges - SA Government Entities 80 979 18 194
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Revenue from Fees and Charges (continued)
Fees and Charges received/receivable from Entities external to the
SA Government:
South Australian Superannuation Board
Land tax certificates
Regulatory fees
Service provision
Fleet management
Sale of goods
Other recoveries
Total Fees and Charges - Non-SA Government Entities

Total Fees and Charges

Interest Revenues
Interest from entities within the SA Government

Total Interest Revenues

Net Gain from Disposal of Assets
Plant and Equipment:

Proceeds from disposal

Net book value of assets disposed

Total Net Gain from Disposal of Assets

Other Revenues
Other Revenues received/receivable from Entities within the SA Government:
Other reimbursements
Other revenue
Total Other Revenues - SA Government Entities

Other Revenues received/receivable from Entities external to SA Government:
Commissions
Banking recoveries
Other reimbursements
Other revenue
Total Other Revenues - Non-SA Government Entities

Total Other Revenues

Revenues from SA Government
Appropriations from Consolidated Account pursuant to the Appropriation Act

Total Revenues from SA Government

Income Tax Equivalent
Income tax equivalent payment - Fleet SA

Total Income Tax Equivalent

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Deposits with the Treasurer
Cash on hand

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Deposits with the Treasurer

2007 2006
$’000 $'000
13 127 10 149
216 214
186 197
483 -
387 -
1839 -
1072 365
17 309 10 925
98 289 29 119
68 756

68 756

29 020 -
(27 768) -
1252 -
4 3

- 1

4 4

133 141

59 52

192 191
384 384
388 388
60 818 39 949
60 818 39 949
162 -
162 -
31470 11 351
120 3

31 590 11 354

Includes funds held in the Accrual Appropriation Excess Funds Account. The balance of this fund is not available

for general use.

Interest Rate Risk

The Deposits with the Treasurer were non-interest bearing from 1 July 2006 and the department received
additional appropriation to supplement the interest revenue. Deposits with the Treasurer are bearing a floating
interest rate between 5.35 percent and 5.68 percent in 2005-06. Cash on hand is non-interest bearing. The

carrying amount of cash approximates net fair value.

Receivables
Current:
Receivables
Provision for doubtful debts
Accrued revenues
Prepayments
GST receivable
Total Current Receivables
Non-Current:
Prepayments
Total Non-Current Receivables

Total Receivables

1482

2007 2006
$'000 $'000
13 826 166
(72) -
1004 445
1491 914
495 192
16 744 1717
136 2
136 2

16 880 1719
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18. Receivables (continued) 2007 2006
SA Government/Non-SA Government Entities Receivables $'000 $'000
Receivables from SA Government Entities:

Receivables 12 199 43
Accrued revenues 549 377
Prepayments 454 20

Total Receivables from SA Government Entities 13 202 440

Receivables from Non-SA Government Entities:

Receivables 1 556 123
Accrued revenues 455 68
Prepayments 1173 896
GST receivable 494 192

Total Receivables from Non-SA Government Entities 3 678 1279

Total Receivables 16 880 1719

Provision for Doubtful Debts

The provision for doubtful debts (allowance for impairment loss) is recognised when there is objective evidence
that a receivable is impaired. An allowance for loss has been recognised in 'Other expenses' in the Income
Statement for specific debtors and debtors assessed on a collective basis for which such evidence exists.

The following table shows the movements in the provision for doubtful debts (impairment loss).

2007 2006
$'000 $'000
Carrying amount at 1 July - -
Increase in provision 72 -

Carrying Amount at 30 June 72 -

Interest Rate and Credit Risk

Receivables are raised for all goods and services provided for which payment has not been received. Receivables
are normally due within 30 days. Trade receivables, prepayments and accrued revenues are non-interest bearing.
Other than recognised in the provision for doubtful debts, it is not anticipated that counterparties will fail to
discharge their obligations. The carrying amount of receivables approximates net fair value due to being
receivable on demand. In addition, there is no concentration of credit risk.

Bad and Doubtful Debts
The department has recognised a bad and doubtful debt expense of $23 000 in the Income Statement.

19. Inventories 2007 2006
Current: $'000 $’000
Other than those held for distribution at no or nominal amount 2 400 -
Total Inventories 2 400 -

20. Non-Current Assets Classified as Held-for-Sale
Motor vehicles 3 099 -
Total Non-Current Assets Classified as Held-for-Sale 3 099 -

Non-current assets classified as held-for-sale comprise Fleet SA motor vehicles which are expected to be sold
within four weeks.

21. Property, Plant and Equipment
Current:
Motor vehicles:

Motor vehicles at cost 64 196 -
Accumulated depreciation (19 240) -
Impairment loss (3 605) -
Total Current Property, Plant and Equipment 41 351 -
Non-Current:
Land:
At valuation 45 -
Total Land 45 -
Buildings:
At valuation 290 -
Accumulated depreciation (26) -
Total Buildings 264 -
Building Fitouts:
At valuation 6 631 783
Accumulated amortisation (3 765) (178)
Total Building Fitouts 2 866 605
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21. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 2007 2006
Assets under Finance Lease: $'000 $'000

Plant and equipment at valuation 2525 -

Accumulated amortisation (2484) -

Total Assets under Finance Lease 41 -

Plant and Equipment:

Plant and equipment at cost 2937 -
Accumulated depreciation (1922) -
Total Plant and Equipment 1015 -
Motor Vehicles:
Motor vehicles at cost 189 151 -
Accumulated depreciation (22 902) -
Impairment loss (4 234) -
Total Motor Vehicles 162 015 -
Furniture:
Furniture at cost (deemed fair value) 168 168
Accumulated depreciation (99) (83)
Total Furniture 69 85
Information Technology Equipment:
Information technology equipment at cost (deemed fair value) 1372 1171
Accumulated depreciation (694) (461)
Total Information Technology Equipment 678 710
Office Equipment:
Office equipment at cost (deemed fair value) 421 455
Accumulated depreciation (291) (254)
Total Office Equipment 130 201
Total Non-Current Property, Plant and Equipment 167 123 1601
Total Property, Plant and Equipment 208 474 1 601

The capitalisation threshold was increased during 2006-07 to $10 000 which resulted in the derecognition of assets with a
carrying amount of $118 000 in the prior year.

Impairment
There were indications of impairment of motor vehicles at 30 June 2007. The value by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeded the recoverable amount has been recorded as an impairment loss in the Income Statement.

There were no indications of impairment for the remaining property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets at 30
June 2007.

Resources received Free of Charge
There were no resources received free of charge.

Reconciliation of Property, Plant and Equipment
The following table shows the movement of Property, Plant and Equipment during 2006-07:

Assets under

Building Finance Plant and

Land Buildings Fitouts Lease Equipment

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Carrying amount at 1 July - - 605 - -
Additions - - 759 - 184
Assets classified as held-for-sale - - - - -
Disposals - - (26) - -
Impairment loss - - - - -
Acquisition through transfer 45 271 2 047 54 1150
Depreciation expense - (7) (519) (13) (319)
Carrying Amount at 30 June 45 264 2 866 41 1015

Information

Motor Technology Office Total

Vehicles Furniture Equipment Equipment 2007

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Carrying amount at 1 July - 85 710 201 1 601
Additions 55 530 - 216 36 56 725
Assets classified as held-for-sale (3 099) - - - (3 099)
Disposals (23 763) - (5) - (23 794)
Impairment loss (5 166) - - - (5 166)
Acquisition through transfer 199 178 - - - 202 745
Depreciation expense (19 314) (16) (243) (107) (20 538)
Carrying Amount at 30 June 203 366 69 678 130 208 474
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24.

Intangible Assets

Internally developed computer software
Accumulated amortisation

Computer software

Accumulated amortisation

Total Intangible Assets

Reconciliation of Intangible Assets

The following table shows the movement of intangible assets during 2006-07:

Carrying amount at 1 July
Additions

Acquisition through transfer
Amortisation expense

Carrying Amount at 30 June

Treasury and Finance

2007 2006
$’000 $'000
10 694 9102
(7 436) (5 714)
5 998 5491
(3 069) (1982)
6 187 6 897
2007

$’000

6 897

278

1235

(2 223)

6 187

The internally developed computer software primarily relates to the department's RevenueSA databases and
Technical Architecture Specification database with a remaining useful life of three years for each asset and a

carrying amount of $1 130 000 and $773 000 respectively.

Payables
Current:
Creditors
Accrued expenses
Employee on-costs
Income tax equivalents
Total Current Payables

Non-Current:
Employee on-costs
Funds held in trust
Total Non-Current Payables

Total Payables

SA Government/Non-SA Government Entities Payables
Payables to SA Government Entities:
Creditors
Accrued expenses
Employment on-costs
Income tax equivalents
Total Payables to SA Government Entities

Payables to Non-SA Government entities:
Creditors
Accrued expenses
Employment on-costs
Total Payables to Non-SA Government Entities

Total Payables

Interest Rate and Credit Risk

2007 2006
$'000 $'000
10 099 68
5 825 1193
1812 609
56 -

17 792 1870
1508 771
50 -
1558 771
19 350 2 641
43 68
1742 1008
1 806 692
56 -

3 647 1768
10 105 -
4 083 185
1515 688
15 703 873
19 350 2 641

Creditors are raised for all amounts billed but unpaid. Trade creditors are normally settled within 30 days of the
invoice date provided the goods and services have been received. Employment on-costs are settled when the
respective employee benefit that they relate to is discharged. All payables are non-interest bearing. The carrying
amount of payables approximates net fair value due to the amounts being payable on demand. In addition, there

is no concentration of credit risk.

Borrowings
Current:
Finance leases
Total Current Borrowings

Non-Current:
Finance leases
Borrowings from SAFA
Total Non-Current Borrowings

Total Borrowings

2007
$'000
27

2006
$'000

27

19

203 877

203 896

203 923

Borrowings are recognised at cost in accordance with APF IV APS 2.1 and have no maturity date. The interest rate

is determined by the Treasurer. The rate was 6.65 percent in 2007.
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25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

Employee Benefits 2007 2006
Current: $'000 $'000
Accrued salaries and wages 1149 632
Annual leave 5 082 2 593
Long service leave 1077 597
Total Current Employee Benefits 7 308 3822
Non-Current:
Long service leave 16 242 8 069
Total Non-Current Employee Benefits 16 242 8 069
Total Employee Benefits 23 550 11 891

The total current and non-current employee benefit plus related on-costs for 2007 is $9 120 000 and $17 750 000
respectively.

Based on an actuarial assessment performed by the department, the benchmark for the measurement of the long
service leave liability has been revised from seven to six and a half years.

Provisions 2007 2006
Current: $'000 $'000
Provision for workers compensation 123 54
Procurement of testing services to SA Government entity 597 -
Total Current Provisions 720 54

Non-Current:

Provision for workers compensation 333 147
Total Non-Current Provisions 333 147
Total Provisions 1 053 201

Reconciliation of Provisions

Carrying amount at 1 July 201 171
Payments/other sacrifices of future economic benefits (281) (62)
Additional provisions recognised 1133 92

Carrying Amount at 30 June 1 053 201

A liability has been reported to reflect unsettled workers compensation claims. The workers compensation
provision is based on an actuarial assessment performed by the Public Sector Workforce Division of the
Department of the Premier and Cabinet. These claims are expected to be settled within the next financial year.

Other Liabilities 2007 2006
Current: $'000 $’000
Unearned revenue 776 -
Total Current Other Liabilities 776 -
Total Other Liabilities 776 -
Equity
Asset revaluation reserve 108 108
Retained earnings 18 749 6 730
Total Equity 18 857 6 838

The property, plant and equipment asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements on the
revaluation of non-current assets.

Net Revenue from Administrative Restructure

The Public Sector Management (Abolition of Administrative Unit and Public Service Restructure) Proclamation
2006, dated 28 September 2006, declared that the Contract and Procurement Services, Fleet SA, Support Services
and Corporate Services (other than Parliamentary Network Support Group, Injury Management Unit and Placement
Services) business units transferred from DAIS to the department, effective from 1 January 2007 for financial
reporting purposes. The new branch designation is SPSO.

On transfer of the SPSO business units, the department recognised the following assets and liabilities:

2007

$'000

Cash 12720
Receivables 18 396
Assets held for sale 3 837
Property, plant and equipment 202 745
Intangibles 1235
Other 4 252
Total Assets 243 185
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Net Revenue from Administrative Restructure (continued) 2007
$'000
Payables 14 297
Employee benefits 10 102
Provisions 312
Borrowings 207 111
Total Liabilities 231822
Net Assets 11 363
DAIS DTF
01.07.06 to 01.01.07 to
Total income and expenses attributable to SPSO for 2006-07 were: 31.12.06 30.06.07 Total
$'000 $'000 $'000
Appropriation 85 243 11 889 97 132
Revenue from fees and charges 68 061 66 683 134 744
Other income - 3216 3 216
Total Income 153 304 81 788 235 092
Employee benefit expenses 15717 15 838 31 555
Supplies and services 36 309 38 885 75 194
Depreciation and amortisation 19 505 20 153 39 658
Borrowing costs - 6 292 6 292
Other expenses 8 955 2 974 11 929
Total Expenses 80 486 84 142 164 628
Net Result 72 818 (2 354) 70 464

The former DAIS reported appropriation at a corporate level. DAIS corporate was transferred to the department
effective 1 January 2007. Appropriation received during 1 July to 31 December 2006 cannot be reasonably
allocated across all former DAIS business units. Therefore, all appropriation relating to the former DAIS received

during this period will be reported by the department.

Commitments
(a) Remuneration Commitments

Amounts disclosed include commitments arising from executive and other employment contracts. The

department does not offer remuneration contracts greater than five years.

Commitments for the payment of salaries and other remuneration under
employment contracts in existence at the reporting date but not recognised
as liabilities are payable as follows:

Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years

Total Remuneration Commitments

(b) Operating Lease Commitments
The Department as Lessee

2007 2006
$'000 $'000
9 240 6412
19 274 11 675
28 514 18 087

At the reporting date, the department has operating leases for office accommodation.

Office accommodation is leased from the Real Estate Management business unit of DTEI.

non-cancellable with terms ranging up to six years with some leases having right of renewal.

payable in arrears.

The leases are

Rental is

The department also had operating leases for motor vehicles from Fleet SA. The leases are non-cancellable
with terms ranging up to five years. There are no purchase options available to the department. Due to

the transfer of functions from DAIS, the department is now the lessor.

Commitments in relation to operating leases contracted for at the reporting
date but not recognised as liabilities are payable as follows:
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years
Later than five years

Total Non-Cancellable Operating Lease Commitments

The Department as Lessor
Leases receivable contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised
as assets:
Vehicle Hire:
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years

Total Non-Cancellable Operating Lease Receivables

1487

2007 2006
$'000 $'000
5148 3 046

9 476 7 852
758 -

15 382 10 898
50373 -
50129 -
100 502 -
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31.

32.

(c) Other Commitments

The department’s other commitments are primarily agreements for software licence and development. The
department also has commitments to provide advisory and planning services to Super SA members.

Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years

Total Other Commitments

(d) Finance Lease Commitments
The Department as Lessee
Plant and Equipment:
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years

Future finance charges and contingent rentals
Total Lease Liabilities

Present value of finance leases payable as follows:
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years

Total Non-Cancellable Finance Lease Commitments

Representing:
Current
Non-current

Contingent Assets and Liabilities

2007
$'000
1128

591

2006
$'000
1530
3030

1719

4 560

29
19

48
(2)

46

27
19

46

27
19

46

The department is not aware of any contingent assets or liabilities in relation to the department’s operations. In

addition, the department has made no guarantees.

Remuneration of Board and Committee Members

Members that were entitled to receive remuneration for membership during the 2006-07 financial year were:

South Australian Government Financing Advisory Board South Australian Superannuation Board

Mr J Wright (Presiding Member)* Mr H Bachmann
Mr B Brownjohn Mr K Cantley*
Mr L Foster Ms V Deegan*
Ms A Howe* Ms J McMahon
Mr C Long Ms R Sumner
Ms Y Sneddon Ms L York

Mrs J Tongs

South Australian Government Financing Authority
Audit Committee

Ms Y Sneddon

Mr L Foster ( appointed 31.8.06)

Mr P Mendo*

The number of members whose remuneration received or receivable falls within
the following bands:
$0
$1 - $9 999
$20 000 - $29 999
$30 000 - $39 999
Total Number of Members

2007 2006
Number of Number of
Members Members
5 3

1 2

7 5

1 2

14 12

Remuneration of members reflects all costs of performing board/committee member duties including sitting fees,

superannuation contributions, FBT and any other salary sacrifice arrangements.
or receivable by members was $211 000 ($184 000).

Amounts paid to a superannuation plan for board/committee members was $16 000 ($14 000).

The total remuneration received

Unless otherwise disclosed, transactions between members are on conditions no more favourable than those which
it is reasonable to expect the entity would have adopted if dealing with the related party at arm's length in the

same circumstances.

* In accordance with the Department of the Premier and Cabinet Circular 16, government employees did not

receive any remuneration for board/committee duties during the financial year.
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33. Cash Flow Reconciliation 2007 2006
(a) Reconciliation of Cash - Cash at 30 June as per: $'000 $’000

Cash Flow Statement 31 590 11 354

Balance Sheet 31 590 11 354

(b) Reconciliation of Net Cash provided by Operating Activities to Net
Cost of Providing Services

Net cash provided by operating activities 50 301 1634
Add: Revenues from SA Government (60 818) (39 949)
Add: Income tax equivalent 162 -
Add: Cash on restructure (12 720) -
Add: Non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation expense (22 758) (2 528)
Asset write-offs - (6)
Net assets on restructure impacting operating cash flows 2 331 (288)
Non-current assets accrual in payables (15) (32)
Gain on disposal of assets 1 252 -
Impairment loss (5 166) -
Changes in Assets/Liabilities:
Increase (Decrease) in receivables 15 027 (147)
Increase (Decrease) in inventories 2400 -
(Increase) Decrease in payables (16 709) 834
(Increase) Decrease in employee benefits (11 659) (810)
(Increase) Decrease in provisions (852) (30)
(Increase) Decrease in other liabilities (776) -
Net Cost of Providing Services (60 000) (41 322)
34. Events after Balance Date
There were no events occurring after balance date that had material financial implications on these financial
statements.
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Statement of Administered Income and Expenses
for the year ended 30 June 2007

INCOME:

Taxation
Commonwealth revenues
Dividends
Interest revenues
Revenues from SA Government
Grants and contributions
Revenues from fees and charges
Other revenues

Total Income

EXPENSES:
Payments to SA Government
Employee benefit expenses
Supplies and services
Interest expense
Grants, subsidies and transfers
Depreciation expense
Other expenses
Total Expenses
OPERATING SURPLUS
Net revenue from administrative restructure
NET RESULT AFTER RESTRUCTURE

Net Result after Restructure is attributable to SA Government as owner

Note
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43

40
44
45

46

47
48

59

2007 2006
$'000 $'000
2993 421 2682 398
3644548 3573578
309 581 435 968
132 137 140 003
1190411 1176 282
132 964 104 971
30903 22 133
254 048 383 345
8688013 8518678
7 295602 7159601
264 151 272 200
63 104 51 223
219 682 261 241
687 883 653 514
89 13

138 021 110 013
8 668 532 8507 805
19 481 10 873

- 5483

19 481 16 356

1490



Treasury and Finance

Statement of Administered Assets and Liabilities

as at 30 June 2007

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Other financial assets
Total Current Assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Other financial assets
Property, plant and equipment
Total Non-Current Assets
Total Assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables
Employee benefits
Provisions
Interest bearing liabilities
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables
Employee benefits
Provisions
Interest bearing liabilities
Other non-current liabilities
Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS

EQUITY:
Accumulated deficit
TOTAL EQUITY

Total Equity is attributable to the SA Government as owner

Commitments
Contingent assets and liabilities

Note
49
50
51

51
52

53
54
55
56
57

53
54
55
56
57

58
60

2007 2006
$'000 $'000
1070 465 897 805
18 373 13 467
856 1424
1089694 912696
294 1419

1 052 525
1346 1944
1091040 914 640
999 996 844 068
966 -

10 -

39 76

4 483 1835
1005494 845979
497 009 499 788
219 -

28 -

- 39

880 905

498 136 500 732
1503 630 1346 711
(412 590) (432 071)
(412 590) (432 071)
(412 590) (432 071)
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Statement of Administered Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2007

Balance at 30 June 2005
Error corrections
Restated Balance at 30 June 2005
Net result after restructure for 2005-06
Total recognised income and expense for 2005-06
Restated Balance at 30 June 2006
Net result after restructure for 2006-07
Total recognised income and expenses for 2006-07
Balance at 30 June 2007

All Changes in Equity are attributable to the SA Government as owner

Accumulated
Deficit

$'000

(448 723)
296

(448 427)

16 356
16 356

(432 071)

19 481
19 481

(412 590)
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Statement of Administered Cash Flows

for the year ended 30 June 2007

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
CASH INFLOWS:

Taxation received

Receipts from Commonwealth

Dividends

Interest received

Receipts from SA Government

Grants and contributions

Fees and charges

GST receipts on receivables

GST input tax credits

Other receipts

Cash generated from Operating Activities

CASH OUTFLOWS:

Payments to SA Government

Employee benefit payments

Supplies and services

Interest payments

Grants, subsidies and transfers

GST payments on purchases

GST remitted to Australian Taxation Office

Other payments

Cash used in Operating Activities

Net Cash provided by (used in) Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Cash used in Investing Activities
Net Cash used in Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
CASH INFLOWS:
Proceeds from other financial assets
Proceeds from restructure activities
Cash generated from Financing Activities
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Other financial assets granted
Repayment of interest bearing liabilities
Cash used in Financing Activities
Net Cash provided by Financing Activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS HELD

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JULY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 30 JUNE

Note

62(b)

62(a)

2007 2006
Inflows Inflows
(Outflows) (Outflows)
$'000 $'000
2993 421 2 682 397
3 644 548 3573578
309 581 435 968
132 059 139 971
1190411 1176 282
133 334 105 055
30 864 22 088

8 524 5 145

2 362 4 987

252 194 379 630
8 697 298 8 525101
(7 196 338) (7 330 820)
(263 763) (272 200)
(62 353) (51 257)
(177 256) (261 241)
(682 321) (653 390)
(2617) (8 035)
(4 773) (5 751)
(140 993) (117 605)
(8 530 414) (8 700 299)
166 884 (175 198)
(458) -
(458) -
(458) -
5144 3754
1177 -

6 321 3754
(87) (513)

- (108)

(87) (621)

6 234 3133

172 660 (172 065)
897 805 1 069 870

1 070 465 897 805
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Schedule of Administered Income and Expenses
for the year ended 30 June 2007

Admin Items Commonwealth

on behalf Mirror Taxes on Community ETSA Industry Local
of the Commonwealth Community Emergency  Sales/Lease Financial Govt
Consolidated Places Revenue Devel'mnt Services Proceeds Hospitals Assistance Disaster
Account Account Fund Fund Account Fund Account Fund
INCOME: $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Taxation 2921 274 - - 72 147 - - - -
Commonwealth revenues 3 624 887 19 661 - - - - - -
Dividends 309 581 - - - - - - -
Interest revenues 127 847 - - 135 - - 682 2 659
Revenues from SA Government 73 485 - - - - - - -
Grants and contributions - - 20 000 75 414 - - 18 550 -
Fees and charges 17 968 - - - - - 11 -
Other revenues 100 939 - - 333 2 550 143593 311 -
Total Income 7 175981 19 661 20 000 148 029 2 550 143593 19 554 2 659
EXPENSES:
Payments to SA Government 7 102 496 19 661 - - - 143 593 - -
Employee benefit expenses 257 - - - - - - -
Supplies and services - - - - - - - 40
Interest - - - - - - - -
Grants, subsidies and transfers 73 228 - 20 000 148 059 - - 6 692 4909
Depreciation - - - - - - - -
Other expenses - - - - - - (4 351) -
Total Expenses 7 175981 19 661 20 000 148 059 - 143 593 2 341 4 949
OPERATING SURPLUS
(DEFICIT) - - - (30) 2 550 - 17 213 (2 290)
Treasury & Treasurer’s
State Supply Support Finance Interest in the
State Board - Services to Admini- National Wine Treasury
Government Gaming Parliament- stered Centre Working Total
Auctions Machines arians Items Account Account  Other® 2007
INCOME: $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Taxation - - - - - - - 2993421
Commonwealth revenues - - - - - - - 3644 548
Dividends - - - - - - - 309 581
Interest revenues - 58 - - - - 756 132 137
Revenues from SA Government - - - 1116926 - - - 1190411
Grants and contributions - - 16 773 - - - 2227 132 964
Fees and charges 2169 9 492 1263 - - - - 30 903
Other revenues - - 47 - 25 6 250 - 254 048
Total Income 2 169 9 550 18083 1116926 25 6 250 2983 8688013
EXPENSES:
Payments to SA Government - - - 29 846 - - 6 7 295 602
Employee benefit expenses - - 11 829 252 065 - - - 264 151
Supplies and services 2169 9 550 4 250 47 063 32 - - 63 104
Interest - - - 219 682 - - - 219 682
Grants, subsidies and transfers - - - 433 029 - - 1 966 687 883
Depreciation - - 75 - 14 - - 89
Other expenses - - 881 135 241 - 6 250 - 138 021
Total Expenses 2 169 9 550 17035 1116926 46 6 250 1972 8 668 532
OPERATING SURPLUS
(DEFICIT) - - 1048 - (21) - 1011 19 481

(1) Includes Country Equalisation Scheme Account, Home Purchases Assistance Account and Local Government Concessions Senior Card

Holders.

1494



Treasury and Finance

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ADMINISTERED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The administered financial statements include the revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities which the department
administers on behalf of the SA Government but does not control.

These financial statements include a number of revenue and expense transactions on behalf of the SA Government for the
Consolidated Account. Such transactions include collection of revenues from taxations, revenues from the Commonwealth
Government, dividends and interest. The expense transactions include transfers to agencies for employee entitlements and
supplies and services, grants and subsidies to public sector agencies, the private sector, and the community and the
transfer of revenues to the Consolidated Account.

The administered financial statements also include the fixed property component of the Emergency Services Levy collected
by RevenueSA and transferred to the Community Emergency Services Fund and all the transactions for the Special Deposit
Accounts established under section 8 of the PFAA that are administered by the department listed below:

Community Development Fund

Commonwealth Mirror Taxes on Commonwealth Places Revenue Account
Country Equalisation Scheme Account

ETSA Sales/Lease Proceeds Account

Home Purchases Assistance Account

Hospitals Fund

Industry Financial Assistance Account

Local Government Concessions Senior Card Holders

Local Government Disaster Fund

TAB Sales Proceeds Account (closed 30 June 2006)

Treasurer's Interest in the National Wine Centre Account

Treasury Working Account

Treasury and Finance Administered Items Account (from 1 July 2006)
Support Services to Parliamentarians (from 1 July 2006)

State Supply Board - Gaming Machines Account (from 1 January 2007)
State Government Auctions Account (from 1 January 2007)

The transactions of the Treasury and Finance Administered Items Account and the Support Services to Parliamentarians
was previously included in the Consolidated Account.

35. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The department's significant accounting policies are contained in Note 2 'Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies'. The policies outlined in Note 2 apply to both the department and administered financial statements.

The following policies are only applicable to the Administered financial statements.

35.1 Administrative Restructure
The Public Sector Management (Abolition of Administrative Unit and Public Service Restructure)
Proclamation 2006 (dated 28 September 2006) declared that:

. the State Supply Board - Gaming Machines Account was transferred from DAIS to the department,
effective from 1 January 2007 (refer to Note 59);
. State Government Auctions was transferred from DAIS to the department, effective from 1 January
2007 (refer to Note 59).
36. Taxation 2007 2006
Taxation received/receivable from Entities within the SA Government: $'000 $'000
Stamp duties 3781 3 806
Payroll tax 193 299 176 576
Land tax 156 317 120 932
Emergency Services Levy 1 859 1814
Local government rate equivalents 1633 852
Income tax equivalents 180 906 157 252
Contributions from Lotteries Commission 78 882 76 454
Total Taxation - SA Government Entities 616 677 537 686
Taxation received/receivable from Entities external to the SA Government:

Stamp duties 1 248 597 1120214
Commonwealth Places Mirror - Stamp duties 662 652
Payroll tax 840 939 783 105
Commonwealth Places Mirror - Payroll tax 18 095 16 789
Land tax 175 907 130 774
Commonwealth Places Mirror - Land tax 904 754
Debits tax (2) 5 552
Commonwealth Places Mirror - Debits tax - 38
Emergency Services levy 70 288 66 627
Local government rate equivalents 189 -
Save the River Murray levy 21113 20 143
Hindmarsh Island Bridge levy 52 64
Total Taxation - Non-SA Government Entities 2 376 744 2144 712
Total Taxation 2993 421 2 682 398
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37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

Commonwealth Revenues
Commonwealth General Purpose Grants:
GST revenue grants
Competition grants
Commonwealth Places Mirror taxes
Total Commonwealth General Purpose Grants

Commonwealth Specific Purpose Grants:
Concessions to pensioners and others
Debt redemption assistance
Total Commonwealth Specific Purpose Grants

Total Commonwealth Revenues

Dividends

Administrative and Information Services

Forestry SA

Land Management Corporation

Public Trustee Office

SA Water Corporation

South Australian Asset Management Corporation
South Australian Government Employee Residential Property
South Australian Government Financing Authority
TransAdelaide

Transport SA

Total Dividends

Interest Revenues
Interest from entities within the SA Government
Other

Total Interest Revenues

Revenues from/Payments to SA Government
Revenues from SA Government:

Appropriations from Consolidated Account pursuant to the Appropriation Act

Appropriations under other Acts
Total Revenues from SA Government

Payments to SA Government:

Transfer of revenue received on behalf of Consolidated Account

Payment to SAFA for retirement of state debt
Other payments to the Consolidated Account

Total Payments to SA Government

Grants and Contributions
SA Government entities
Non-SA Government entities

Total Grants and Contributions

Revenues from Fees and Charges

Fees and Charges received/receivable from Entities within the SA Government:

Guarantee fees
Support services to Parliamentarians
Total Fees and Charges - SA Government Entities

Fees and Charges received/receivable from Entities external to the SA Government:

State Government auctions

State Supply Board - Gaming machines
Support services to Parliamentarians
Other

Total Fees and Charges - Non-SA Government Entities

Total Fees and Charges
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2007 2006
$'000 $'000

3 604 924 3454 608
- 51 349

19 661 18 233

3 624 585 3524 190
19 963 19 538

- 29 850

19 963 49 388

3 644 548 3573578
21 254 17 670
34 903 34 665
36 439 35 686
2100 1195
208 059 6 000

- 217 455

1156 -

- 87 553

5 296 34 757
374 987

309 581 435 968
126 295 133 776
5842 6 227
132 137 140 003
1116 926 1107 341
73 485 68 941
1190411 1176 282
7 132 342 6 999 046
- 909

163 260 159 646
7 295 602 7 159 601
128 371 104 949
4 593 22
132 964 104 971
17 979 19 860
1144 1829
19123 21 689
2143 -

9 492 -
119 132

26 312

11 780 444
30903 22 133
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43. Other Revenues 2007 2006
Other Revenues received/receivable from Entities within the SA Government: $'000 $'000
Contributions towards public hospital costs 143 593 141 401
Repayment of advances 11 888 46 443
Return of cash to Consolidated Account - Cash Alignment Policy 19 982 41 912
Return of capital 19 695 80 596
Return of deposit account balances 1622 14 004
Essential Services Commission of SA 5769 5 049
Support services to Parliamentarians 2 -
Light motor vehicle fleet - Rental payment recoveries - 341
Other 8 252 3451
Total Other Revenues - SA Government Entities 210 803 333 197
Other Revenues received/receivable from Entities external to the SA Government:
Repayment of advances 3 896 -
Return of deposit account balances 31955 34 000
Proceeds from sale of residual Commonwealth Bank of Australia lease vehicles - 11 108
Support services to Parliamentarians 45 29
Discounted cash flow valuations for financial assistance loans 311 427
Other 7 038 4 584
Total Other Revenues - Non-SA Government Entities 43 245 50 148
Total Other Revenues 254 048 383 345
44. Employee Benefit Expenses
Superannuation contributions to various schemes 252 065 259 959
Salaries and wages 9 221 8 882
Long service leave 268 683
Annual leave 690 531
Employment on-costs - Superannuation 927 874
Employment on-costs - Other 614 610
Minister’s salary, electorate and expense allowance 257 241
Other employee related expenses 109 420
Total Employee Benefit Expenses 264 151 272 200
Remuneration of Employees 2007 2006
The number of employees whose remuneration received or receivable falls Number of Number of
within the following bands: Employees Employees
$110 000 - $119 999 2 -
$120 000 - $129 999 1 1
Total Number of Employees 3 1
The table includes all employees who received remuneration of $100 000 or more during the year. Remuneration
of employees reflects all costs of employment including salaries and wages, superannuation contributions, FBT and
any other salary sacrifice benefits. The total remuneration received by these employees for the year was
$353 000 ($139 000).
45. Supplies and Services 2007 2006
Supplies and Services provided by Entities within the SA Government: $'000 $’000
Support services to Parliamentarians 2553 2 808
Gaming machines 130 -
State Government auctions 2152 -
Unclaimed monies 119 7
General administration 87 525
Total Supplies and Services - SA Government Entities 5 041 3 340
Supplies and Services provided by Entities external to the SA Government:
State’s share of GST administration 46 765 45 814
Support services to Parliamentarians 1 697 1939
Gaming machines 9 420 -
State Government auctions 17 -
Unclaimed monies 152 107
Consultants - 23
General administration 12 -
Total Supplies and Services - Non-SA Government Entities 58 063 47 883
Total Supplies and Services 63 104 51 223
The number and dollar amount of consultancies 2007 2006 2007 2006
paid/payable that fell within the following bands: Number Number $'000 $'000
Below $10 000 - 2 - 5
Between $10 000 and $50 000 - 1 - 18
- 3 - 23
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46. Grants, Subsidies and Transfers 2007 2006
Grants, Subsidies and Transfers paid to Entities within the SA Government: $'000 $'000
Recurrent grants 568 687 524 444
Total Grants, Subsidies and Transfers - SA Government Entities 568 687 524 444
Grants, Subsidies and Transfers paid to Entities external to the SA Government:
Recurrent grants 119 196 129 070
Total Grants, Subsidies and Transfers - Non-SA Government Entities 119 196 129 070
Total Grants, Subsidies and Transfers 687 883 653 514
47. Depreciation Expense
Buildings 14 13
Building fitouts 75 -
Total Depreciation Expense 89 13
48. Other Expenses
Other Expenses paid/payable to Entities within SA Government:
Repayment of borrowings 3 629 18 026
SAICORP Fund 2 - Treasurer’s indemnity payment 67 358 -
Other 2 153 485
Total Other Expenses - SA Government Entities 73 140 18 511
Other Expenses paid/payable to Entities external to the SA Government:
Refunds and remissions 33674 38 243
Payments to the South Australian Superannuation Fund 30 000 34 000
Termination of State Vehicle Fleet Commonwealth Bank of Australia lease - 16 875
Bad debts 3 848 1 049
Doubtful debts (2 404) (2 208)
Discounted cash flow valuations for financial assistance loans (5 795) 1139
Other 5 558 2404
Total Other Expenses - Non-SA Government Entities 64 881 91 502
Total Other Expenses 138 021 110 013
49, Cash and Cash Equivalents
Deposits with the Treasurer 1 026 865 855 705
Other 43 600 42 100
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 1 070 465 897 805
Interest Rate Risk
Deposits with the Treasurer earn the average overnight cash deposit rate and is calculated on the average daily
balances. The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents represents fair value.
50. Receivables
Current:
Receivables 20 160 6 556
Provision for doubtful debts (1 902) (6 287)
Accrued revenues 59 9 556
GST receivables 56 3642
Total Receivables 18 373 13 467
SA Government/Non-SA Government Entities Receivables
Receivables from SA Government Entities:
Receivables 17 018 65
Accrued revenues 23 9212
Total Receivables from SA Government Entities 17 041 9 277
Receivables from Non-SA Government Entities:
Receivables 1 240 204
Accrued revenues 36 344
GST receivables 56 3642
Total Receivables from Non-SA Government Entities 1332 4 190
Total Receivables 18 373 13 467

Interest Rate and Credit Risk

Receivables are raised for all goods and services provided for which payment has not been received. Receivables
are normally due within 30 days. Trade receivables and accrued revenues are non-interest bearing. Other than
recognised in the provision for doubtful debts, it is not anticipated that counterparties will fail to discharge their
obligations. The carrying amount of receivables approximates net fair value due to being receivable on demand.
In addition, there is no concentration of credit risk.
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51. Other Financial Assets 2007 2006
Current: $'000 $'000
Investments with Adelaide Bank 39 76

Loans for financial assistance 817 3 006

Provision for doubtful debts - (1 658)

Total Current Other Financial Assets 856 1424

Non-Current:

Investments with Adelaide Bank - 39
Loans for financial assistance 4 458 2172
Provision for doubtful debts (4 164) (792)
Total Non-Current Other Financial Assets 294 1419
Total Other Financial Assets 1150 2 843
SA Government/Non-SA Government Entities Other Financial Assets
Other Financial Assets with SA Government Entities:
Loans for financial assistance 155 152
Total Other Financial Assets with SA Government Entities 155 152
Other Financial Assets with Non-SA Government Entities:
Investment with Adelaide Bank 39 115
Loans for financial assistance 5120 5026
Provision for doubtful debts (4 164) (2 450)
Total Other Financial Assets with Non-SA Government Entities 995 2 691
Total Other Financial Assets 1150 2 843

Interest Rate Risk

The investment with Adelaide Bank earned a fixed interest rate of 5.50 percent. The loans for financial assistance
comprise interest free and interest bearing loans. The interest bearing loans earned a weighted average interest
rate of 10.23 percent.

52. Property, Plant and Equipment 2007 2006
Buildings: $'000 $'000
Buildings at fair value 539 539
Accumulated depreciation (41) (27)
Total Buildings 498 512

Building Fitouts:
Building fitouts at cost 631 -
Accumulated depreciation (90) -
Total Building Fitouts 541 -

Land:

Land at fair value 13 13
Total Land 13 13
Total Property, Plant and Equipment 1 052 525

Valuation of Non-Current Assets

An internal assessment of the valuation of the land and buildings for the National Wine Centre was performed as at
30 June 2007. The assets will continue to be measured using the income approach in accordance with APF III.
The existing internal discount rate is still appropriate for the measurement of this asset. As a consequence, there
has been no change to the value of the assets.

Reconciliation of Property, Plant and Equipment 2007
The following table shows the movement of property, Buildings Fitouts Land Total
plant and equipment during 2006-07: $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Carrying amount at 1 July 512 - 13 525
Additions - 481 - 481
Depreciation expense (14) (75) - (89)
Other movements - 135 - 135
Carrying Amount at 30 June 498 541 13 1 052

53. Payables 2007 2006
Current: $'000 $'000
Creditors - Electricity entities lease proceeds 2 800 2 550
Creditors - Revenue on behalf of the Consolidated Account 911 433 832 057
Creditors - Other 84 902 -
Accrued expenses 713 9432
Employment on-costs 148 -
GST payable - 29
Total Current Payables 999 996 844 068
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53.

54.

55.

Payables (continued) 2007 2006
Non-Current: $'000 $'000
Creditors - Electricity entities lease proceeds 496 988 499 788
Employment on-costs 21 -
Total Non-Current Payables 497 009 499 788

Total Payables 1 497 005 1 343 856

SA Government/Non-SA Government Entities Payables
Payables to SA Government Entities:

Creditors - Electricity entities lease proceeds 499 788 502 338
Creditors - Revenue on behalf of the Consolidated Account 911 433 832 057
Creditors - Other 80 419 -
Accrued expenses 272 9161
Employment on-costs 68 -

Total Payables to SA Government Entities 1 491 980 1 343 556

Payables to Non-SA Government Entities:

Creditors - Other 4 483 -
Accrued expenses 441 271
Employment on-costs 101 -
GST payable - 29

Total Payables to Non-SA Government Entities 5 025 300

Total Payables 1 497 005 1 343 856

Interest Rate and Credit Risk

Creditors are raised for all amounts billed but unpaid. Creditors - electricity entities lease proceeds are normally
settled annually in June. Creditors - revenue on behalf of the Consolidated Account are normally settled by the
15th day of each month. Other creditors are normally settled within 30 days of the invoice date provided the
goods and services have been received. All payables are non-interest bearing. The carrying amount of payables
approximates net fair value due to the amounts being payable on demand. In addition, there is no concentration
of credit risk.

Employee Benefits 2007 2006
Current: $'000 $'000
Accrued salaries and wages 178 -
Annual leave 495 -
Long service leave 293 -
Total Current Employee Benefits 966 -
Non-Current:
Long service leave 219 -
Total Non-Current Employee Benefits 219 -
Total Employee Benefits 1185 -

The total current and non-current employee benefit plus related on-costs for 2007 is $1 114 000 and $240 000
respectively.

Based on an actuarial assessment performed by the department, the benchmark for the measurement of the long
service leave liability has been revised from seven to six and a half years.

Provisions 2007 2006
Current: $'000 $'000
Provision for workers compensation 10 -
Total Current Provisions 10 -

Non-Current:

Provision for workers compensation 28 -
Total Non-Current Provisions 28 -
Total Provisions 38 -

Reconciliation of Provisions
Carrying amount at 1 July -
Additional provisions recognised 63 -

Payments/other sacrifices of future economic benefits (25) -
Carrying Amount at 30 June 38 -

A liability has been reported to reflect unsettled workers compensation claims. The workers compensation
provision is based on an actuarial assessment performed by the Public Sector Workforce Division of the
Department of the Premier and Cabinet. These claims are expected to be settled within the next financial year.
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57.

58.

59.

Interest Bearing Liabilities - SA Government Entities
Current:
Consolidated Account
Total Current Interest Bearing Liabilities

Non-Current:
Consolidated Account
Total Non-Current Interest Bearing Liabilities

Total Interest Bearing Liabilities

Interest Rate Risk

Treasury and Finance

2007 2006
$'000 $'000
39 76
39 76

- 39

- 39

39 115

The interest bearing liabilities represents monies owed to the Consolidated Account and corresponds with the
investment with Adelaide Bank shown in Note 51. The liabilities earned a fixed interest rate of 5.50 percent.

Other Liabilities
Current:
Unearned revenue
Total Current Other Liabilities

Non-Current:
Unearned revenue
Total Non-Current Other Liabilities

Total Other Liabilities

Commitments for Expenditure
(a) Remuneration Commitments

2007 2006
$'000 $’000
4 483 1835
4 483 1835

880 905

880 905
5 363 2 740

Amounts disclosed include commitments arising from employment contracts for the Support Services to
Parliamentarians. No remuneration contracts greater than five years are offered.

Commitments for the payment of salaries and other remuneration under

employment fixed-term contracts in existence at the reporting date but not

recognised as liabilities are payable as follows:
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years

Total Remuneration Commitments

(b) Operating Lease Commitments

1348
1774

3122

At the reporting date, the Support Services for Parliamentarians had operating leases for the lease of office

accommodation.

Office accommodation is leased from the Real Estate Management business unit of DTEI.

non-cancellable with terms ranging up to five years.

Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases at the reporting date
not recognised as liabilities in the financial report are payable as follows:
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years

Total Non-Cancellable Operating Lease Commitments

Net Revenue from Administrative Restructure

The leases are

2007 2006
$'000 $'000
1274 -
2528 -
3 802 -

As a result of the transfer of functions from DAIS effective 1 January 2007, the State Supply Board - Gaming

Machines Account and State Government Auctions transferred to the department.

State Supply State

Board - Government
The department recognised the following assets Gaming Machines Auctions Total
and liabilities: $'000 $'000 $'000
Cash 991 186 1177
Total Assets 991 186 1177
Payables 33 186 219
Other 958 - 958
Total Liabilities 991 186 1177

Net Assets -
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59.

60.

61.

62.

Net Revenue from Administrative Restructure (continued) DAIS DTF

01.07.06 to 01.01.07 to
Total income and expenses attributable to the State Supply Board - 31.12.06 30.06.07 Total
Gaming Machines for 2006-07 were: $'000 $'000 $'000
Fees and charges 10 809 9 492 20 301
Interest 51 58 109
Total Income 10 860 9 550 20410
Supplies and services 10 860 9 550 20410
Total Expenses 10 860 9 550 20410
Net Result - - -

DAIS DTF

01.07.06 to 01.01.07 to
Total income and expenses attributable to State Government Auctions 31.12.06 30.06.07 Total
for 2006-07 were: $'000 $'000 $'000
Fees and charges 3461 2 169 5630
Total Income 3461 2 169 5630
Supplies and services 3461 2 169 5630
Total Expenses 3461 2169 5630
Net Result - - -

Contingent Assets and Liabilities
The following contingent liabilities and assets exist for the Administered Items:

Lease

Under an agreement between National Power South Australia Investments Ltd and the Treasurer for Pelican
Point, National Power is to undertake landscaping works and development of public amenities on certain
leased land. The cost of these works is to be refunded to the lessee at the expiration of the initial five year
term. The maximum exposure value of the contingent obligation at 30 June 2007 has been estimated at
$300 000. As the Electricity Reform and Sales Operating Account has been closed, this amount is to be
paid from the Consolidated Account.

Residual responsibilities for structural integrity of the National Wine Centre's buildings outside agreed
maintenance regimes as required by the Memorandum of Lease - National Wine Centre. The lease expires
in September 2043. The estimated maximum exposure of this liability is undefined.

Under an agreement, dated 9 May 1996, with the National Electricity Administrator (NECA), the Treasurer
may be required to contribute to the winding up of NECA. The maximum exposure of the contingent
liability at 30 June 2007 is capped at $350 000.

Under an agreement, dated 9 May 1996, with the National Electricity Market Management Company
(NEMMCO), the Treasurer may be required to contribute to the winding up of NEMMCO. The maximum
exposure of the contingent liability at 30 June 2007 is capped at $1 500 000.

Under an agreement between Osborne Cogeneration Pty Ltd and the Treasurer for the Osborne Generation
Plant, the Treasurer has guaranteed the performance of certain obligations as to the Osborne
arrangements. In addition, Babcock and Brown Power Limited has provided an indemnity to the Treasurer.
The maximum exposure of the guarantee is estimated at $150 million - $200 million.

Under an agreement with the South Australian Netball Association, the Treasurer has guaranteed the
repayment of a loan, which the South Australian Netball Association has with an external banking institution
with a total exposure value of $1 800 000.

The Treasurer entered into an agreement with the University of Adelaide to lease land and buildings previously
owned by the National Wine Centre over a 40 year period, for an upfront consideration of $1 000 000. The
effective commencement date for the lease was 9 September 2003. The lease has been treated as an operating
lease in accordance with AASB 117. The consideration of $1 000 000 has been recorded as unearned revenue and
is being apportioned over the life of the lease.

Cash Flow Reconciliation 2007 2006
(a) Reconciliation of Cash - Cash at 30 June as per: $'000 $’000
Cash Flow Statement 1 070 465 897 805
Balance Sheet 1 070 465 897 805
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(b) Reconciliation of Net Cash provided by (used in) Operating 2007 2006
Activities to Operating Surplus $'000 $'000
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 166 884 (175 198)
Add: Non-cash items:
Depreciation (89) (13)
Bad debts (3 848) (1 049)
Doubtful debts 2404 2208
Discounted cash flow adjustment 6 106 (712)
Loans converted to grants (937) (153)
Grants converted to loans 75 -
Non-current assets accrual in payables 23 -
Assets recognised for the first time 135 -
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Increase (Decrease) in receivables 4 545 4 625
Increase (Decrease) in other assets (76) (108)
(Increase) Decrease in payables (152 929) 181 184
(Increase) Decrease in employee benefits (1 185) -
(Increase) Decrease in provisions (38) -
(Increase) Decrease in interest bearing liabilities 76 108
(Increase) Decrease in other liabilities (1 665) (19)
Operating Surplus 19 481 10 873
63. Events after Balance Date
There were no events occurring after balance date that have material financial implications on these financial
statements.
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UNIVERSITY OF ADELAIDE

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY AND STRUCTURE

Establishment

The University of Adelaide (the University) is established by the University of Adelaide Act 1971.
Functions

The University has the objective of advancing learning and knowledge which it achieves through the provision
of university education and the conduct of research activities.

Structure

The structure of the University is illustrated in the following organisation chart.

Council

Vice-Chancellor and
President

Deputy Deputy ol .
Vice-Chancellor and Vice-Chancellor and \(/ISC:r\fi)t;:ZIiizt
Vice-President Vice-President Resources)
(Academic) (Research)

As at 31 December 2006 the University had a number of controlled entities as detailed in Notes 2 and 31 to
the Financial Statements.

Audit, Compliance and Risk Committee

The University has an Audit, Compliance and Risk Committee which comprises two members of Council and
up to three members who are not Council members of which one must be a University staff member. The
Committee has an Audit Committee Charter which requires it to assist Council in exercising due care,
diligence and skill in discharging its oversight and monitoring responsibilities. Representatives of the
Auditor-General attended meetings of the Committee as observers throughout the year.

AUDIT MANDATE AND COVERAGE

Audit Authority

Audit of the Financial Report

Regulations under the PFAA provide that the University is a public authority. Consequently,
subsection 31(1)(b) of the PFAA provides for the Auditor-General to audit the accounts of the University for
each financial year.

Assessment of Controls

Subsection 36(1)(a)(iii) of the PFAA provides for the Auditor-General to assess the controls exercised by the
University in relation to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of
property and the incurring of liabilities.

Scope of Audit

The audit program covered major financial systems and was directed primarily to obtaining sufficient evidence
to enable an opinion to be formed with respect to the financial statements and internal controls.
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During 2006, specific areas of audit attention included:

procurement and accounts payable

payroll

revenue including government financial assistance, student fees, research income and other income
fixed assets

financial assets

liabilities, including provisions

general ledger

corporate governance arrangements, including controlled entities
internal audit activities

student accommodation arrangements

sale of Repromed Pty Ltd.

An understanding of internal audit activities has been obtained in order to identify and assess the risks of
material misstatement of the financial report and to design and perform audit procedures.

AUDIT FINDINGS AND COMMENTS
Auditor’s Report on the Financial Report

In my opinion, the financial report presents fairly in accordance with the Treasurer's Instructions promulgated
under the provisions of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987, the Higher Education Funding Act 1988,
applicable Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia, the
financial position of the University of Adelaide and the consolidated entity as at 31 December 2006, the
results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended.

Assessment of Controls

In my opinion, the controls exercised by the University of Adelaide in relation to the receipt, expenditure and
investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the incurring of liabilities, except for the
matters raised in relation to Documenting Policies and Procedures, Corporate Governance, Procurement and
Accounts Payable and Payroll as outlined under ‘Communication of Audit Matters’, are sufficient to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial transactions of the University of Adelaide have been conducted
properly and in accordance with law.

Communication of Audit Matters

Matters arising during the course of the audit were detailed in a management letter to the Vice Chancellor.
Responses to the management letter issues were generally considered to be satisfactory. Major issues raised
with the University and the related responses are considered herein.

Documenting Policies and Procedures

Previous audits of the University have identified the need to develop, approve and distribute documented
policies and procedures which formalise and communicate how financial transactions will be processed and
how control procedures will operate. Documentation of policies and procedures is considered to be
particularly important for the University because it is a large organisation with significant decentralising of
activities.

While the University has dedicated resources and made progress in this area, the University is yet to finalise,
approve and promulgate policies and procedures to staff for areas including Procurement and Accounts
Payable and Payroll.

The University has advised that it expects to commence implementing policies and procedures during 2007.
Corporate Governance

The University has previously identified and advised Audit of proposed action to address gaps in University
risk management practices. The audit for 2006 concluded that while the proposed action was appropriate the
timeframe for implementing improved risk management arrangements was too long and achieving significant
progress within a reasonable timeframe required commitment of additional resources. The University has
committed additional staff to support the implementation of improved risk management practices.

Procurement and Accounts Payable

In 2005 Audit noted the University had not implemented formal policies and procedures for procurement
practices, including the use of purchase orders, by Faculties and Divisions. The audit for 2006 followed up
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these and other matters raised in 2005 and noted the University had commenced initiatives which address
many of these matters. In a number of areas the proposed action is not planned to be fully implemented
until 2007. The outcome of these initiatives will be followed up as part of the 2007 audit.

Payroll

Last year’s audit identified a number of areas in which controls were considered to be ineffective or were not
consistently applied across the University.

Follow up of matters raised by Audit in 2005 established:

. the University has commenced work on documenting policies and procedures which describe the
nature and extent of checking of management reports across the University;

. the management reports on payroll costs are still prepared from general ledger data and not the
payroll system;

. review of arrangements for recording long-term casual staff on the payroll system will not occur until
the University decides whether it will upgrade or replace its human resource system.
INTERPRETATION AND ANALYSIS OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT (CONSOLIDATED)

The data in relation to the interpretation and analysis of the Income Statement activity has been sourced
from Note 35 as this has been prepared in accordance with the DEST reporting guidelines and provides
consistency and comparability with the other Universities.

Highlights of the Financial Report (Consolidated)

2006 2005 Percentage

$'million $'million Change
REVENUE FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Commonwealth Government financial assistance 276 261 6
HECS - Student contributions 10 10 -
Fees and charges 87 79 10
Other 143 115 24
Total Revenue from Continuing Operations 516 465 11
EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Employment benefits 259 231 12
Other expenses 218 196 11
Total Expenses from Continuing Operations 477 427 12
Operating Result from Continuing Operations 39 38 2
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIONS 56 50 12
ASSETS
Current assets 154 130 18
Non-current assets 781 756 3
Total Assets 935 886 6
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 71 61 16
Non-current liabilities 77 76 1
Total Liabilities 148 137 8
EQUITY 787 749 5

Income Statement (Consolidated)
Revenue from Continuing Operations

Revenue from continuing operations increased by $50.6 million to $516 million mainly as a result of increases
in:

. Commonwealth Government financial assistance of $17.8 million;
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. State Government assistance of $10.2 million of which $9.5 million relates to funding received for the
establishment of the Wine Innovation Cluster project;

. Fees and Charges of $8.6 million. This increase is mainly attributable to an increase in student fee
income of $11 million of which $9.5 million relates to international fee paying students;

. Investment Income of $7.5 million of which $6 million relates to sale of shares.

A structural analysis of operating revenues for the University in the four years to 2006 is presented in the
following chart.

600
$9.8m
$7'5m [E—— $87.4m
400 | $6.0m $78.8m
$67.6m
é $57.0m
E $275.7m
A
261.0m
$232.3m $
200 k $227.9m
$105.4m $115.1m $115.1m $142.4m
0 s . ,
2003 2004 2005 2006

B HECS - student contributions

O Fees and charges

O Commonwealth Government financial assistance
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The growth in operating revenues from fees and charges results mainly from international fee paying
students. The increase in revenue from other sources between 2005 and 2006 is due to increased funding
from State and Local Government which increased by $10.5 million and Investment Income which increased
by $7.5 million.

The following chart highlights the general upward trend in the revenue received from international fee paying
students and the increase in international fee paying students.
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Expenses from Continuing Operations

Expenditure from continuing operations increased by $49.9 million to $477 million and is attributed mainly to
an increase in:

. Employee Benefits of $27.2 million of which $10.3 million relates to the impact of the Enterprise
Bargaining wage increase and $5 million relates to the first time impact of the University complying
with the new Federal WorkChoices legislation;

. Other Expenses of $22.6 million. The increase is driven by revenue growth and includes
administration and communication expenditure and other teaching and research materials.

The following chart shows the growth in employee expenses in relation to total other expenses over the four
years to 2006.
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Operating Result from Continuing Operations

The consolidated operating result for the year was a surplus of $38.9 million ($37.3 million), an increase of
$1.6 million.

The following chart shows the operating revenues, operating expenses and operating result for the four years
to 2006.
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The significant increase in the University’s operating surplus for 2005 was principally due to changes in the
timing of payments to the University by the Commonwealth of operating grants.

Balance Sheet (Consolidated)

The consolidated net assets of the University at 31 December 2006 totalled $787 million ($748.9 million), an
increase of $38.1 million.

Current Assets

The increase in the value of the University’s current assets of $23.9 million is mainly attributable to an
increase of $34.2 million in cash and cash equivalents held at 31 December 2006 offset by a reduction of
$6.9 million in receivables.

Non-Current Assets

The value of the University’s non-current assets increased by $25.4 million to $780.9 million. The increase is
mainly attributable to an increase in:

. other financial assets of $12.9 million;
. property, plant and equipment of $11 million.

Current Liabilities

The value of the University’s current liabilities increased by $10.3 million to $71.5 million. The increase is
due mainly to the effect of the recognition of annual leave for academics for the first time. Refer Note 19.

Cash Flow Statement (Consolidated)

The following table summarises the net cash flows for the four years to 2006.

2006 2005 2004 2003
$'million $'million $'million $'million
Net Cash Flows

Operations 55.8 49.6 48.3 46.8
Investing (21.3) (37.7) (27.2) (17.0)
Financing (0.1) (.1) (0.2) (0.2)

Change in Cash (including the effect of
exchange rate movements) 34.2 11.7 20.9 29.6
Cash at 31 December 120.8 86.6 74.7 53.8

The increase in cash held at 31 December 2006 is due to:
. the net cash generated from the operating activities of the University;
. a reduction in cash used in investing activities reflecting the net effect of cash received from the sale

of financial assets, including the sale of Repromed Pty Ltd, and reduced payments for property, plant
and equipment.
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Income Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2006

Consolidated University
2006 2005 2006 2005
REVENUE FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS: Note $'000 $’000 $'000 $'000
Received under Higher Education Support Act:
Base operating financial assistance 124 310 115347 124 310 115 347
Other operating financial assistance 7 497 5138 7 497 5138
Higher Education Contribution Scheme 51 444 54 327 51 444 54 327

183 251 174 812 183 251 174 812

Learning and Teaching:
Student fees 4 77 010 66 429 77 010 66 429
Grants 24 610 14 768 24 610 14 768

101 620 81197 101620 81 197

Research Grants and Fees:

National competitive grants 63 214 56 536 63 214 56 536
Public sector - Other 24 199 23613 23 916 23 393
Industry and other 13 566 10 346 13 566 10 346

100 979 90 495 100 696 90 275

Research - Other:

Cooperative Research Centre direct funding 7 575 6 779 7 635 6 779
Research infrastructure program 15033 15 742 15 033 15 742
22 608 22 521 22 668 22 521
Other:
Investment revenue 4 30 158 23 218 27 779 19 664
Property revenue 4 10 311 7 585 9 953 7 585
Specialist services and trading 4 47 266 42 463 14 620 18 234
Deferred government superannuation contributions 600 4 600 600 4 600
Other 4 18 525 20 242 13 198 18 993
106 860 98 108 66 150 69 076
Total Operating Revenue from Continuing
Operations 515 318 467 133 474 385 437 881
Share of net profits (losses) of associates and joint ventures
accounted for using the equity method 4 366 (2 095) - -
Total Revenue from Continuing Operations 515 684 465 038 474 385 437 881
EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS:
Salaries and related expenses 5 256 202 229 110 245991 221 792
Student services 23 948 21 986 23 948 21 986
Teaching and research 5 52 381 44 676 52 302 44 636
Buildings and grounds 5 32134 25 896 30 892 25 896
Finance costs 5 143 163 143 157
Administration, communication and travel 5 75 793 61 871 48 534 42 508
Finance and fund administration 2 831 2111 2 866 2111
Miscellaneous equipment, depreciation and net loss on
disposal of assets 5 30 306 34 198 30925 33 329
Deferred Government employee benefits for superannuation 3 406 7 274 3 406 7 274
Total Expenses from Continuing Operations 477 144 427 285 439 007 399 689
OPERATING RESULT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 38 540 37 753 35 378 38 192
Operating result from discontinued operations 6 359 (418) - -
OPERATING RESULT BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS 38 899 37 335 35 378 38 192
Operating result attributable to minority interest 15 32 - -
NET OPERATING RESULT FOR THE YEAR 38914 37 367 35 378 38 192
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Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2006

Consolidated University
2006 2005 2006 2005
CURRENT ASSETS: Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Cash and cash equivalents 7 120 805 86 585 95 344 72 092
Receivables 8 21 393 28 255 18172 24 258
Other financial assets 9 2425 2 094 2 425 2201
Inventories 10 3 685 4 268 1383 1661
Other non-financial assets 11 4414 2721 4 300 2528
Available-for-sale financial assets 13 1585 6 442 - -
Total Current Assets 154 307 130 365 121 624 102 740
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Other financial assets 9 100 617 87712 100917 87 712
Investments accounted for using the equity method 12 3 329 2 843 433 363
Available-for-sale financial assets 13 - - 48 086 51 224
Property, plant and equipment 14 612 681 601 678 575418 561 536
Investment property 15 18 890 17 717 18 890 17 717
Intangible assets 16 635 1228 635 939
Other non-financial assets 11 1 206 1371 1 206 1371
Deferred Government superannuation contribution 26 43 500 42 900 43 500 42 900
Total Non-Current Assets 780 858 755449 789 085 763 762
Total Assets 935165 885814 910 709 866 502
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables 17 42 302 38 691 28 394 28 000
Interest-bearing liabilities 18 1217 37 1217 6
Provisions 19 17 205 12 674 16 687 12 055
Deferred employee benefits for superannuation 26 3 300 3 200 3 300 3 200
Other 20 7 431 6 589 7 270 6 303
Total Current Liabilities 71 455 61 191 56 868 49 564
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables 17 5494 3159 5 440 3 056
Interest-bearing liabilities 18 68 75 68 75
Provisions 19 30 905 32 758 30 688 32 091
Deferred employee benefits for superannuation 26 40 200 39 700 40 200 39 700
Total Non-Current Liabilities 76 667 75 692 76 396 74 922
Total Liabilities 148 122 136 883 133 264 124 486
NET ASSETS 787 043 748 931 777 445 742 016
EQUITY:
Capital reserves 22 467 817 471 847 483 398 486 537
Specific purpose reserves 22 186 941 152 875 186 941 152 875
Retained surplus 22 130 609 122 448 107 106 102 604
Total University Interest 785 367 747 170 777 445 742 016
Minority interest 1676 1761 - -
TOTAL EQUITY 787 043 748 931 777 445 742 016
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2006

TOTAL EQUITY AT 1 JANUARY
Outside equity interest distribution paid
Defined benefits fund actuarial gain
Gain on revaluation of land and buildings
Gain on revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets
Other adjustments recognised directly in equity
Net Income Recognised Directly in Equity
Operating result for the year
Total Recognised Income and Expense for the Year
Total Equity at 31 December

Total recognised income and expense for the year
attributable to:
Members of the University of Adelaide

Minority interest

Consolidated University
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
748 931 692340 742016 683873
(70) (84) - -
3188 246 3188 246
(90) 18 971 - 17 235
(3 938) 74 (3137) 2470
123 49 - -
(787) 19 256 51 19 951
38 899 37 335 35 378 38 192
38 112 56 591 35 429 58 143
787 043 748 931 777 445 742 016
38914 37 367 35 378 38 192
(15) (32) - -
38 899 37 335 35 378 38 192
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2006

University of Adelaide

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
INFLOWS:
Australian Government Financial Assistance:
State and Local Government financial assistance
HECS-HELP - Student payments
OS-HELP (net of outflows)
Student fees
Fees and charges
Donations and bequests
Interest and dividends received
Consultancy and contract research
Specialist services and produce trading
GST received
Other
Total Inflows
OUTFLOWS:
Salaries and related expenses
Student services
Goods and services
Interest and other costs of finance
GST paid
Total Outflows
Net Cash provided by Operating Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
INFLOWS:
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of financial assets

Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale financial assets

Increase in interest bearing liabilities
Repayment of loans by related parties
Total Inflows
OUTFLOWS:
Purchase of shares in subsidiary
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Payments for intangible assets
Payments for financial assets
Decrease in interest bearing liabilities
Increase in loans to related parties
Total Outflows
Net Cash used in Investing Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
INFLOWS:
Issue of shares to outside equity interests
Total Inflows
OUTFLOWS:
Repayment of interest bearing liabilities
Dividends paid to minority interests
Total Outflows
Net Cash used in Financing Activities
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY

EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER

Consolidated University
2006 2005 2006 2005
Inflows Inflows Inflows Inflows
(Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows)
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
36(9) 270 601 260 972 270 601 260 972
26 409 17 522 26 236 17 302
6 795 9 249 6 795 9 249
36(9) (453) 453 (453) 453
71812 59 824 71 812 59 824
16 447 17 284 16 447 15 950
4 707 4 647 4707 7 147
10 056 7 666 6 824 6012
47 946 39 352 29 727 26 597
33 055 34 822 15 160 12 277
12 296 9 504 11 047 9 504
20 363 10 189 20 382 9512
520 034 471 484 479 285 434 799
(252 478) (241 168) (240 505) (227 719)
(23 925) (21 813) (23 863) (21 773)
(169 620) (142 129) (140 459) (120 647)
(145) (163) (143) (157)
(18 098) (16 641) (15 493) (16 641)
(464 266) (421 914) (420 463) (386 937)
23 55 758 49 570 58 822 47 862
980 1731 808 1631
13 413 3393 5413 3393
7 718 2 099 - -
31 - 31 -
816 333 791 333
22 958 7 556 7 043 5 357
- - (100) -
(36 988) (41 437) (35 960) (40 322)
(38) (74) - -
(7 226) (3727) (6 156) (3727)
(6) (6) (6) (6)
(25) - (300) -
(44 283) (45 244) (42 522) (44 055)
(21 325) (37 688) (35 479) (38 698)
200 50 - -
200 50 - -
(138) (102) - -
(194) (84) - -
(332) (186) - -
(132) (136) - -
34 311 11 746 23 343 9 164
86 585 74 740 72 092 62 829
(91) 99 (91) 99
7 120 805 86 585 95 344 72 092
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Basis of Preparation
These notes, prepared in conjunction with the financial statements, provide an explanation of significant
accounting policies and practices adopted in the preparation of the statements. The financial statements and notes
collectively constitute a general purpose financial report prepared in accordance with AASs, Australian Accounting
Standards Board (AASB) Interpretations and the requirements of the Department of Education, Science and
Training (DEST).

(a) Compliance with IFRSs
AASs include AIFRS. Compliance with AIFRS ensures that the University financial statements and the
Consolidated Entity, and notes comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

(b) Critical Accounting Estimates
Preparation of financial statements in conformity with AIFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
University’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed where
applicable, in the relevant notes to the financial statements.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and the future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

2. Scope of Reporting
The financial statements and notes disclose the 2006 operating results and 2005 comparative results of The
University of Adelaide as follows:

University — refers to all aspects of operation of The University of Adelaide only.

Consolidated — refers to the financial results of The University of Adelaide together with the financial results of
its controlled entities (refer to Note 31). It includes the University’s interests in associated
entities (Note 32) and its joint venture operations (Note 33), recognised using the equity
accounting method.

The controlled entities of The University of Adelaide, included in this report are:

o Adelaide Research & Innovation Pty Ltd as trustee for The Adelaide Research & Innovation Investment
Trust:
— ACN 008 123 466 Pty Ltd (Formerly Repromed Pty Ltd)
— Reproductive Health Science Pty Ltd (control ceased 28 September 2006)
. Lubims Pty Ltd as trustee for the Unihealth Research & Development Trust
o Martindale Holdings Pty Ltd as trustee for:
— JS Davies Estate
— JAT Mortlock Trust
— The Roseworthy Farm

o National Wine Centre Pty Ltd as trustee for the National Wine Centre Trust
. Roseworthy Piggery Pty Ltd
3. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Accounting
This general purpose financial report has been prepared on the basis of historical costs and, except where
stated, does not take into account changing money values or current valuations of non-current assets.

These accounting policies have been consistently applied by each entity in the Consolidated Entity, and
these policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Where necessary, comparative information has been reclassified to achieve consistency in disclosure with
current financial year amounts and other disclosures.

(b) Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements of the Consolidated Entity include the financial statements of the
University, being the parent entity, and its controlled entities (the Consolidated Entity). All entities have a
31 December reporting period except for Martindale Holdings Pty Ltd, which is a primary producer, and
consequently has 31 March reporting period.

Where an entity either began or ceased to be controlled during the year, the results are included only from
the date control commenced or up to the date control ceased.
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University of Adelaide

Principles of Consolidation (continued)

The balances, and effects of transactions, between controlled entities have been eliminated in the
consolidated financial statements. Accounting policies of controlled entities have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Consolidated Entity.

Outside interests in the equity and results of the entities that are controlled by the University are shown as
a separate item in the consolidated financial statements.

Foreign Currency
The University and its controlled entities financial statements are prepared in Australian dollars as their
primary activities are conducted within Australia where the functional currency is Australian dollars.

Foreign currency transactions are translated to Australian currency at the rates of exchange ruling at the
dates of the transactions and brought to account in the Income Statement. Amounts receivable and payable
in foreign currencies at balance date are translated at the rates of exchange ruling on that date.

Grant Revenue
Grant revenue is recognised in the accounting period that the University obtains control of the revenue
which is generally when it is received.

Revenue Recognition
Student Tuition Fees and Charges
Student tuition fees and charges are recognised in the accounting period in which the service is provided.

Consultancy, Contract and Industry Research
Consultancy, contract and industry research income is recognised in the accounting period in which the
service is provided.

Bequests and Donations
Bequests and donations are recognised as income in the accounting period they are received.

Interest and Investment Income
Interest and income from investments are recognised as they accrue (Refer to Note 3(k)).

Asset Sales

The net gain/loss from asset sales is included as revenue in the Consolidated Entity Income Statement.
The profit or loss on disposal of assets is brought to account at the date the contract of sale becomes
unconditional.

GST

Revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the
amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). In these
circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of
the expense. Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in
the Balance Sheet.

Cash flows are included in the Cash Flow Statement on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are
classified as operating cash flows.

Intangible Assets
Research expenditure is expensed in the period in which it is incurred. Where no internally generated asset
can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in the period as incurred.

An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following are demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development
and to use or sell the intangible asset;

. the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

All computer software other than operating systems is treated as intangible assets.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment (refer to Note 16).
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(h)

()

g)

(k)

Employee Benefits

Wages and Salaries

The employees’ entitlements to wages and salaries represent the amount which the Consolidated Entity has
a present obligation to pay resulting from employees’ services provided up to the balance date. The
entitlements have been calculated at the wage and salary rates as at the balance date and have been
recognised in payables.

Annual Leave

The employees' entitlements to annual leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the balance date
have been calculated at the wage and salary rates as at the balance date and recognised in current
provisions. Where the employees' entitlements to annual leave are not expected to be settled within
12 months of the balance date, the provision has been discounted to present value using the Australian
Government three year bond rate and recognised in non-current provisions. The employee on-costs related
to annual leave provision are recognised in payables.

Long Service Leave

The liability for employees’ entitlements to long service leave represents the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows to be made by the employer resulting from employees’ services provided up to the
balance date.

Liabilities for employees' entitlements, which are not expected to be settled within 12 months, are
discounted using the rates attaching to Australian Government securities at balance date, which most
closely match the terms of maturity of the related liabilities, and recognised in non-current provisions.

In determining the liability for employees' entitlements, consideration has been given to future increases in
wage and salary rates, and the Consolidated Entity’s experience with staff departures. Related on-costs
have been recognised in payables.

Superannuation

Superannuation schemes exist to provide benefits to University employees and their dependents upon
retirement, disability or death. The contributions made to these schemes by the University, and emerging
costs from unfunded schemes, are expensed in the Income Statement. For defined benefit plans, the
actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the Statement of Changes in Equity in the year in
which they occur and the liability in relation to the defined benefit obligation, net of assets, has been
recognised in the Balance Sheet. Refer to Note 26 for details relating to the individual schemes.

Receivables
The collectability of receivables is assessed at balance date and provision is made for any amounts
considered to be doubtful. Any debts considered to be non-collectable have been expensed as bad debts.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions and other
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Other Financial Assets

The Consolidated Entity classifies its investment into the following categories: financial assets
held-for-trading, available-for-sale financial assets and loans and receivables. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the investments were acquired. The classification of the investments is made at initial
recognition and is reviewed at each balance date.

Financial Assets Held-for-Trading

The financial assets are classified in this category if acquired for the purpose of selling in the short-term and
the assets are subject to frequent changes in fair value. Financial assets held-for-trading purposes are
recorded at fair value in the Balance Sheet, with any realised and unrealised gains or losses recognised in
the Income Statement.

. Composite Fund

The majority of specific purpose endowments received by the University to fund research activities,
scholarships, prizes and lectures are included in the Composite Fund. This Fund is invested in cash
deposits and longer term investments managed by independent investment managers. It includes a
mix of Australian equities, overseas equities, fixed interest securities and property trusts. These
securities are traded by the investment managers, however, the composite fund represents a
long-term investment holding. As a consequence, these investments are reported in non-current
financial assets in the Balance Sheet at market values obtained from the investment managers.

Available-for-sale Financial Assets

The financial assets are classified in this category where there is an intention to dispose of the investment,
rather than replacing the investment through trading. Available-for-sale financial assets are recorded at fair
value less impairment in the Balance Sheet. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
are recognised directly in the revaluation reserve, until the investment is disposed of or is determined
impaired, at which time the cumulative unrealised gain or loss previously recognised in the reserve is
included in the Income Statement for the period. The University's investments in controlled entities are
classified as non-current available-for-sale financial assets as the University does not intend to dispose of
these assets in the near future.
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Loans and Receivables

The financial assets are classified in this category when the Consolidated Entity provides money, goods or
services to a debtor with no intention of selling the receivable. Financial assets classified as loans and
receivables are recorded at amortised cost less impairment. They are included in current assets, except for
those with maturities greater than 12 months after the balance date which are classified as non-current
assets.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or
for disclosure purposes (refer to Note 30). The fair value of fi